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INTRODUCTION 

Quinsigamond Community College (QCC) began preparations for the NEASC Interim Report in January 2017; 
President Gail E. Carberry appointed the Vice President of Academic Affairs, Nancy Schoenfeld, as chair. 
The President’s Executive Team served as the steering committee and identified chairs for the standard 
committees. A meeting later in January with the chairs of the standard committees provided the Vice 
President with the opportunity to review the NEASC Self-Study process and procedures with them. The role 
of the standard teams and plans for collecting information and data was discussed. Each standard team 
chair was provided with relevant documents which were also posted on the Academic Affairs NEASC Self-
study SharePoint site; the entire college community was provided access to the site and encouraged to 
review the documents and provide comments. The following individuals served as chairs of the standard 
committees: 

Standard One - Mission & Purpose - Kathie Manning, Dean of the Center for Workforce Development and 
Continuing Education 
Standard Two - Planning & Evaluation - Ingrid Skadberg, Dean of Institutional Research and Planning 
Standard Three - Organization & Governance - Selina Boria – Executive Assistant to the President for Policy, 
Governance and Diversity 
Standard Four - The Academic Program - Leslie Horton, Dean of Science and Math and Arpi Payaslian, 
Professor of English and Coordinator of the English Work Area 
Standard Five – Students - Liz Woods, Dean of Compliance 
Standard Six - Teaching, Learning and Scholarship - Jen Arner Welsh, Professor of Psychology and 
Coordinator of the General Studies Program 
Standard Seven - Institutional Resources – Deb LaFlash, Assistant Vice President for Finance/ Comptroller 
Standard Eight - Educational Effectiveness - Pat Schmohl, Dean of Healthcare and Gaelan Benway, 
Professor of Sociology, Academic Assessment Facilitator and QORE Team Chair 
Standard Nine - Integrity, Transparency, and Public Disclosure - Josh Martin, Director of Institutional 
Communication 

An open invitation was extended to the entire campus community to engage in the interim review process. 
Approximately 60 people representing all divisions of the College actively participated in the self-study, 
attending regular meetings as arranged by each chair.  In April, 2017, the Vice President of Academic Affairs, 
the Dean of Institutional Research and Planning, and the Dean for Distance Education attended the NEASC 
Interim Report Orientation Workshop. In June, the Dean of Institutional Research and Planning and the 
Director of Institutional Research attended a NEASC workshop on data forms. Information from both 
workshops was shared with the standard chairs.  

At the beginning of the fall semester 2017, committee chairs and members met with the new President, Dr. 
Luis Pedraja to hear his advice and support. 

Three surveys were conducted (Student Experience, Governance, and Faculty/ Staff) to inform the self-
study. Survey results were shared with the standard team chairs and posted on the NEASC Self-Study 
SharePoint site so that data results could be incorporated in to the self-study report. 

All drafts were due in mid-March and a final draft, prepared by the Vice President, was made available to 
the College community in July by posting it on the NEASC Self-Study SharePoint site. 
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INSTITUTIONAL OVERVIEW 

Quinsigamond Community College (QCC) is one of twenty-nine colleges and universities in the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ system of public higher education.   QCC is an open enrollment 
institution with a main campus situated in Worcester, Massachusetts; it serves over 10,000 students 
annually in a service area covering 34 communities including Worcester, the second largest city in New 
England.  

QCC was established in 1963 to provide access to higher education to residents of Central Massachusetts. 
As a two-year associate degree granting public college, governed by a local Board of Trustees in 
accordance with the policies established by the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education, QCC provides 
unique opportunities specifically created to enhance the economic and social well-being of the Greater 
Worcester/Central Massachusetts region. The college endeavors to meet the region’s educational needs 
through a comprehensive selection of transfer, career, and special needs courses and programs. Over 120 
associate degree and certificate study options reflect the needs of the communities served. Some 
students choose to prepare for immediate entry into a career field while others choose to transfer to 
bachelor’s level programs at four-year colleges and universities; others choose opportunities for personal 
growth and cultural enrichment. Quinsigamond graduates can be found throughout Central 
Massachusetts in responsible positions in business and industry, in health and human services, in 
engineering and high technology.   

QCC serves its broad service areas from its main campus in Worcester and through additional 
instructional locations. In the fall of 2014, QCC opened a 70,000 square foot Healthcare and Workforce 
Development Center in downtown Worcester, to ensure better access for urban residents, while 
improving and expanding educational facilities. The College has had a Southbridge instructional location 
serving the South County region since 2008. Approximately 400 students per semester are enrolled in a 
variety of programs at this site. Recent renovation at the Southbridge location include the build out of a 
Computer Systems Engineering lab (supported by a state grant) and updating of the existing Science lab. 
Additional locations for specialized programming include Burncoat High School in Worcester (Automotive 
Technology Program), the Worcester Senior Center (Hospitality and Recreation Management Program). 
QCC’s Heating Ventilation Air Conditioning program is offered at Assabet Regional Technical High School 
in Marlboro and Worcester Technical High School in Worcester. In order to expand STEM programming on 
the main campus, the college opened a 30,000 square foot engineering, science and technology building 
named the QuEST Center in January 2016. With funding from the Massachusetts Life Sciences Center of 
nearly $1.2 million, the QuEST Center is furnished with state of the art equipment to support Life Science 
programming and a pledge to increase enrollment in these programs that support businesses that are 
vital to the economy of central Massachusetts. Additionally, this center includes labs for the Engineering, 
Biomedical Engineering, Electronics Engineering Technology and Manufacturing Technology programs. A 
Fab Lab which is part of the International Fab Lab Network is housed in this building.  

While the College was experiencing growth in enrollment at the time of its 2013 NEASC Self-Study, a 
steady decline has occurred in the years that followed.  An additional 3% drop in enrollment is expected 
for fall 2018. To address enrollment and retention concerns, the College implemented an Enrollment 
Management Plan in September 2015 designed to coordinate existing programs and initiate a variety of 
new efforts aimed at improving entry to the college, retention and graduation.  Objectives of this plan will 
be incorporated into the College’s new Strategic Plan (currently in draft form), spear-headed by our new 
president, Dr. Luis Pedraja, who has made student success the theme of his presidency.  With well-
defined and delineated goals to raise retention and graduation rates, the College is committed to the 
plan’s number one goal to achieve 100% student success.  

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
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RESPONSE TO AREAS IDENTIFIED FOR SPECIAL EMPHASIS 

ITEM OF EMPHASIS #1 - Achieving retention goals, with a focus on the impact of retention on the College’s 
achievement of performance-based benchmarks for state financial appropriation 

The 2013 NEASC Evaluation Team noted in its Report to the Faculty, Administration, Trustees, Students of 
QCC that the College is well positioned for student success with strong leadership, dedicated faculty and 
staff, a wealth of student academic support programs, and varied co-curricular activities. However, with no 
improvement in student retention compared to previous years there was concern regarding the college’s 
ability to maintain and further increase state funding in light of the move to performance-based processes. 
The College also noted and addressed these challenges in its NEASC 2013 Self-Study Standard 6: Students 
(p. 54) as low retention, aside from funding issues, speaks to the success of students in achieving their goals. 
The 2013 projections stated in Standard 6 (p. 69) and the focus of the College’s Strategic Plan: Pathway to 
a New Prosperity Extension 2014-2017 reflect the college’s intentions regarding improvement in overall 
student persistence. Since the 2015 Progress Report submitted to NEASC on items of emphasis, the state 
has changed its funding plan and has removed performance-based funding. Regardless of this change in 
funding, the College continues to have concerns about low retention and graduation rates. Retention for 
first time full- time freshmen in associate degree programs was 54% for fall 2015 to fall 2016 while the 
graduation rate increased from16% in FY 14 to 19% in FY 17 (Standard 8 Data Forms). The continuous drop 
in enrollment that has occurred since 2013 should be noted here and is addressed in this report in 
conjunction with an analysis of student persistence in Standard 8: Educational Effectiveness. The retention 
initiatives described in the 2015 Progress Report and recent initiatives are discussed here and include the 
following; the Enrollment Management Plan, Student Success Task Force, CampusWorks collaborative 
project, and Presidential Priorities.  

Enrollment Management Plan 
In response to concerns noted above, the Enrollment Management Team was charged in 2014 with 
developing a plan to improve student enrollment and persistence. This team includes representatives 
from all divisions of the College and is chaired by the Vice President of Strategic Enrollment Development 
and Student Engagement. Regarding retention, a subcommittee reviewed and assessed ongoing retention 
practices and developed a retention plan that is a portion of the   2016-2020 Enrollment Management 
Plan; a plan developed specifically to meet goals put forward in the College’s Strategic Plan: Pathway to a 
New Prosperity Extension 2014-2017.  Many of the objectives and action plans are ongoing and as yet, the 
College has only seen a minimal impact on overall retention (see Standard 8 for analysis of retention 
data).  Key features of this plan include the following objectives: form a retention steering committee; 
implement a mentoring program; create a student support center; create a call center; improve the 
orientation process; redesign the first year experience course and require the course in more programs; 
increase the number of students testing out of developmental classes; create more summer bridge 
programs; and increase the use of Starfish and Blackboard.  A key objective in this plan regards expanding 
mentoring at the College into a more formal and comprehensive program. The College has had a small 
program, Brothers and Keepers, in place for several years which focuses on providing mentors from the 
College and the community for male students, particularly those at risk. Up until this year, this program 
was run on a volunteer basis by an employee of the College and a VISTA volunteer. Two years ago, a 
comparable program for female students was implemented which is called S.H.E. (Support, Help and 
Encourage).  During the 2017-2018 academic year, these two programs served 120 students with 83 
active mentors.  The new College president wanted more emphasis on mentoring and has added a part 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/evaluation_team_report_to_qcc.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/evaluation_team_report_to_qcc.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/2015_progress_report.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/2015_progress_report.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_success_task_force_final_report_may_2018.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/brothers-keepers-program
https://www.qcc.edu/she-support-help-encourage
https://www.qcc.edu/she-support-help-encourage
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time position for a director of mentoring to report to the Dean of Students. Indeed the president is also 
serving as an active mentor in the program. Additionally in April 2018, the College hired a full time 
Director of Mentoring of Perkins Programs supported through the Federal Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) Improvement Act.  In this position, the director will be collaborating with 
faculty, students, staff and alumni to implement programs that support the enrollment, persistence and 
success of the nontraditional student within gender imbalanced CTE programs. This director will also work 
closely with the Dean of Students and others involved in Brothers and Keepers and S.H.E. to ensure 
consistency in all of the mentoring programs. The goal is to have one consistent, comprehensive, 
evidence-based and college wide program that can support and assist a wide range of student learners. 
To that end, the College has secured funding to develop a database that can connect to QCC data 
systems, allowing for tracking of student academic performance and retention rates from year to year. 
Academic progress of mentees will be easier to track with the database to determine the effectiveness of 
the program. 

Student Success Taskforce 
A task force on student success was created by the president in October 2017. One of the president’s 
primary goals for the College is for everyone on campus to work to achieve 100% student success. The 
task force is made up of approximately 20 representatives from across the college including faculty, staff 
and students. The primary work of the task force has focused on developing two sets of surveys, one for 
students and one for faculty and staff. These surveys were intended to identify the broadest ranges of 
definitions and perspectives possible to make the planning and institutional adjustments around student 
success grounded in the lives of students and those who serve them. Recommendations derived from the 
responses to the surveys and a review of literature were sent to the campus’s strategic planning groups 
for integration into QCC’s next Strategic Plan. A final Student Success Task Force Report of the results of 
these surveys and the task force’s recommendations for the possible continued work of the group was 
delivered to the president in June 2018.  Initiatives that are already addressing key feature of the report 
include a campus wide effort to improve “customer service” to students and an analysis of course 
completion rates with a goal of determining the academic stumbling blocks and developing strategies to 
improve student success in the identified courses. 

CampusWorks 
Noting concerns regarding student entry to the college and student retention, the College contracted the 
CampusWorks consulting firm in October 2017 and began a collaborative project entitled Process 
Reimagine and Redesign: First Contact to First Day of Class. While the focus is on student entry, most 
aspects of this project equally impact retention, on the assumption that new students who have a positive 
entry experience with the College are more likely to persist in their academic pursuits. The goals of this 
effort are to: provide a clear, consistent and high quality student experience; increase institutional 
efficiency; and engage the College community for collaborative efforts for continuous improvement and 
transformation. The project began in November 2017 with open information gathering sessions as 
CampusWorks consultants met with staff and faculty. Follow up sessions then took place in February 2018 
with focused sessions for specific areas of the College that directly impact student entry into the College. 
After a session with the Executive Team, CampusWorks completed a final report of findings and 
recommendations. The report provides the College with focus, prioritization, and a timeline for moving 
forward. Additionally, the meetings with CampusWorks promoted an enthusiasm for change on campus 
and indeed the CampusWorks consultants noted impressive success already in efforts made by the 
Enrollment Management Team by the time the final report was submitted in February (page 4 of 2/19/18 
report).  A final phase of the collaboration with CampusWorks will be an alignment of the consultant’s 

https://www.qcc.edu/brothers-keepers-program
https://www.qcc.edu/she-support-help-encourage
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_success_task_force_final_report_may_2018.docx
https://www.campusworksinc.com/
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
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findings with the College’s new strategic plan (see Institutional Plans section of this report).  The key 
features of the CampusWorks findings that will positively impact retention significantly overlap with the 
Enrollment Management Plan and Student Success Taskforce. Their recommendations include the following 
and are covered in more detail in the link provided: 

• Student Success Center
o Develop as the first point of contact for all students by any mode of communication
o Improve the efficiency of pre-determined routine processes at this first point of

contact
o Align specialists from each enrollment area to handle in-depth issues

• Enhanced self-service
o Select and deploy a CRM to collect all student prospects appropriate information
o Guide all students through a clear path through a single-entry point to QCC
o Automate load of the online application into Jenzabar

• Enhanced communication strategy that informs the CRM and call management
o Identify specific student populations and develop targeted communication
o Align the communication flow regardless of the method

A proposal to develop a Student Success Center has stirred the most passion and has proven to be the 
most daunting. The College has considered developing a one stop student support center for many years. 
Currently, offices that provide student services are housed in different buildings leading to confusion at 
times for students trying to determine which office provides the service they are seeking. Space and 
budget constraints have prevented the College from moving forward to consolidate essential services.  
However, the new president has made this a priority and CampusWorks has given the College a 
framework for developing this center. For the first phase, a welcome center has been established this 
year in a convenient location in the Harrington Learning Center co-located with the Admissions Office. 
New signage has been erected to direct individuals to this location as well as all other buildings on 
campus. Moving forward, the Student Success Center will become the primary point of contact via any 
communication (phone, email, website, etc.) for all new and continuing students to address any issues 
that may prevent enrollment and completion at the College. Frontline staff at the point of contact will be 
trained to handle simple processes such as missing items for acceptance to a program, intake of 
documents to determine financial aid eligibility, processing registration exceptions, or setting up a 
payment plan, as examples. Advising specialists will be available to assist students with more in-depth 
issues such as career or transfer exploration. The Student Success Center will also have a self-service area 
with computers to support students in doing business online with the College.  The plan is to create this 
space in phases, starting this summer with a move of the Advising Office to the Harrington Learning 
Center to be co-located with the Welcome Desk and the Admissions Office. Equally important as the 
Student Success Center provides improvements on the West Boylston Street campus, the College must 
ensure the quality and access to services at all locations. A concern was noted in the recent report from 
the evaluator following the College’s Report on the Implementation of Off-Campus Location and the 
NEASC site visit to the QCC Healthcare and Workforce Development Center regarding the need to provide 
better access to services to healthcare students at this off site location. Plans are underway to better 
serve students in the downtown location through the development of a service center off of the lobby 
area on the first floor. 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/downtown_report_from_evaluator_2018.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/downtown_report_from_evaluator_2018.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/downtown_site_visit_report_april_2018_with_cover_letter.pdf
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The new president has been at the College for a year and has stated his priorities, with an overarching 
theme of student success. His priorities have been well communicated to the College. Priorities that relate 
to retention include the Student Success Center, increased support for students with an active mentoring 
program and learning hubs in the community, improved customer service, and removal of barriers to 
student success such as lingering in developmental courses. These priorities are discussed in various 
standard of this report and plans for achieving all of the priorities are addressed in the Institutional Plan 
section. 

ITEM OF EMPHASIS #2 - Ensuring a sufficient number of faculty to support the College mission, and 
achieving faculty diversity goals 

The College’s 2013 NEASC Self-Study acknowledged the need to ensure a sufficient number of faculty to 
support its mission and to achieve its faculty diversity goals. The institution continues to uphold this 
responsibility as a focus for improvement while recognizing its inherent challenges.  At the time of the 
2013 NEASC review, QCC had seen record and growing enrollments with a peak in fall 2011 of 9,130 
students.  Today’s trends across higher education of declining enrollments are evident at QCC with a fall 
2017 enrollment of 7,370 as reported in Standard 5 data form in this report; a 19% decrease in 
enrollment since 2011. In the face of subsequent budget concerns, QCC has nevertheless successfully 
avoided reductions in the overall number of full-time faculty and instructional staff (see Standard 6 Data 
Forms). Somewhat higher ratios of courses taught by full-time faculty resulted.  The fact that the College 
has not experienced a drop in numbers of full-time instructional staff in spite of dropping enrollments and 
retirements exemplifies QCC’s commitment to ensuring a significant number of faculty to support the 
mission.  While enrollments have declined, the needs of students have not; the work of the College has 
not decreased proportionally in all ways with enrollment.  Nevertheless with budget concerns, any hiring 
must be in line with strategic planning including fiscal concerns. A revised hiring procedure is now in place 
for new hires as well as replacements that requires a pre-request that goes to the president’s Executive 
Team.  Information required includes budget information, expenses associated with the new hire, 
alignment with the strategic plan, whether there are similar positions, and the impact of not filling the 
position. For faculty, criteria have been established that include necessity for accreditation, 
faculty/student ratios, and the need for a growing or “in-demand” program. 

The College has been pro-active in seeking out highly qualified, credentialed faculty more representative 
of its diverse student body. In keeping with the QCC value of inclusiveness and a mission statement that 
“all are welcomed and embraced in our community”, the College recognizes the importance of diversity 
and acknowledges the rich and unique contributions that each community member makes to advance the 
College.   Overall, diverse full time faculty increased from 17% in FY 2014 to 24% in FY 2018 (see table 
below). The overall percentage of part-time faculty of color did not vary significantly from FY 2014 to FY 
2018. There has been some concern on campus about the departure of new hires, especially those of 
color.  While some of these departures were presumably for continued education or other advancement, 
the College must nonetheless strive not only to recruit but also to retain talented faculty – and especially 
faculty of color.  Thus far, the college community has discussed a variety of components of the problems 
that have been experienced in recruiting and retaining a diverse faculty body, as well as possible 
solutions. To accelerate retention of a strong and diverse faculty, the College has begun implementing 
and revising processes for new faculty orientation since Fall 2016  -- a positive first step toward 
integrating newcomers into the culture and community at QCC. Further, there has been a call to have 
coordinated conversations among the areas hiring and Human Resources regarding specific approaches to 
recruitment – for example, targeted advertising and reaching out to relevant networks.  Community 

Presidential Priorities 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
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members have also called for more concrete and nuanced discussions about differences among 
candidates, ensuring that dimensions of difference are recognized and valued in the hiring process.  The 
College has also spent time discussing the reasons faculty leave – including issues of campus climate and 
professional development. Regarding campus climate, efforts to promote an environment of inclusiveness 
are discussed in Standard 9: Integrity, Transparency, and Public Disclosure. 

Faculty Ethnicity Make-up 

Ethnicity 
Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016 Fall 2017 
(FY 2014) (FY 2015) (FY 2016) (FY 2017) (FY 2018) 
FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT 

White 111 376 113 372 114 364 107 338 107 328 
Black 9 19 10 18 14 16 15 20 14 16 
Hispanic 6 16 5 14 6 17 7 13 8 15 
Asian/Pacific Islander 7 14 7 13 9 14 11 10 11 11 
American Indian/Alaskan Native 1 2 1 1 1 3 1 3 1 4 
Unknown 10 4 4 6 5 
Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific 
Island 

1 1 1 1 

Total 134 438 136 423 144 419 141 391 141 379 
Diverse % 17% 14% 17% 12% 20% 13% 24% 14% 24% 13% 
Data is from IPEDS HR Reports Fall Semester 

ITEM OF EMPHASIS #3 - Measuring student learning outcomes and using results to inform decision-
making and continuous improvement 

Following the 2013 NEASC review, the visiting Evaluation Team noted in its Report to the Faculty, 
Administration, Trustees, Students of QCC by the NEASC Evaluation Team that there had been  progress in 
the efforts to establish student learning outcomes, to utilize data for improvement in student learning and 
in mapping course-level learning outcomes to program-level learning outcomes.  However, the NEASC 
visiting team reported and it was acknowledged in the self-study that the college had not yet established a 
review process for all of its departments and there was still work to be done on the development of student 
learning outcomes and measures of student success in some disciplines, departments and programs. 
Indeed the challenges that were identified by the College in the 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 4: The 
Academic Program (p. 19) included the need to “expand assessment activities and proceed to utilization of 
data for improvements (and) develop process for current data to be utilized more regularly as the basis of 
programming decisions”.  Additionally the College’s stated projections for Standard 4 (p. 41) were that 
“progress will continue in student learning outcomes assessment for general education and academic 
programs as well as participation in statewide assessment efforts” and that “the program review process 
will be revised and updated to ensure more regular consideration of relevant data, consistency in student 
learning outcomes assessment, and improved communication of accomplishment to the college 
community; a process for comprehensive review of departments and disciplines will be finalized”. 
Following the NEASC visiting team’s report, the college identified and initiated three approaches to address 
the concerns of the NEASC team. These approaches are addressed later in this report as noted. 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/evaluation_team_report_to_qcc.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/evaluation_team_report_to_qcc.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
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1. Revising the long standing Academic Program Review process into an Academic Planning and
Review process for all academic programs, departments and discipline. This is addressed in the
current report in Standard 8: Educational Effectiveness.

2. Providing faculty with professional development and technological support needed in order to
implement assessment plans. This is addressed in the current report in Standard 4: The Academic
Program.

3. Updating the goals of the General Education Outcomes Assessment Team and reconfiguring this
committee as the college has refined and focused its student learning outcomes assessment
approaches.  This is addressed in the current report in Standard 8: Educational Effectiveness.

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Continue efforts to increase the percentage of full-time faculty and faculty diversity (4.2)
• Promote student persistence with a fully implemented one stop support center, expanded

mentoring, and established community learning hubs (1.1, 1.5, 2.5, 2.6)
• Through virtual office technology create access and communication opportunities for students with 

campus services from any location (1.1, 1.3)
• Set standards and provide campus wide training in order to provide excellent customer service (3.2)
• Establish a call center in conjunction with the one stop support center to accommodate incoming

call volume and to support call campaigns (3.2)

STANDARD ONE – MISSION AND PURPOSE 

The 2013 NEASC visiting Evaluation Team noted in its report the strength of the College’s commitment to 
its mission and stated that “clearly the mission guides the purposes of the College and, together, forms 
the platform for review of and commitment to strategic planning”. QCC continues to be guided by a 
mission and vision that is rooted in the core principle of student success, serving as a vital regional asset 
and first choice for transforming lives and sustaining healthy, prosperous communities. During the search 
process for a new president, QCC looked to its mission to ensure its leader would understand, embrace 
and commit to the core tenets embedded in the QCC mission and vision.  Approved and hired by the 
Board of Trustees in 2017, the new president has already demonstrated his strong commitment to the 
mission and core values of the College. Within the 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 1: Mission and 
Purposes (p. 5), the College projected that in moving forward it would continue to promote awareness of 
the mission and utilize cross functional teams in all planning processes.  

In order to ensure that QCC continues to meet the objectives set forth in the existing mission, vision, 
values and principles, the college community is currently engaged in the creation of a new strategic plan. 
Indeed the new president immediately began this process with a commitment to student success which 
has become the theme of his presidency. This strategic plan is being developed by a cross functional team 
defined as an inclusive team composed of faculty and staff from all divisions of the College, students and 
community members. Part time faculty and staff have been active members along with their full time 
colleagues.  A critical component of the strategic planning process has been to look at the current mission 
and related statements to ensure they continue to be relevant to all the constituents served by the 
College.  QCC has engaged in dialogues with both internal and external stakeholders and used 
environmental scanning tools, to ensure that the current and future institutional objectives and actions 
are aligned with our mission and vision and that it continue to reflect the needs of the communities being 
served. The five goals of the strategic plan are well aligned to the mission, vision, principles and values; 
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most importantly our principle of “students first”, our value of “open, civil communication and 
collegiality”, our vision of “relevant and responsive programming” and our mission of “responsiveness to 
diverse regional and student needs”. The following are the five goals of the strategic plan: 1) Achieve 
100% student success; 2) Become the leader in quality, innovative academic and workforce programs; 3) 
Optimize communication to enhance collaboration; 4) Foster a diverse and engaged community; and 5) 
Strengthen QCC’s organizational sustainability. The process for this planning is discussed in the 
Institutional Planning section of this report. Other planning processes described throughout this report 
demonstrate the College’s commitment to its mission as well as a conviction to continue and expand the 
use of cross functional teams. The College mission is everyone’s responsibility, regardless of position 
within the College and all must have a voice. 

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Ensure that all planning process align with the College’s Vision, Mission, Mission Principles and
Values  (4.1)

• Promote cooperation and collaboration through continued and expanded use of cross-functional
teams in all planning processes (4.1)

STANDARD TWO – PLANNING AND EVALUATION 

The Report to the Faculty, Administration, Trustees, Students of QCC by the NEASC Evaluation Team, 
following their 2013 visit to the College stated that “QCC’s planning and evaluation activities position the 
College to achieve its mission and purposes… and it’s planning and evaluation processes reflect the 
unique role community colleges play in their local communities and their special responsibility to the 
regional workforce.”  In its 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 2: Planning and Evaluation the College made 
the following projections; 1) Updating the strategic plan and supporting strategic planning best practice 
grants, and 2) promoting use of data and enhancing automated reporting in support of all planning and 
evaluations.  

Updating the Strategic Plan 
Following the 2013 NEASC Self-Study, the College updated Pathway to a New Prosperity: Strategic Plan 
2010-2015, with an extension to the existing plan for 2014 – 2017.  Through surveys of the Strategic Plan 
Implementers, final results were documented in a report by the QCC Institutional Research and Planning 
Office (QCC Strategic Plan Implementation Progress, SP17). Four priorities were identified: student 
success, retention and completions; technology, information, and fiscal resources; community outreach 
and enrollment optimization; and organizational alignment and effectiveness.  When analyzed by these 
priorities, survey results showed consistency of completion within each category—one-third completed, 
one-third major progress, and one-third moderate or minor progress.  An annual $100,000 strategic 
planning fund enabled the college to pilot a number of student support initiatives, some of which have 
been institutionalized, for example the Brothers and Keepers mentoring program for male students and 
the S.H.E. mentoring program for female students. Important accomplishments documented in this 
progress report include a new Veteran’s Center, initiating the use of Starfish as an early alert system, 
elimination of the use of exit exams in developmental English and math, a redesigned academic program 
review process, formation of a Program and Process Team, Financial Aid reengineering, and an improved 
student orientation.   
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A new strategic planning process was launched in August, 2017 upon arrival of QCC’s new president.  It 
was important to the new president that strategic planning be an inclusive, organic, grass-roots process. 
Objectives in the previous plan that had seen only moderate or minor progress needed to be considered 
as well. Rather than hiring a consultant, the president appointed two internal administrators, the 
Assistant Vice President of Academic Affairs and the Dean of Institutional Research and Planning, to lead 
the effort.  The president’s Executive Team determined the structure—a core team with sub-
committees—and the two leaders and the core team determined the process.  In order to ensure 
inclusiveness, each core team member co-lead a subcommittee that represented a different campus 
location: West Boylston Street (main campus), Southbridge, Healthcare and Workforce Development, and 
a travel team that reached out to various other locations and constituents. It was important to the two 
leaders that the strategic plan be based on data and research with clearly established metrics for each 
goal which was lacking in the previous strategic plan.  To achieve this, strategic planning began with two 
environmental scanning workshops. The first workshop was led by QCC’s Dean of Institutional Research 
and Planning and focused on internal data. The second workshop  included a presentation by two external 
partners, the Executive Director of the Public Policy Center at the University of Massachusetts Dartmouth 
and the Director of Research at Commonwealth Corporation entitled External Trends That Will Shape 
QCC’s Work Over the Next Three Years.  Approximately 80 sub-committee and core team members 
attended each session. The internal data, the external report, and additional reading materials were made 
available to all participants on the strategic planning SharePoint site.  Each subcommittee then 
determined the environmental trends believed to be most relevant for strategic planning purposes.  
These trends, as well as other topics relative to strategic planning, were then vetted through focus groups 
that included both internal and external partners.  In total, 26 focus groups were conducted within a three 
week period, and over 200 people participated.  Environmental scanning was followed by an S.W.O.T. 
analysis (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats).  The analysis and resulting five goals of the 
strategic plan are discussed in the Institutional Plans section of this report. With consensus from the 
college community of the five goals at an All College Forum, the core team then proceeded to developing 
strategic initiatives utilizing feedback collected at the January 2018 opening day event for all members of 
the college community.  Project Teams are currently working on objectives, action items, outcomes, and 
budget implications for each strategic initiative. Metrics for each goal were refined by the core team and 
presented to the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education in June. Considering the decrease in 
enrollment and a budget that will continue to be tight into the foreseeable future, budgetary 
considerations will play a key role in determining priorities. The president and the Executive Team have 
included funds in the FY 2019 budget to implement strategic plan objectives and to provide in-house 
grants for initiatives that support the goals of the strategic plan. Implementation of the 2018-2022 plan 
will be monitored by the core team. 
 
Promoting Access and Use of Data 
The Institutional Research and Planning (IRaP) Office on a more regular basis provides data to the Board 
of Trustees, the president and the Executive Team regarding student enrollment and persistence.  Data is 
utilized as the president with the Executive Team has undertaken a more comprehensive process for 
ongoing budget review as well as funding for strategic initiatives. IRaP has refined the process to provide 
data for academic departments undergoing the Academic Planning and Review (APR) process. The 
Enrollment Management Team utilize a funnel report in their weekly meetings that provides data on the 
number of inquiries to the College, how many apply, are accepted, and enroll that then shapes the 
admissions outreach plans. In order to improve automated reporting, the College’s Cognos software tool 
was updated in 2013. This update required re-rewriting all the old reports into new reports that would be 
compatible with the upgraded Cognos software.  A Cognos User Group was established by IRaP that 
included key staff in various areas of the college such as the business office, admissions office, and 
financial aid. In utilizing the new Cognos software IRaP has been able to create and develop complex 
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reports to access data from multiple relational databases from different areas of the College. These 
Cognos reports are important because they reduce the time needed to access the data and present it in a 
way that is meaningful to multiple stakeholders to aid in the data driven decision process. Without 
Cognos, some of these reports would have taken IRaP a few weeks to compile. These reports allow staff 
and faculty members to view their data in real time in lieu of submitting multiple research requests to 
IRaP which would only provide a “snap shot” of their data. The Registrar’s office was able to utilize a 
Cognos report to identify students who had completed credits for certificates, but were not registered for 
the certificate. The College was then able to award these certificates. The academic deans utilize a Cognos 
report that allows them to check on courses by enrollment, instructor, day and time, room, modality, and 
course capacity.   This has been extremely useful for developing schedules, deciding on cancellations, and 
making faculty assignments in timely and more efficient manner. Indeed with this tool they are now able 
to develop a year-long schedule instead of only one semester at a time. The Cognos reports not only are 
able to deliver timely information on an automated basis to appropriate departments, but they also allow 
and provide dynamic access to data (in the use of filters) for QCC professional staff and academic leaders 
to make strategic decisions based on the appropriate data.   

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Maintain active engagement of the College community as the new strategic plan is implemented
(4.1)

• Promote and expand access and use of data in support of all planning and evaluation (5.1, 5.3)
• Examine budgetary options to scale up best practices that are supported initially by the strategic

plan (5.3)

STANDARD THREE – ORGANIZATION AND GOVERNANCE 

The Massachusetts Department of Higher Education oversees Quinsigamond Community College (QCC) as 
part of the fifteen member community college segment of the higher education state system.  QCC is 
governed at the local level by an eleven member Board of Trustees.  As noted in chapter fifteen (15a), 
section twenty-two (22) of the Massachusetts General Laws, the Board of Trustees is “responsible for 
establishing those policies necessary for the administrative management of personnel, staff services, and 
general business of the institution under its authority.”  Strengths noted in the 2013 NEASC Self-Study 
Standard 3: Organization and Governance (p. 12) included an attentive Board of Trustees, regular 
evaluation and update of the organizational structure to best meet the mission of the College, and a 
governance structure that promotes open communication. The 2013 NEASC evaluation team in its Report 
to the Faculty, Administration, Trustees, Students noted that QCC’s “organizational structure and 
committed faculty and staff bode well for future plans of academic success. The college leadership is 
strong, dedicated and committed to faculty, staff, and the community in order to attend to student 
success.” Concerns in the 2013 Self-Study included the low participation in the monthly All College Forum 
and the need to provide information to new employees and students regarding the governance structure. 
Progress in the 2013 projections to be addressed here include 1) filling openings on the Board of Trustees 
and other organizational changes, 2)ensuring participation in governance, and 3) evaluating the 
functionality of the new governance system. 

Filling Openings on the BOT and Other Organizational Changes 
Since 2013, there has been significant turnover in the membership of the QCC Board of Trustees. Nine of 
the eleven board members are new with three of the eleven members joining in 2016 and six joining in 
2017; a new board chairperson assumed responsibility in 2015. Members are appointed by the governor 
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of Massachusetts with the exception of the student member (elected by the student body each year) and 
an alumni trustee (elected by the QCC Alumni Association). The board’s bylaws were reviewed and altered 
in 2015 to better balance committee responsibilities and to assure the bylaws aligned with the general 
laws of Massachusetts. Organizational changes within the college included the new president who was 
confirmed by the Board of Trustees and appointed by the MA Department of Higher Education in July 
2017. To leverage operational efficiencies, in 2016, the College merged the areas of Community 
Engagement with Enrollment Services under the leadership of the Vice President of Enrollment 
Management, Student Engagement, and Community Connections. Community Engagement staff returned 
to QCC’s main campus, from a satellite location.  In 2017, changes within Academic Affairs, Administrative 
Services, and Human Resources occurred due to retirements with interim personnel immediately 
assuming responsibility for those areas to ensure no gaps in services. Some reorganization in leadership 
positions resulted in cost savings while maintaining the quality of services to students and the integrity of 
college functions. Consistent with its mission, the College strengthened its concentration on workforce 
development by establishing a position, Assistant Vice President of Workforce Readiness and Innovation, 
blending the focus with the current workforce development/continuing education area and the career 
placement services.        

Ensuring Participation in Governance  
As noted in the 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 3: Organization and Governance (p. 12), the 
implementation of a new governance system was approved in spring 2012 and fully launched in spring 
2013. The objective of restructuring was the creation of a more inclusive and participatory governance 
system. New councils were added (faculty senate, student senate, and diversity council) to the already 
existing councils (learning council, operations council, and student services council). Adjunct faculty and 
students were added as full voting members of these councils. All committee members now have the 
option to participate telephonically in meetings from off-site locations, offering a mechanism for 
discussion and information sharing, along with an opportunity to vote on policy proposals and proposed 
revisions vetted by the councils and/or the governance steering committee.  The  All College Forum 
meetings now include video recordings shared with the entire college community although forum voting 
from remote locations still remains a challenge. QCC staff, faculty, and students have access to all 
governance activities and information through the institution’s updated governance website. 

 
Evaluating the Functionality of the New Governance System 
In November 2017, the college distributed a survey seeking input from faculty, staff, and students 
concerning their experience with and involvement in QCC’s governance system. A total of one hundred 
and five (105) respondents completed the survey with the highest number of participants being staff 
members and/or full time employees. Eighty-four percent of respondents recognized the governance 
system as a participatory entity with more than half responding they had attended one or more All 
College Forums. It had been the goal of the governance revision committee to increase attendance and 
participation at the All College Forum. As they participated in the various governance councils, 
respondents confirmed they do regularly attend council meetings and stay up to date with the council 
agendas, minutes, and related materials.  As the new governance process was first implemented, the All 
College Forum was viewed as a venue for voting on policy changes and was often cancelled if there were 
no items for voting. It was realized that this monthly meeting was an opportunity to communicate with 
the college community as a whole and relevant topics were added to the schedule. For example, the 
president spoke recently about plans for the proposed Student Success Center and the budget planning 
process for the next fiscal year. More topics of interest will be added in the next academic year which 
should also help to improve attendance. Students are provided information through the Office of Student 
Life and Leadership regarding the college’s governance system and Student Senate participants are 
elected the beginning of each school year.  New faculty are provided governance information at a new 
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faculty orientation which is part of a year-long series held monthly, with one month focused on 
governance. Regular governance information, meeting schedules, open-seats and policy information are 
shared throughout the school year via email and on the governance website. Official Minutes are 
recorded at each Governance Council meeting, and published on the website.  The goal of posting within 
seven calendar days of the meeting is still a challenge, but minutes are continuously sought and acquired 
on a monthly basis.  

PROJECTIONS (alignment with strategic plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Expand the use of the All College Forum to more actively engage the college community (4.1)
• Through technology, improve the participation in governance (4.2, 5.2)
• Improve reporting out of all governance activities on the website (4.1)

STANDARD FOUR – THE ACADEMIC PROGRAM 

As an open access institution, QCC, as stated in its mission, endeavors to provide “accessible, affordable, 
and high quality educational and training programs” to all students regardless of their background and skill 
level.  As such, QCC offers a variety of degree and collegiate level certificate and dual enrollment programs 
as well as flexible course scheduling—online, weekend, evening, summer, accelerated-- to meet the 
learning and career goals of traditional and non-traditional students. The College competently ensures the 
integrity of all awarded credit. Since the 2013 Self-Study, the College has continued to ensure that the 
appropriate policies and procedures are in place to evaluate, assess and assign credit for all courses offered 
regardless of modality, for transfer courses accepted from other institutions, and for prior and experiential 
learning. The College adheres to the Carnegie Unit of Credit definition of credit for all courses in all 
modalities. For each semester, including accelerated summer sessions, the Registrar’s Office confers with 
Academic Affairs to ensure the proper number of classroom hours. When there are restrictions in achieving 
the full number of hours due to state holidays and contract restrictions on start or end dates, the Vice 
President of Academic Affairs ensures that faculty members are informed of the deficit with 
recommendations for appropriate methods to compensate for the shortened class time.  In the 2013 NEASC 
Self-Study in Standard 4: The Academic Program, projections on how to meet challenges described in the 
report were proposed.  Those that will be discussed in this standard include; 1) formation of a cross 
functional team to better communicate the impact of new programming 2) an increase in the offering of 
academic pathways and 3) development of an academic year course schedule. The projection relating to 
updating the QCC website information is covered in Standard 9: Integrity, Transparency and Public 
Disclosure of this report. Updating the program review process and outcomes assessment of general 
education and co-curricular activities are addressed in Standard 8: Educational Effectiveness. The projection 
regarding electronic submission of curriculum is not a priority at this time. 

Improving Communication about the Impact of New Programming 
The approval process for curriculum changes including revisions as well as new courses and programs has 
remained unchanged since the 2013 NEASC Self-Study. All approved curricula, including full proposals, are 
published in Academic Matters. This publication is distributed to the College and is posted on the QCC 
website on the governance page. The concern regarding this process was that areas of the College that 
would be affected by the changes may only become aware of them after the approval process has been 
completed.  Examples include financial aid issues, space issues, availability of information for advising and 
admissions. To resolve this communication and planning problem, a cross functional team called the 
Program and Process Team was developed with members from all of the three major divisions of the 
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College.  The primary goal of this team is to adopt a comprehensive structure/process of planning to 
ensure successful program development, implementation, and evaluation. The team focuses on the many 
components involved within the implementation of program development, delivery, and evaluation: (1) 
curriculum content; (2) instructional approaches/delivery options; (3) student support and service needs; 
(4) facilities and technology requirements; (5) target markets; (6) possible credit and non-credit 
integration; (7) short term financing needs; (8) fiscal sustainability; (9) program success. The team 
operates with a clear purpose guided by focused decision making, timely reporting, consistent 
accountability, shared problem solving and discussion, and concise documentation of outcomes, 
achievements, and needed improvements. The agenda for each meeting and the meeting minutes are 
distributed to the campus via email.   

Expanding Pathway Options for Students  
Since 2013, efforts have been made to expand, better define and improve access to academic pathways for 
students. These pathways include certificate to associate degree, high school to college, associate degree 
to baccalaureate, prior learning to college degree, and college programs leading directly to employment.  

In its participation with Complete College America, the College made several revisions in the publication 
both on the QCC website and in the college catalog of student learning outcomes and course requirements. 
In fall of 2016, revisions were made to include not only an academic map outlining requirements for each 
semester, but also milestones students should achieve to ensure completion of the degree in a timely 
manner. The milestones also provide a timeline for students to seek guidance for career counseling or 
transfer to a four-year institution. All degrees are organized into five area of study to facilitate advising 
students on their academic pathway options. The printed catalog and the webpage now include potential 
stackable programs in the “Connections” section of the narrative for each program that indicate certificates 
that can be obtained along with an associate’s degree  facilitating a potential student pathway from 
certificate to associate degree. 

In response to current and emerging needs for the workforce in the Worcester County area QCC has since 
2013 developed new programs to meet the workforce demand. New associate degree and certificate 
programs is this category include Public Health, Photonics, Game Design, Cybersecurity, Technician in 
Applied Behavior Analysis, Dietary Management, Logistics, and CNC Technologies.  

Since 2016, QCC has developed new options under Liberal Arts (English, Sociology, Psychology, Chemistry, 
Biology, Environmental Science, History, Theater, and Music) that provide major-specific, first and second 
year coursework that transfer seamlessly in a pathways to a baccalaureate degree at a university within the 
Massachusetts higher education system.  Through the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education 
(DHE) statewide Mass Transfer program, these Liberal Arts options present curricular alignment with 
comparable baccalaureate programs thus facilitating transfer between the undergraduate sectors. Faculty 
from all of the state institutions worked collaboratively to develop these pathways. The QCC website 
transfer page provides a link to a website that clearly outlines the pathways, including specific courses 
needed for transfer. These options had 166 students enrolled in the fall 2016 semester, and 309 in the fall 
2017 semester. Tracking their retention, graduation and successful transfer will be important for measuring 
the success of these new options. Transfer articulation agreements between QCC and private four year 
institutions have increased over the last several years averaging over ten new agreements per year and are 
indicated on the QCC transfer page. QCC has utilized data collection and analysis available through the 
National Student Clearinghouse to obtain information about QCC students who transfer, both with and 
without associate degrees. Clearinghouse data indicates that 49.3% of graduates continued their education 
within two years of graduating in 2015, up from 39.8% in 2012. Further, according to a report by the QCC 
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Institutional and Planning Office, of the 1,480 QCC graduates in 2011 through 2013 who transferred to 
another institution after graduating from QCC, 54% were conferred a baccalaureate degree by January 
2017. With data on the top baccalaureate institutions where QCC graduates attend as well as the QCC 
programs of the graduates, the QCC Transfer Office is better able to assure programmatic alignments and 
potential articulation agreements. 

Credit for Prior Learning (CPL), managed by the Career Services and Prior Learning Assessment Center, is 
also awarded to students who seek cooperative education experiences sponsored by specific programs at 
the College. QCC will be participating in a MA Community College Prior Learning Assessment Consortium. 
In the proposal stage now, the plan is to increase the number of curriculum crosswalks for existing PLA 
modalities, create a consistent PLA policy document, enhance communication and marketing and increase 
the effectiveness of the PLA website. Faculty and staff from the 15 community colleges will participate in 
the planning and implementation that will take place over the next three years. There will be workshops 
and information sessions during the fall 2018 semester at which time faculty will learn about the plans for 
the state-wide consortium.  
 
Since 2013, QCC has expanded its programs that provide courses for college credit to high school students 
while still completing their high school diploma. Several dual enrollment opportunities are offered and 
include Attend College Early (ACE), a concurrent enrollment program called Commonwealth Dual 
Enrollment Partnership (CDEP), Gateway to College (GTC) and Early College High School (ECHS).  These 
academic pathways reduce the time and cost of completing a postsecondary program and provide a direct 
pathway to transfer or immediate career opportunities. To ensure the quality of instruction and the rigor 
of the courses offered, the college exercises appropriate oversight over all dual enrollment programs.  
Attend College Early (ACE), for example, is housed within QCC’s Admissions office where an enrollment 
officer meets with the students and introduces them to the College; Gateway to College (GTC) is housed 
within Academic Affairs.  Three full-time staff members recruit, enroll, provide advice and support for 
students from entry through their high school graduation or degree/certificate achievement. Early College 
High School (ECHS) is also housed within Academic Affairs and is run by the Director of Educational 
Partnerships. Over 600 students in twenty high schools participated in QCC’s Early College/Dual Enrollment 
in 2017-18. QCC academic deans for the five schools do all the assigning, hiring, supervising, and evaluating 
of all QCC faculty teaching dual enrollment courses.  Resources are in place to assist all instructors teaching 
high school students college credit courses.  An interactive “Instructor Orientation” has been created on 
Blackboard and face-to-face orientations take place twice a year for all instructors.  QCC is a member of the 
National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnership (NACEP). QCC’s Director of Educational Partnerships 
K-12 is on the Board of Directors for the New England Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships 
(NEACEP). NACEP and NEACEP are professional organizations for college and high school partnerships who 
offer college courses to high school students. These organizations work to ensure that college courses 
taught to high school students are as rigorous as courses offered on the sponsoring college campus. In May 
2018, QCC hosted the NEACEP for a professional development conference entitled “Secondary Experiences 
in Concurrent Enrollment and Early College Programs”. Staff and faculty from the New England state’s 
secondary and post-secondary schools attended the conference sessions. In a continuing effort to evaluate 
and improve its dual enrollment programs, QCC has instituted internal and external Early College/Dual 
Enrollment advisory boards.  The internal Early College Advisory Board consists of members from various 
departments at the College, such as enrollment, advising, faculty, the business office, tutoring services, 
grant funding staff, resources/library representatives, and the Dean of Business, Engineering and 
Technology.  Meetings are held at least twice a year to review the program’s goals and to make necessary 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/qcc_graduates_and_baccalaureate_degrees_report.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/services/career-services
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/attend-college-early-ace-program
https://www.qcc.edu/services/articulated-and-college-credit-courses-earned-high-school/concurrent-enrollment
https://www.qcc.edu/services/articulated-and-college-credit-courses-earned-high-school/concurrent-enrollment
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/gateway-college
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/early-college-pathways
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/attend-college-early-ace-program
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/gateway-college
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/early-college-pathways
https://www.qcc.edu/academics/high-school-student-programsoptions/early-college-pathways
http://www.nacep.org/
http://www.nacep.org/neacep/
http://www.nacep.org/neacep/
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recommendations. The external Early College Advisory Board, consisting of administration and staff from 
Central MA high schools, was established as a result of a follow up on the Regional Institute for Pathways 
to College meeting held in May 2017.   
 
The Massachusetts Department of Higher Education (DHE) has launched an Early College Initiative and QCC 
has applied to the DHE for Early College Program Designation in partnership with the Worcester Public 
Schools and Worcester State University. QCC and its partners have received Early College Preliminary 
Designation and have applied for Final Designation.  Applications for both phases of the process must be 
approved by the Department of Higher Education and the Department of Elementary and Secondary 
Education in order to be recognized by the state as a model in the Early College Designation Program. As 
part of the preliminary grant, QCC has received funding that will be used to pay stipends for QCC/WPS 
faculty to participate in the Early College Planning Committee. The planning committee will work in 
subgroups to address the challenges and needs of the Early College Program. The Early College Program has 
several “Guided Pathways” and will have QCC faculty from those Pathways represented on the Planning 
Team. For this program WPS students in the 9th, 10th, and 11th grades will take 3 noncredit courses 
(Introduction to College and Career Readiness 9th Grade, College and Career Readiness I in the 10th grade, 
and College and Career Readiness II in the 11th Grade). All of these courses will count toward their high 
school requirements and have been approved by the WPS School Committee. In the 12th Grade, students 
will come to QCC, as part of their school day, and take credit courses matched to the Guided Pathway that 
they have chosen. This will substantially increase the number of both dual enrolled students --high school 
students who take courses on our campus—and concurrent enrolled students—students who take college 
credit courses in their high schools. Pathways were chosen based on central Massachusetts labor market 
indicators (http://www.cmwib.org/labor-market-information). The establishment of this Early College 
program will however need to address the concerns of department coordinators and faculty such as faculty 
input into the planning for this novel curriculum delivery, faculty consultation on course assignments, and 
sufficient support for faculty in administering curriculum in the high school classroom. To address these 
concerns, an Early College Planning Committee, funded through the MA Early College Initiative, has been 
established. In addition to staff from WPS and WSU, 22 QCC staff have been asked to participate; 9 of the 
22 are QCC faculty. Input from faculty and staff will be utilized to create policies and procedures that will 
ensure the delivery of a quality Early College Program. 
 

 For many of our students, online courses are essential to their academic and career pathway for balancing 
work and/or family demands with making progress in completing their academic programs.  In the spring 
2017 Student Experience Survey, approximately 25% of students report missing class due to transportation 
problems. 71% express an interest in more online or hybrid classes.  21% report working for pay for 6 to 20 
hours a week, and 48% work more than 20 hours a week. Most report having a computer and internet 
access at home (96%). The percentage of total credits taken as online courses has increased steadily over 
the last five years (12.8 % in 2013 and 15.2% in 2017). In response to student interest in the online modality, 
QCC has continued to build its distance learning program. From fall 2013 to fall 2017, 43 additional faculty 
completed Quality Matters and course adaptation training. As of fall 2017, there were 186 courses adapted 
for online delivery. The college has adopted Educational Assessment Outcomes (EAC) to ensure that courses 
and programs offered for credit through distance learning are consistent with QCC’s educational objectives. 
Further, the college has been investing in the distance learning support team by adding an additional 
Instructional Designer and a Blackboard System Administrator (Fall 2017). The instructional design team 
has implemented orientation materials and self-help job aids to which faculty and students have continuous 
access. The college has also integrated Starfish Early Alert with Blackboard to ensure faculty have the tools 
to keep students engaged. To further leverage Starfish the college established the “Online Liaison” service 
and the Blackboard tutoring center to assist faculty in helping students at risk.  As reported in the Standard 

http://www.mass.edu/strategic/ec_home.asp
http://www.mass.edu/strategic/ec_prelim.asp
http://www.cmwib.org/labor-market-information
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/help/starfish
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8 data form, the average course completion rate for online courses of 73% for fall 2017 is an improvement 
compared to fall 2014 (71%). However, the rate is still lower than the overall average of 80.7%. 
Improvements in instructional technology described in Standard 7 along with enhancements described 
above are expected to increase the completion rate to 75% for fall 2018, and within three years, should 
match the overall rate.    

Providing a Year Long Course Schedule 
In the 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 4: The Academic Program (p. 41), a projection was included to 
develop an academic year course schedule, with the intention of enhancing student planning. Academic 
Affairs has been working on making this change. The process of developing the course schedule is 
cumbersome without scheduling software. Additionally, the academic deans utilize a database for 
scheduling that does not “speak” to Jenzabar. There are plans to correct this problem, but in the 
meantime the deans have endeavored to plan the entire academic year schedule and make that available 
for student planning.  Efforts have been greatly enhanced by improved Cognos reporting as described in 
Standard 2: Planning and Evaluation in this report. There has been concern that students avoid early 
registration as many course faculty assignments are initially indicated as “to be announced”. The deans 
are currently working with the faculty to change the timeframe for course assignments for both full time 
and part time faculty in order to provide this information to registering students much sooner. 

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Expand Early College programming (1.1)
• Enhance transfer pathways (1.2)
• Ensure the continued success of the Program and Process Team 4.1)
• Expand and promote credit for prior learning including faculty training and information sessions

(2.1)
• Increase alternative course delivery modes, including use of short terms, programs that can be

completed online, and offering synchronous courses at multiple locations (1.1, 2.5)
• Based upon market analysis, determine and implement a relevant program mix at all locations (2.3)

STANDARD FIVE – STUDENTS 

As an open access institution, the QCC student body is highly diverse in college readiness, goals and need 
for support services. While this diversity defines and enriches QCC as an educational institution, it also 
presents many challenges. Primary concerns expressed by the College in the 2013 NEASC Self Study 
Standard 6: Students included retention, graduation rates, and participation of new students in 
orientation events. Projections for how to make improvements were presented and were consistent with 
the College’s 2014-2017 Strategic Plan. The key features in the projections all relate to retention and are 
discussed in this section. The topics addressed here include 1) enhancing student orientation, 2) 
improving English and math placement, and 3) developing an early alert system. The projection regarding 
improvements to the website and adopting social media strategies as that relates to student success is 
discussed in Standard 9: Integrity, Transparency and Public Disclosure.  Development of a plan for 
outcomes assessment of student services and student life was also a 2013 projection in Standard 6 (p. 69), 
and is addressed in the current Standard 8: Educational Effectiveness.  Further issues around retention, 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/program_process_team.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/student-life
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graduation rate and enrollment are addressed in this report in almost every standard, and more 
specifically in Item of Emphasis # 1 and Standard 8.   

 
Enhancing Student Orientation 
Ensuring that all incoming students attend orientation sessions continues to be a challenge. In 2017, 50% 
of new students attended an orientation on campus. There is ongoing discussion regarding mandatory 
orientation and this has been recommended by Campus Works (consulting firm described in Item of 
Emphasis #1). However, the College has not yet moved in this direction. To improve contact with new 
students, live streaming of orientation was recently initiated. In implementing the 2018-2022 Strategic 
Plan, the College will launch a new advising and admissions process for all incoming students entering the 
college in the spring of 2019 that has been called StartRIGHT. Designed by a cross-functional team, this 
onboarding process will streamline admissions, registration for courses, and teach students success skills 
upon initial entry into the institution.  This change allows for a new advising model which up until now has 
been focused mostly on getting students registered for courses. A new model that will coincide with 
StartRIGHT will allow for more time to plan short and long term goals, career goals, connect students to 
other services as needed (such as tutoring) and the incorporation of tools such as Kuder. 
 
Up until the spring semester of 2018, the College offered two courses focused on orientation and career 
readiness: ORT 110: Strategies for College & Career for students testing into developmental English; and 
PSY 115: Self-Assessment & Career Planning for student who were ready for college-level English. These 
courses were taken primarily by students in the General Studies program. As a result of research around 
best practices and a Recommendation Report from a member of the Psychology Department, these 
courses have been replaced by a newly designed course: FYE 101: First Year Experience with no 
prerequisites so that students in the lower developmental courses do not have to delay their orientation. 
Campus Works has recommended that all incoming students take this course. However, there are some 
programs which already have a high number of required credits and it may be difficult to add another 
course. There may be ways to incorporate orientation topics into the entry level courses for these 
programs. Additionally, faculty who have developed this course are working closely with the advising 
staff, an essential collaboration which was not in place regarding the previous orientation courses. 
 
Improving English and Math Placement 
A major concern for the College is the high number of students who must take developmental math and 
English courses before they can move on to most college level courses. The delay can serve as a barrier to 
higher education and may be directly related to lack of persistence for many students. For example, of the 
students enrolled in the developmental course, Basic Mathematics Skills (MAT 090), in fall 2014 only 13% 
were able to complete a college level math course by the fall 2017 semester. Similarly in English, of 
students enrolled in Basic Reading Skills (ENG 090) and/or Basic Writing Skills (ENG 095) in fall 2014 only 
41% completed a college level English course by the fall of 2017 (all data obtained from QCC Office of 
Institutional Research and Planning). The College has however seen a significant reduction of the 
percentage of new students who must take developmental courses. In FY18 25% of first year students 
were enrolled in developmental English and 28% in developmental math (Standard 5 data form). In FY 13 
those numbers were 36% and 57% respectively as reported in the 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 6 Data 
Forms. Nevertheless it must remain a goal for the College to ensure that students are placed accurately 
and that mechanisms are in place to help them to move on to college level courses as efficiently as 
possible. Multiple action items of the 2018-2022 Strategic Plan address this goal. 
 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/startright.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/fye_recommendation_report.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/fye_101_syllabus.doc
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
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Currently for placement, all students are required to take the Accuplacer Placement Test before 
registering if they do not already have college level English or math courses on their transcripts from 
other institutions. Advisors discuss the student’s placement scores at length upon entry into the 
institution, culminating in their course placement, or, if appropriate, a recommendation for a retest. 
There are concerns that Accuplacer testing is not the best strategy for placing students into the 
appropriate English and math courses. Additionally, studies indicate that standardized test disadvantage 
minority and underserved populations (https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED564294.pdf). The faculty in 
both English and Math departments have been evaluating Accuplacer tests, including the new versions 
that will be launched next year.  The math faculty have determined that the questions in Accuplacer do 
not match their curriculum. As a result, the department is developing its own placement exams and study 
guides. A Math Alternative Placement Committee has been meeting since April. This is a cross functional 
committee with representation from the math department, advising, Information Systems, Testing, 
Disability Services, Instructional Design, Adult Basic Education, and the Registrar. A similar committee for 
English and will begin meeting over the summer. In addition to evaluating Accuplacer, these committees 
are also considering multiple measures for determining placement in English and math courses.  
Statewide, the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education (DHE) initiated a pilot project in 2014 in 
which public MA colleges and universities campuses were encouraged to place students in college math 
course based on their high school record (GPA and high school math courses taken). This pilot is ongoing 
and based on the findings a final report is expected by the end of 2018 with recommendations by the DHE 
on the use of high school GPA and transcripts. QCC has participated in this pilot and as a result, fewer 
students are assigned to developmental math.  

 
Once students are placed into a developmental course, there are a variety of strategies to assist them in 
moving forward to college level in an efficient manner. A significant barrier that has been removed is the 
exit exam for developmental courses. As called for in the College’s 2014-2017 Strategic Plan Objective 1.4, 
both the English and Math Departments have removed the requirement for students in developmental 
courses  to pass an exit exam, regardless of their course grade, in order to move on to the next level. Final 
exam grades are now incorporated into the course grade.  
 
The QCC Math Department began running accelerated math courses in the fall of 2015, utilizing the 
College’s shorten terms (7 ½ weeks within the 15 week fall and spring semesters). Accelerated courses 
provide students the opportunity to complete math courses in a shorter period of time and to graduate 
sooner. As with the summer schedules, the course syllabus, content and learning objectives for an  
accelerated course are identical to that of a 15- week traditional course.  A study by the Office of 
Institutional Research and Planning show that students perform as well or better than students in the 
traditional 15 week class schedule. While the accelerated courses are advantageous for student success 
and completion, there is a need for improved marketing and advising strategies. Math Boot Camps and 
Accelerated Writing Workshops are free short course offered to developmental students in the summer to 
assist them in moving to college level courses. The Math Department utilizes the Emporium model that 
allows students to accelerate through developmental math in one semester.  
 
As called for in the 2014-2017 Strategic Plan Objective 1.4, the English Department in 2015 redesigned 
their curriculum in the introductory courses to better align with transfer institutions. This change involved 
reducing the requirement from three introductory college writing courses to two.  A technical writing 
course was developed at an introductory level for use in various technical programs in place of a second 
writing course. Additional efforts to shorten the time students spend in developmental English include the 

https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED564294.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/alt_sched_student_sucess_vs_trad_lec_online_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/alt_sched_student_sucess_vs_trad_lec_online_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-17.pdf
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use of co-requisite remediation which allows students to co-enroll in a developmental course partnered 
with the college level English course. A 2013 to 2016 pilot of this Accelerated Learning Program  showed 
that co-enrolled students performed better than students placed only in the introductory English course. 
The results of this pilot has allowed the English Department to receive a grant from the state to fund 
scaling up of the program to include more students. The grant is also supporting faculty to develop a 
bridge course for ESL students with the hope to expedite their admission into an academic program.   

Developing an Early Alert System 
The Starfish Early Alert program, adopted by the college in 2014 as a retention tool, allows faculty and staff 
to track student progress, to refer students to services they need, and to notify academic advisers and 
faculty of at-risk students. Starfish is also being utilized by the Financial Aid Office and the Advising Center 
to more efficiently serve students during “Walk-In” office hours.  According to a report published by QCC’s 
Office of Institutional Research and Planning in February 2015, during the fall 2015 semester, nearly half of 
the course sections used Starfish. Seventy-one percent of students enrolled received some form of Starfish 
communication related to attendance, grades, participation, referral to an advisor or other services, online 
login concerns, or positive feedback/kudos. A report from the Starfish Implementation and Management 
Team on use in the 2016-2017 academic year noted that faculty raised more than 48,000 flags to alert at-
risk students that they need to take action to improve their classroom performance, and also to alert people 
in the student’s network, such as academic advisors. Almost 600 referrals were made to academic support 
services, such as the math and writing centers and tutors.  

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Improve the English and math placement for students through the use of multiple measures (2.1,
2.7) 

• Reduce the time spent in developmental courses through approaches such as co-requisite
remediation and short terms (1.2, 2.7)

• Expand usage of Starfish as an early alert system (1.3)
• Improve the transition of ESL students into ENG 101
• Improve new student orientation through use of FYE 101: First Year Experience in more programs

and fully implement StartRIGHT (1.1, 1.2, 1.3)

STANDARD SIX – TEACHING, LEARNING AND SCHOLARSHIP 

Quinsigamond Community College remains committed to providing students with quality learning 
opportunities. Projections in the 2013 Self-Study for Standard 5: Faculty (p. 52) included 1) efforts to 
integrate and engage adjunct faculty, and 2) support for professional development to strengthen 
academic programs.  Progress on these projections will be addressed in this standard.  A projection 
regarding the need to increase full-time faculty and increase diversity is addressed in the Item of Emphasis 
#2 in this report. Monitoring the new governance structure to ensure appropriate faculty roles is 
discussed in Standard 3: Organization and Governance. 

Integrating and Engaging Adjunct Faculty 
Adjunct faculty teach approximately 70% of all QCC courses. Since the majority of full time faculty 
contracts are for the day time only, courses that are offered on the weekend and after 4 pm on weekdays 
are almost entirely taught by adjunct faculty. Adjunct faculty are invited to all College functions including 
department and School meetings. Seats on governance committees are reserved for them and they are 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/baltimore_model_accelerated_learning_program_comparison_report_fa13-sp16_002.pdf
https://www.starfishsolutions.com/home/starfish-enterprise-success-platform/starfish-early-alert/
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/starfish_student_survey_report_fall_2015_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/starfish_student_survey_report_fall_2016_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance
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encouraged to serve.  The part- time faculty, as members of one of the five Schools, are included in the 
online course adaptation proposal process and indeed they teach about half of all online classes.  A yearly 
orientation is provided specifically for the new adjunct faculty.  However, according to the recent NEASC 
Faculty Staff Survey Report 2017, many (67%) indicate that they are unable to attend meetings on campus 
and have little or no time for any college service such as committee work. A majority (67%) do report that 
they are able to take advantage of professional development opportunities. It is encouraging to see that 
most feel they receive the information that they need from the College (86%) and can work productively 
with their academic department (80%).  Adjunct faculty have one classroom evaluation before gaining 
seniority and none thereafter unless requested by the Administration; student evaluations are conducted 
each semester.  According to the survey, 1/3 of adjuncts report they do not understand the processes 
used for evaluation of their work, and only 51% of part-time faculty say their work is evaluated in a way 
that leads to improvement.  Thus, while QCC has an orderly (and contractual) process for faculty 
evaluation, this is potentially an area for continued growth – in particular, this is one place where the 
College might focus efforts to better engage and support the adjunct faculty.  There is the reality that 
many of the evening adjunct faculty have day time commitments that prevent them from attending day 
time events on campus. Efforts could be made to provide more evening events for their participation. 
Noting the concern regarding adjunct faculty engagement with the College, the revised Academic 
Planning and Review (APR) process includes an objective stating that “recognizing the importance of and 
continued reliance on part-time faculty for the delivery of quality programming and instruction, (consider 
how they) can be included more often and effectively in academic planning and curriculum/instructional 
quality improvement efforts.” Several departments who have completed APR have ensured the role of 
adjuncts in the planning process. Adjuncts are specifically invited to all department sessions, some 
sessions are held in the evening, and summer APR workshops generally have good attendance by both full 
time and part time faculty. It appears that the most effective engagement with adjuncts faculty occurs at 
the department level rather than college wide. If this is the mechanism that works best, every effort 
should be made to encourage their engagement in this manner. 
 
Supporting Professional Development 
As a community college, the focus of expectations for faculty is instruction. In terms of professional 
development, on-campus opportunities maintain that focus through the College’s Center for Academic 
Excellence. Workshops and trainings are increasingly centered on navigating technology and managing 
the demands and opportunities of outcomes assessment and curricular mapping (described in Standard 8: 
Educational Effectiveness). An additional Coordinator of Instructional Technology and Assessment was 
hired, reporting to the newly appointed Dean for Digital Learning and the Center for Academic Excellence 
(CAE).  The dean initiated review of the mission statement of the CAE, ensuring its alignment with the 
mission of the College. That mission states “the Center for Academic Excellence is committed to 
enhancing student success via a well-coordinated series of professional growth and development 
activities that lead to highly effective instructional practices.  Specific strands within the Center focus on 
stages of faculty career development, scholarship of teaching/reflective practice, instructional 
design/technology, assessment, and new beginnings and renewal”. Within that context the center has 
strived to create a cultural shift that embraces innovation and assessment by assisting faculty with 
securing funding and Instructional design assistance to experiment with new and promising pedagogical 
approaches for the classroom. Further the CAE assists with exposure to all faculty and staff to these 
projects by sponsoring three annual events; Faculty Innovation Showcase, Assessment Academy, and the 
Teaching with Technology Conference. These events involve presentations of internal innovations as well 
as pulling in external resources to further generate new thinking within the faculty. Workshops are held 
through the year on a variety of topics, including assistance in the use of Blackboard and Starfish. The 
Dean of Digital Learning and the CAE also oversees all of the training for faculty as they adapt courses for 
online. Working in conjunction with the CAE, the Writing in the Disciplines (WID) coordinator has 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/neasc_fac_staff_survey_report_by_pt_fac_.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/neasc_fac_staff_survey_report_by_pt_fac_.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/apr_guidebook_for_programs.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/apr_guidebook_for_programs.pdf
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conducted varied focus groups and workshops to aid faculty across the campus in assignment design, 
assessment and goal setting. The 2013 projection concerning professional development stated that the 
College will support faculty development, at a minimum of existing levels of funding. Indeed as budget 
cuts have taken place across all divisions of the College, the funding for the Staff Development Committee 
has not been reduced. Funding for projects related to the previous Strategic Plan were funneled this past 
year to support academic department efforts in Student Success projects. In the next fiscal year, funds will 
be available to support projects related to the new strategic plan, some of which may include professional 
development. Funds to support faculty projects that are proposed in the Academic Planning and Review 
process were not cut for the next fiscal year. It is important to note that while faculty are increasingly 
developing shared learning objectives and even sharing texts, contractually, a work area or program 
cannot institute such initiatives without participation from faculty.  Even with the addition of student 
learning outcomes to full-time syllabi, there has been no move to link assessment of such outcomes to 
faculty evaluation.  Notably, 90% of FT faculty and 91% of PT faculty respondents report that the 
institution protects and fosters academic freedom in the Faculty/Staff Survey for NEASC 2017. 

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Develop strategies that encourage adjunct faculty to participate in work areas and governance
(4.1)

• Promote excellence in student-centered teaching strategies with support through APR funding,
strategic planning grants, and Center for Academic Excellence initiatives (2.1, 4.2)

STANDARD SEVEN – INSTITUTIONAL RESOURCES 

In the 2013 NEASC Self-Study, the College described concerns for providing comparable services at offsite 
locations and online, for dealing with aging buildings, the ability to provide technological and physical 
resources for new program development, and the impact of decreasing enrollment on revenue (Standard 
7: Library and Other Information Resources [p. 70], Standard 8: Physical and Technological Resources [p. 
78], and Standard 9: Financial Resources [p. 85]). In light of these concerns, the College made the 
following projections: 1) review the budget process and align tactical and long term financial planning 
with strategic direction and a focus on mission critical functions, 2) form a cross functional team to 
consider space concerns and back-fill, 3) update the Master plan and the Technology plan, 4)  Improve 
library services especially to offsite locations and distance education students, 5) expand technology 
training for online teaching, use in classroom and outcomes assessment.  Issues related to Human 
Resources are discussed in Item of Emphasis # 2.  

Reviewing the Budget Process 
The financial stability of the College has remained constant since 2012.  The QCC Executive Team has 
provided the Board of Trustees with a balanced budget every year.  As a result of the declining enrollment 
cited in this report, collaborative efforts have been initiated to decrease expenditures and seek new 
sources of revenue. The College has benefited from an increase in state funded appropriations of $7.3M 
over the last 5 years. Additionally, tuition revenue has increased slightly despite declining enrollment as 
student fees have risen. Graph 1 illustrates the changes that have taken place since FY 2005. 

QCC has worked diligently to spend down on all capital leases and outstanding payables. The College has 
been able to decrease its debt percentage significantly over the last several years. It has reduced 
approximately 50% in this area with the closing of all capital leases as well.  Unfortunately with the 
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integration of GASB 68 in FY15, the Pension Liability has increased our long-term liabilities going forward 
by approximately $15M. 
 
 
 
Graph 1 

 
 
Along with the effort to decrease expenditures, the College has sought other revenue streams. As noted 
in the 2013 NEASC Self- Study, a successful capital campaign was conducted to raise funds for the new 
Healthcare and Workforce Development Center in downtown Worcester and the QuEST Center on the 
main campus. Additional funding from the Massachusetts Life Sciences Center supported the purchase of 
equipment for science laboratories in both centers.  These revenue sources along with other grant awards 
itemized in a grant funding report total over $27M during the past five years. The QCC Development 
Department has put forward a plan to increase donor and alumni engagement, coordinate fundraising 
strategies and development activities, increase Foundation Board development and engagement, and 
increase grant applications and awards.   

With the challenges of a declining enrollment, the ongoing increase in unfunded salary raises, and the 
constant rising cost of maintenance in both the IT and Facilities areas, the College has had to review the 
budget process to ensure financial stability.  The new president has initiated a process that is more 
integrative and strategic. A base budget is first created by the Chief Financial Officer and the Assistant 
Vice President for Finance/Comptroller, with recommended cuts to cost centers based on projected 
enrollment in the next fiscal year. Vice presidents confer with their departments regarding the projected 
needs for the next fiscal year and strategies for dealing with potential budget cuts. In all discussions, an 
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emphasis is placed on aligning spending priorities with the Strategic Plan. Requests accompanied by 
rationale from each area are submitted to the Executive Team where final decisions are made 
collaboratively before submission of a proposed budget to the Board of Trustees. 

Once the budget has been developed, there is a conscientious process to control budgetary spending 
through the procurement process yet allowing the necessary spending to occur.  The procurement/ 
accounts payable process is constantly being revised to help aid departments on spending with the 
assistance of the purchasing staff.  All purchase requests are reviewed for budgetary issues to ensure the 
budget is maintained on a department to department basis. The business office continues to monitor full 
time salaries, part time salaries and departmental budgets to ensure the college continues to meet it 
budgetary goals annually.   
 
As noted above, the newly developed Strategic Plan will guide spending priorities. As the plan is finalized 
for FY 2019 implementation, $200K in funding has been allocated to support its action items. The College 
is dedicated to the plan and will allocate additional funding during FY19 if the opportunity arises.  The 
budget processing going forward will continue to fund a strategic budget that is concurrent with the 
specific tasks for each fiscal year. 
 
Considering Space Concerns 
Since 2013, the College has expanded its space to meet the needs of healthcare and STEM programs. In 
2014 the Carberry Center for Healthcare and Workforce Development opened in downtown Worcester, 
MA. This leased facility provides 72,409 square feet of space housing healthcare programs (except Dental 
Hygiene and Dental Assisting) and the Workforce Development Center. The QuEST Center (Quinsigamond 
Engineering, Science and Technology) opened on the West Boylston Street campus in 2016 with cutting 
edge technology and facilities to enhance STEM programs. QuEST was a state funded project totaling over 
$23M. A grant from the Massachusetts Life Sciences Center was essential for equipment purchases. 
Another major project on campus was the renovation of the Ahlfors Building to more truly serve as a 
Center for Academic Excellence ($504K). The opening of these facilities required careful planning of the 
use of the vacated spaces. Initially, the movement of staff located at two leased locations was a cost 
saving measure, as well as a benefit for staff to be located on the main campus. A space committee was 
formed consisting of the Executive Team and the Executive Director of Facilities and the Facility Manager 
to assess space needs and align those needs with the remaining space that was available.  The offices, labs 
and classrooms that were occupied by the Healthcare programs are now well utilized to the benefit of 
students, faculty and staff.  These new spaces include a new Veteran’s Center, specialized classrooms for 
Honors classes and for Early Childhood Education courses, additional space for the Phi Theta Kappa Honor 
Society, an improved testing room, improved office space for faculty, a classroom large enough for Art 
classes using easels, a Psychology lab, and faculty meeting room for union and senate meetings. The 
space committee continues to deal with challenges on campus. Currently, plans are underway to establish 
Student Success Center in the Harrington Learning Center which will require careful planning for moving a 
variety offices between buildings. 
 
Updating the Master Plan and Technology Plan 
The 2015 Master Plan Update conducted by the NBBJ Architectural Firm examined QCC’s programmatic 
space needs and institutional aspirations. The recommendations in this plan were based on the 
expectation of a new academic building that was in the design phase with the Commonwealth’s Division 
of Capitol Asset Management and Maintenance (DCAMM). Following submission of this 2015 plan, the 
project for the new building was cancelled as capitol priorities at the state level were being reconsidered.  
While some recommendations are relevant, the Master Plan will need to be updated and adjusted for the 
new trends in enrollment. For example recommendations for classroom and teaching lab needs were 
based on a projected increase in enrollment. Classroom usage needs to be reconsidered based on current 
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and projected enrollment numbers. Projects detailed within the plan included; creation of a one stop 
student services area, renovations to the Administration Building and Surprenant Hall, ADA upgrade to 
Hebert Auditorium and the Athletic Center, a new Child Study Center, and improvements to parking.  The 
College has worked closely with DCAMM to address several of these projects, including the following that 
have been completed since submission of the 2015 Master Plan; roof maintenance for the Administration 
Building and Athletic Center, elevator replacements in the Administration Building and Surprenant Hall, 
stair repair in the Administration Building, and HVAC overhaul in Surprenant Hall.    
         
To update the Technology Plan in 2015, the QCC Information Technology Department developed their “IT 
Vision, Goals, Strategies, and Activities: 3 to 5 Year Plan (with all projects)”. Major challenges for the 
College include an increased need for automation, pressure on resources, coordinating multiple locations, 
information security threats, and enhancing teaching and learning technologies. With these challenges in 
mind, strategic priorities were developed and all IT activities were aligned to the priorities. In 2017 
CampusWorks was contracted by the College to conduct an assessment with the objective of 
understanding the current state of technology at QCC focusing on critical next steps, leadership, and 
support for institutional strategic objectives. This assessment was meant for internal use in planning 
improvements for the IT Department. After meeting with more than 30 staff members, reviewing detailed 
survey responses from staff, reviewing IT documents and QCC facilities, CampusWorks provided detailed 
findings, recommendations, and opportunities for improvement.  Moving forward, IT will align projects 
with the new QCC strategic plan that is currently under development and will collaboratively define next 
steps. Some areas to be addressed near term include IT governance structure and process, project 
management and technology Inventory and life-cycle management improvements. 
 
Improving Library Services 
The library has begun to shift funds from print books and serials to online eBooks and databases.  The 
incorporation of Chat, email and phone reference services are being utilized to service students that are 
online or at remote locations.  Continual work to improve instructions on the website are key to assist 
remote students in taking advantage of these services. Additionally remote students have benefited by 
having a better selection of online research guides (Libguides) available on library website.  QCC is a 
founding member of a new library network called HELM (Higher Education Libraries of 
Massachusetts).  QCC has joined with five other community colleges and the Massachusetts College of 
Liberal Arts to create HELM, which will focus exclusively on the needs of academic libraries.  QCC will 
leave CWMARS, a predominantly public library network. This change will allow alignment with peer 
Massachusetts public institutions of higher education to work in a more strategic fashion and have a 
stronger voice in network decision and policy making. Other academic libraries are expressing interest in 
HELM and the network is likely to expand in the near future.  The result will be a broader networked 
library collection for QCC students, faculty and staff.   
 
Expanding Technology Training 
During the summer of 2017 the college spent $584,000 to upgrade the hardware in the computerized 
classrooms and labs so they could accommodate Windows 10 and Office 2016. The College continues to 
use Blackboard as the LMS. This tool is used for online, blended and face to face courses. The integration 
between Jenzabar CX and Blackboard allow for automated creation of course sections and enrollment. 
Further, the LTI (Learning Tool Interoperability) integration between Blackboard and Starfish allow single 
sign-on access for students and faculty. Recent Enhancements to Blackboard include “Atomic Learning” 
that allows faculty to embed video content within their course. In 2017 the college adopted the 
“Respondus” Lockdown browser that provides secure online testing. This is currently being piloted with 
the Nursing program. As we move forward this will be adopted by other academic programs. In 2018 the 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/tech_plan_2015.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/tech_plan_2015.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/services/library


Quinsigamond Community College 
Fifth-Year Interim Report – August 2018 Page 26 of 50 

college implemented Blackboard ALLY to provide the faculty with a tool that assesses the accessibility of 
online materials.  

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Update the Master Plan to be aligned with the Strategic Plan and consider enrollment changes,
including consideration of additional instructional sites (1.4, 5.2)

• Access the current IT structure and implement a comprehensive improvement plan (1.4, 5.2)
• Increase the number of faculty trained in online learning and increase the number of programs

that can be delivered 100% online (1.1)

STANDARD EIGHT REFLECTIVE ESSAY ON EDUCATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 

Since its 2013 self-study, Quinsigamond Community College has been committed to progress toward the 
sustainable design, delivery, and assessment of student success and student learning efforts. The college 
accomplishes these goals via a culture of purposeful, evidence-aware, improvement-focused practices. 
The college supports cross-functional collaboration on student learning and student success. The 
progressive implementation of these practices integrates student learning and student success in ways 
that reduce barriers to collaboration and strengthen both processes. As campus best practices emerge, 
the college institutionalizes efforts to generate, act upon, and share evidence of their effectiveness. 
Bringing these efforts to scale and continually assessing them for improvements at course, program, and 
institutional levels is a priority going forward. The institutional context within which these efforts occurs 
reflects systematic attention to purposeful, evidence-aware, improvement-focused practices, as 
addressed in the 2018-2022 Strategic Plan. 

Introduction: Through-lines, 2013-2015 
The 2013 self-study provided guidance that reinforced existing directions for measuring student learning 
outcomes and using the results to inform decision-making and continuous improvement. It also focused 
attention on achieving retention goals, with a focus on retention’s impact on the college’s achievement of 
performance-based benchmarks for state financial appropriations. This essay focuses on retention 
initiatives, as performance-based benchmarks are no longer a priority of the Commonwealth. In response, 
the college’s 2014-17 Strategic Plan included areas of emphasis from the 2013 self-study, as expressed in 
Strategic Priority 1.0 (p.2):  

QCC will help students realize their potential, facilitate student success, and create and sustain a 
student centered learning environment at all campus sites where doors to opportunity are open 
and success (from the point of entry into the College to completion/graduation) is assured 
through delivery of high quality teaching and learning and effective, proactive academic and 
student support services. 

Specific strategic objectives and key actions addressed in this essay include strengthening students’ first 
year experience (Objective 1.2); student engagement and ongoing support to completion (Objective 1.3 
on p. 2); and student learning outcomes assessment (Objective 1.6 on p.5).  

The college’s 2015 NEASC progress report (p.8) described progress on both the student learning 
assessment and retention and completion trajectories. In particular, the progress report explained three 
approaches that addressed the concerns of the NEASC team. These included: revising the long standing 
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academic program review process into an academic planning and review (APR) process for all academic 
programs, departments and disciplines; providing faculty with professional development and 
technological support needed in order to implement assessment plans; and updating the goals of the 
general education outcomes assessment team and reconfiguring this committee as the college has refined 
and focused its student learning outcomes assessment approaches This essay will include examples of 
continued progress on each of these three approaches. 
 
The Psychology Department is an early exemplar of the new APR process, and the first to enact evidence-
based improvements based on a discipline’s academic planning and review process. With respect to 
professional development and technological support, Human Services program faculty sought training 
and used Blackboard Outcomes to assess their capstone course sequence and used the results to 
strengthen the capstone project’s alignment to national accreditor standards. The college’s general 
education student learning outcomes assessment efforts were consolidated in 2015 as a team under the 
auspices of the Center for Academic Excellence; its chair reports to the Dean of Digital Learning and the 
Center for Academic Excellence. The QORE (Quinsigamond Outcomes Research for Excellence) team 
participates in campus, state and national-level assessment activities, and develops materials and 
processes that support student learning outcomes assessment in courses, programs and departments 
within Academic Affairs. Further examples of QORE’s work since its inception appear elsewhere in the 
essay, but it is worth mentioning that faculty and professional staff comprising the General Education 
Student Learning Outcomes Assessment (GESLOA) committee and, later, QORE, led the college’s 
participation in the Multi-State Collaborative to Advance Quality Student Learning in 2014 and 2016. 
Careful examination of the data returned from the process and critical consideration of available 
resources led to the decision to invest our energy into campus student learning outcomes assessment 
efforts and the sustainable growth of a culture of evidence-based improvement in the design and delivery 
of learning experiences. The 2015 Progress Report also delineated 2017 retention and graduation goals, 
which are addressed in the analysis section below. 
 
This essay also includes information about intrusive advising and other efforts designed to improve 
student persistence and retention. As Quinsigamond Community College develops unifying efforts in 
educational effectiveness, we have used smaller initiatives, often internally funded and initiated by faculty 
and professional staff, to bring us to the place where, collectively, we can engage in a meaningful, 
inclusive, coherent strategic planning process that prioritizes evidence-aware student learning assessment 
and evidence-responsive student success efforts. 

 
DESCRIPTION: LEARNING FROM RECENT EFFORTS 

 
Driven by mission-appropriate student outcomes, the College prepares students, in ways that are relevant 
and responsive, for advanced education or employment. What students gain as a result of their QCC 
education is made explicit by direct, public statements and carefully constructed learning opportunities 
inside and outside of the classroom.  Course-level student learning outcomes have been required on the 
syllabi of all full-time faculty members since 2016. Collaboratively designed offerings in high-enrollment 
general education courses, such as Psychology 101 and English 101, represent deliberate attempts to 
standardize course content and skill delivery across sections, including those taught by full-time and part-
time faculty. Program student learning outcomes exist for all programs and are published in the college 
catalog. Coordinators and faculty review and revise these as part of the syllabus review process every 
term and as part of the academic planning and review process. Almost all programs have a foundational 
set of electives, including a broad array of liberal arts courses (with some exceptions in the schools of 
Business, Engineering and Technology and Healthcare). New courses and programs are vetted and must 
be approved by department, school, Academic Affairs leadership team, and Learning Council before final 
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approval for the catalog; the same participatory governance process applies to curricular changes 
(participatory governance was inaugurated in 2014).  
 
Review of courses/programs at individual and department levels occurs in formalized program reviews 
approximately every five years. In this process, programs review their goals, curriculum structure and 
course sequencing and update student learning outcomes to meet industry standards and general 
education goals. As called for in the 2010-2015 Strategic Plan objective 1.7, a new, less cumbersome 
review process for academic programs now called Academic Planning and Review (APR), was adopted in 
spring 2013. This plan emphasizes program goals, assessment, curriculum review, learning outcomes and 
the resources needed to support the implementation of plans. In the past, work on a program review 
could linger over several years. In the new process, reports are completed within one academic year, as 
faculty are encourage to develop action plans  for work that will be completed over the subsequent three 
to five years. Academic Affairs has worked closely with the office of Institutional Research and Planning 
(IRaP) to develop a plan for data that will be made available to programs and departments as they begin 
the APR process. Additional data and research can be requested of IRaP. Data collection regarding student 
information has been greatly enhance by the development of Cognos reports. As specified in the 2014-
2017 Strategic Plan (Objective 1.6a), a modified APR for accredited programs was developed so that 
programs with accrediting agencies, such as nursing, can combine those documents with QCC specific 
needs such as resource requests. A variation of the APR was also developed for disciplines/departments 
that do not have programs. Disciplines such as Psychology, Biology, English and Math that provide critical 
coursework in support of various academic programs have completed an extensive review of their course 
offerings, course descriptions and objectives and student learning outcomes. It is expected that all 
programs and disciplines will have completed their APR within the next three years. Since the 
establishment of the new APR process, the following programs have completed or are in the process of 
completing their APR: Biotechnology (2015); General Studies-Healthcare Option (2016); Computer Science 
(2016); Respiratory Care (2017); Liberal Arts (2015); Psychology (2014); English/Developmental English 
(2015); Mathematics (2017); Sociology (in progress); Biology (in progress); Physics (in progress), Pre-
pharmacy (in progress) (English as a Second Language (2018); General Studies (in progress). 
 
QCC's flexible schedule of courses includes multiple sections of most courses offered, especially at 
introductory levels, on all days of the week, in the daytime and evening, at the West Boylston Street 
campus and many at satellite locations. Flexible course modalities, offered within a rigorous course 
adaptation process for online and blended sections, permit a varying degree of online presence of every 
program, with some up to 100%. Courses and programs are delivered within a context of strong student 
support systems, from admissions, advising and financial aid through academic tutoring and co-curricular 
enrichments to, ultimately, transfer and career services. The emphasis throughout is on deliberate and 
clear pathways to success. For the transfer office, this means dedicated commitment among some 
programs to MassTransfer A-B and, for general education, the Mass Transfer Block. For career services, it 
means deliberate and clear options for specific job skill training, including collaboration with program 
coordinators to shepherd students through a wide variety of certificate programs designed for specific 
skills. For programs with internship, co-op and clinical requirements, additional supports exist to prepare 
students for employment in their fields. These pathway options for students are discussed in more detail 
in Standard 4: The Academic Program in this report. 
 
How the college prepares students for advanced education and employment is the context for 
understanding what and how students are learning. While evidence of student learning generally derived 
from curriculum considerations under the aegis of Academic Affairs, the college has innovated some 
intersections between academics and student services that benefit both student learning and student 
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success. In its NEASC Self Study 2013 (p. 4) the college projected the following: 
 

The program review process will be revised and updated to ensure more regular consideration of 
relevant data, consistency in student learning outcomes assessment, and improved 
communication of accomplishment to the college community; a process for comprehensive 
review of departments and disciplines will be finalized.  

 
Since then, academic planning and review has become a vehicle for evidence-aware decision making; that 
is, decision making informed by existing evidence, or by clear intentionality to implement collection of 
evidence based on best practices in disciplines and in student learning outcomes assessment. 
 
Psychology was the first non-program area to undertake the revised APR process, in 2013. The 
department’s work led to a new Associate Degree program, the Liberal Arts in Psychology option, along 
with course-level curriculum revision. A new emphasis on research methods led to new courses in social 
and behavioral statistics and research methods in psychology, and the inauguration of the Psychology 
Center for Excellence, under whose auspice student gain valuable research experience. The Psychology 
Department’s APR also generated an overhaul of two orientation and self-assessment courses. Beginning 
in 2018, these courses will be replaced by a new First Year Experience course that will serve a variety of 
programs. The course and rationale for the change are discussed as part of the effort to enhance student 
orientation in Standard 5: Students of this report.  
 
Recent Efforts in General Education 
General education student learning outcomes activities are led by Quinsigamond Outcomes Research for 
Excellence (QORE), a team launched in 2016 that reports to the Dean of Digital Learning and the Center 
for Academic Excellence. The team is comprised of QORE’s chair (the Academic Assessment Facilitator) as 
well as the Academic Technology Facilitator, a Coordinator of Instructional Design and Assessment, and 
the Coordinator of Library Reference and Instruction. Its mission is to support colleagues in assessment 
endeavors by developing and sharing tools to assess students’ mastery of the college’s General Education 
Student Learning Outcomes: aesthetics, civic literacy, communication skills, ethics, impact of technology, 
information literacy, multiple perspectives, quantitative reasoning, scientific reasoning, and technical 
literacy. Since its inception, the QORE team has been involved in a number of projects, including general 
education goal and student learning outcome revisions, assignment design toolkits, and curriculum 
mapping. As attendees of the 2016 AAC&U Institute for General Education and Assessment, QORE created 
an Action Plan. Its chief element was to instigate a general education curriculum map that will serve to 
describe each general education goal’s level of connection to the performance criteria. At present, the ten 
general education goals are part of all new course and program design and revision. Curriculum mapping 
has taken place as part of the integrative work of digital course template development, such that course 
objectives are aligned with general education student learning outcomes. The digital course template 
process includes alignment of course materials, activities and assessment instruments to learning 
outcomes. This is a robust method of curriculum mapping, though it is admittedly slow and dependent 
upon the energy and resources available to departments. QORE’s work includes revising general 
education goals and outcomes as necessary. It began this work with an Information Literacy student 
learning outcomes revision. In 2015, the Association of College and Research Libraries published a new 
Framework for Information Literacy for Higher Education. This framework reflects the transformation 
Information literacy has undergone since the beginning of the 21st century. Learners at the associate 
degree level are expected to master more than basic skills of information retrieval, evaluation and 
application. Three core factors characterize the new framework: that information literacy comprises 
affective dimensions of learning in addition to specific knowledge practices; that information is a process, 
not merely a product; and that information literacy informs every stage of the inquiry process, from 
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inception to communication of new knowledge. Information Literacy is one of the broadest and most 
widely applied learning goals in QCC’s general education program. Ultimately, the Information Literacy 
goal is about learners developing a reflexive and adaptable orientation to information processes and 
products. This learning process requires a revision to the goal language to read: “Students will engage in a 
reflective process of information discovery, articulate the value of information and its cycle of 
development, and participate responsibly in communities of learning”. QCC’s Alden Library Reference 
Department worked with the QORE team, Instructional Designers and select faculty to develop new 
General Education Student Learning Outcomes for Information Literacy that better reflect the new 
national frameworks. The proposed change to the goal language itself reflects the new frameworks and 
better introduces the Information Literacy Student Learning Outcomes (SLOs). The new learning 
outcomes were presented at meetings of all five schools of the college and public comment was invited. 
Since its adoption, the QCC Library Reference Department has supported the new framework with library 
instruction and professional development.  
 
This revision process also yielded a procedural change for the general education student learning 
outcomes assessment enterprise at the college. Since 2009, campus-wide student learning outcomes, 
performance criteria and descriptors had been presented in rubric form. The cross-functional and 
collaborative nature of the Information Literacy revision and the report from an earlier Information 
Literacy assessment pilot suggested that the rubric format was a barrier to adoption and use. The decision 
was taken to move to a textual format for clarity, adaptability and ease of application. The new format 
includes framing language to situate the learning goal in the context of Quinsigamond Community 
College. It also includes a glossary of relevant terms and reference to the sources the developers used. 
The outcomes themselves are presented as measurable statements followed by clear, specific, 
measurable objectives. These are meant to be as generic and broadly applicable as possible across 
disciplines and functions. They are also models for departments or other groups to adapt to department-
specific assessment efforts. 
 
State level changes drove a revision to the Civic Literacy student learning outcomes in 2017. Created with 
input from core stakeholders, the college’s original 2013 Civic Literacy student learning outcomes draft 
anticipated the Vision Project adding “Preparing Citizens” as a central objective in 2014. In 2016, when 
the state published its Massachusetts Civic Learning and Engagement Assessment Framework, the college 
responded by holding workshops called “Conversations with Colleagues” throughout the 2016-2017 
academic year. These workshops, which were offered by the Center for Academic Excellence, focused on 
broad implications of civic life, civic learning and civic engagement. In fall 2017, QORE convened a cross-
functional team to revise QCC’s campus-wide student learning outcomes for Civic Literacy. Participants in 
the “Conversations with Colleagues” workshops formed the core of the cross-functional Civic Literacy SLO 
revision team, which met weekly between October and December of 2017. For the first time, a QORE-led 
learning outcome initiative included colleagues from outside Academic Affairs (including Student Life, 
Admissions and Career Services) and a student (QORE Toolkit projects have included professional staff 
colleagues from around the College). Given the potential of Civic Literacy to measure student outcomes in 
co-curricular endeavors, this model made sense and was very successful. The goal statement now reads, 
“Students will develop civic knowledge, skills, and dispositions through learning and practice”. The new 
learning outcomes were presented at school meetings and an All College Forum. It will drive the 
development of an assignment design and assessment toolkit that will create a generic assignment frame 
based on the SLOs, along with a grading/assessment rubric, sample assignments, and resources for 
educators and students (it will join writing, oral presentation and visual presentation toolkits). Ideally, the 
toolkit will support course/program civic learning experiences as well as co-curricular learning experiences 
and lifelong learning experiences in many contexts. 
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Projects like those described in this section signal Quinsigamond Community College’s commitment to 
assessment practices that transcend the collection of data for data’s sake. By allowing authentic best 
practices to develop on campus, in the hands of area experts, QCC has continued to build on the promise 
of its earlier work in this area. Across all areas of the institutions, but most notably in Enrollment and 
Student Services, and in Academic Affairs, the college supports retention, persistence and other initiatives 
to promote student learning and student success; the college also gathers evidence of student success 
from these areas. 
 
Recent Efforts in Advising and Student Services 
A recent overhaul of Career, Academic and Personal Success (CAPS) represents intrusive advising as a best 
practice of reaching out to students, particularly those most at risk for attrition, prior to their encounter 
with anticipated difficulties (Strayhorn, 2015). The CAPS relationship includes exploration of career 
pathways and major choice, systemic outreach on a regular basis from one academic advisor, required 
meeting dates prior to registration for the next semester, the creation of a career and academic plan, 
strengths assessment, referrals and resources based on strengths assessment, and personal discussions 
with an advisor assigned to mentor each student participant. CAPS helps students establish achievable 
educational and career related goals and strategies for completing related credit requirements. The CAPS 
Checklist provides a way to monitor progress across four stages, which empower students to take 
increasing control of their planning as they move towards program completion. The use of the intrusive 
advising model allows advisors to take a holistic approach to servicing our most at-risk students. During 
the 2017-18 academic year, CAPS focused on students who tested into a developmental course for the fall 
semester. 
 
The college provides services and resources to students in writing, mathematics and general academic 
areas via its tutoring centers and digital tools such as SmartThinking. A Blackboard Tutoring Center was 
created in 2015 to provide tutoring support and resources to students using Blackboard, and to offer 
students assistance navigating campus systems, including the portal (Q), email (Qmail), and online 
tutoring (SmartThinking). The tutoring centers and their satellite locations use TutorTrac to track student 
usage of the centers and to measure student success within their purview. Data from this documentation 
are used to provide reports to individual faculty, initiatives, departments, programs, and deans. Examples 
include the following: reports to faculty, with student permission, of visits to the Writing Center; tutor 
summary reports for 2015 APR Guidebooks; reports for various program APRs; biweekly reporting to the 
coordinator of the Emporium Math Department courses of student visits for the fourth-hour lab 
requirement; and reports on student participation to entities funded by Perkins grants and the STEM 
Starter Academy. To better serve certain special populations, cohorts are created in TutorTrac each 
semester in order to report visits by students in the following programs and populations: Gateway to 
College, TRIO, and Veterans. The tool also is used to enhance efficiency in scheduling and staffing the 
Tutoring Centers. 
 
Improvements to data collection were made in response to a request for more accurate data about 
tutoring for students in career and technical education programs by the director of the Perkins Grant. The 
change was initiated in the spring of 2014 and was in place for summer 2014. QCC’s tutoring center 
learning managers and IT department worked with Redrock, the TutorTrac parent company, to update the 
software so that students would be able to log in using their course and section. This change has made 
improvements to data collection regarding tutoring use generally. Higher-quality data inform decision-
making about resource allocation and student needs. SmartThinking tutoring is an example of a digital 
tool that has been integrated into students' online course experiences via Blackboard. Its functions 
supplement -- and in the case of some fully online students, replace -- on-site tutoring. Another data 
stream comes into play when Tutoring Center learning managers receive Starfish alerts from faculty 
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referring students to tutoring. A Starfish module was added to TutorTrac for the 2016/2017 contract, and 
the college is working to link SmartThinking/TutorTrac data with Starfish. 
 
The college's vision is a student-centric approach to improve retention and graduation rates by 
emphasizing student persistence. The broader environment is a familiar one in public higher education. 
Rising costs, declining enrollment, changing student demographics, and tighter budgets have contributed 
to a climate focused on student enrollment, student success and completion.  When enrollment at QCC 
was high, institutional policies were created to manage the larger numbers of students. In the summer of 
2014, QCC made efforts to look at retention practices. The college administered a survey to develop a 
better understanding of the initiatives designed to help students succeed at QCC. The survey responses 
showed that the college hosted over 40 retention initiatives targeting specific populations or programs 
across the institution. The largest number of initiatives supported goal attainment (36%), followed by 
advising (11%), orientation (7%), student engagement/creating a welcoming environment (7%) and 
tutoring (7%). Under the leadership of the new college president, the Student Success Task Force and the 
college as a whole is seeking to reverse the declining enrollment trend by reducing obstacles to students’ 
success as described in Item of Emphasis #1 of this report. 
 
Among current success initiatives at QCC, mentoring stands out as an area of particular emphasis and 
potential. Faculty and staff serve as mentors in the Brothers & Keepers male retention initiative and S.H.E. 
(Support, Help, & Encourage), a women's mentoring program), as well as the Perkins Mentoring and 
Coaching Program. Phi Theta Kappa students mentor Burncoat High School AVID (Advancement Via 
Individual Determination) students, and the president’s efforts mentoring former foster youth in their 
transition to college and through college offer a model for further development of mentoring initiatives. 
Expanding the mentoring program is a primary recommendation of the Enrollment Management Plan to 
improve retention and is discussed further in Item of Emphasis # 1 of this report. Other retention and 
persistence efforts are associated with particular departments or programs. An example is the STEM 
Starter Academy, a state-funded initiative to support community college efforts at all fifteen campuses to 
inform, engage, recruit, retain, and graduate significantly more students in STEM. The primary goal is to 
graduate more community college students with STEM degrees and certificates, so they can either enter 
the workforce or transfer to a four-year institution. The secondary goal is to recruit more students into 
the STEM pipeline at the community colleges. Since the inception of this program in 2014, STEM 
enrollments at QCC have increased by 18% and student persistence is above the overall average for QCC 
students as discussed later in the essay (Retention and Graduation Evidence).  Disability Services’ GRIT 
(Get Ready In Time) offers training prior to the semester’s start for students with disabilities in the various 
software and technology they will use their first semester at QCC, such as Qmail, the “Q”, Blackboard 
Learn, Starfish, netiquette, and Read&Write Gold. Many programs, such as Math Boot Camp, Brothers & 
Keepers, S.H.E., and the Online Liaison Service have been successful programs, but the college has 
encountered difficulty bringing these programs to scale (or in the case of the online liaison, extending this 
service from online to face-to-face and blended classes). Moving forward, the college is striving to 
consolidate programs and to be more intentional and systematic in program delivery to bring these to 
scale. 
 
Recent Efforts in Curriculum 
The online course proposal and adaptation process is another area where the college supports academic 
rigor via high-quality professional development and training while also leveraging student success tools 
such as Starfish. The Distance Education proposal process requires faculty to have taught the course on-
site before teaching it online, and to provide a rationale and plan for online or blended development. The 
proposals are reviewed by departments (sometimes with the opportunity for proposing faculty to present 
their proposals to department faculty), instructional deans, and Academic Affairs leadership. Selected 

https://www.qcc.edu/about/mission-statement
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_success_task_force_final_report_may_2018.docx
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faculty undergo and must pass Quality Matters training, and their courses are not offered for enrollment 
unless they have at least 50% of the content developed in Blackboard.  
 
In addition to using Blackboard to deliver course materials, there are many ways the college utilizes 
Blackboard to promote effective use of information. The integration with Starfish provides single sign-on 
between the two systems. This allows faculty immediate access to this tool where they can raise flags and 
refer students to campus services, such as the various tutoring centers. Starfish also allows students 
access to their success network, which includes faculty, advisors and other specialists, such as the online 
liaison. The integration also parses some participation data, such as attendance (through the Qwickly tool 
in Blackboard) and login information that allows automated flags to be emailed to the student and their 
success network. Within Blackboard, the college offers a free course on Satisfactory Academic Progress to 
assist students whose financial aid is at risk. It covers topics such as grade point average, completion rate, 
financial aid appeal, resources for success, and maximum timeframe. Starting fall 2017, the departments 
of Distance Education and Student Life began to pilot student club shells and affiliation by major shells 
where club advisors and faculty coordinators can share appropriate resources to provide education 
outside of the classroom. Two such examples are the Human Services club and the QCC Student 
Leadership Academy. 
 
Some integrative projects initiated in 2016 and ongoing lay foundations for systematic, longitudinal 
assessment and sustainable scalability. The development of assignment design and assessment toolkits, 
and a new oral presentation pilot assessment project, provide insight into this approach, which is led by 
faculty and professional staff from across the college. Beginning in the fall semester of 2015, an 
interdisciplinary and cross-functional team of faculty and professional staff considered ways to support 
Quinsigamond Community College faculty in the upcoming spring 2016 Multi-State Collaborative (MSC) 
collection. The result was a backward-designed assignment framework that is adaptable across courses, 
fields of inquiry, and student learning outcomes at course, program and general education levels. This 
collaborative process resulted in materials that all faculty have access to. More specifically, the toolkits 
described below are available to all QCC employees with access to Blackboard in the “Educator Idea 
Vault” course. (For those without Blackboard access, and for interested non-QCC parties, the Educator 
Idea Vault is viewable by visiting http://mycourses.qcc.edu and logging is with the user ID "eiv" and the 
password "explore.") 
 
Since the deployment of the first toolkit (writing), the Quinsigamond Outcomes Research for Excellence 
team led development of two more toolkits: one for oral presentations and one for visual presentations. 
These were funded by strategic planning grants. This project may have been inspired by a need to support 
faculty participating in the MSC, but as the team worked, it drew on best practices in higher education 
pedagogy, student engagement and assessment, and on emerging tools, such as the Degree Qualifications 
Profile (DQP). We now have toolkits for Oral Presentations and Visual Presentations as well as Writing. 
The toolkit project has become the basis of a new vision for integrative work within general education 
(rather than within majors), a development that can deliver this important component of liberal 
education to associate degree students.  
 
These projects will be successful if QCC educators use the toolkits, and students develop the skills they 
prioritize. The assignment frames reflect best practices as described by the DQP and LEAP (Liberal 
Education and America’s Promise) initiatives, and our expectation is that educators using this assignment 
frame with students will elaborate upon the instructions. To support that objective, a rationale and 
student learning outcomes are included for each direction. This project supports student learning by 
making best practices in assignment design, writing, oral and visual presentation, and civic learning 
available to all QCC educators, both within curricula and in co-curricular learning activities. To enliven the 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/starfish_student_survey_report_fall_2016_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/student-life
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assignment framework, the toolkits contain rubrics, example assignments, and two resource collections 
(one for faculty and one for students). Offering colleagues sample assignments in their disciplines to 
adopt or adapt will be essential to buy-in. Using assignments from the toolkit creation team members' 
courses and other learning experiences, each toolkit includes varied sample assignments. Each 
assignment appears twice: one Word version to adapt and one PDF annotated to show how it aligns with 
the global competencies in the assignment framework. Each Toolkit also includes a hybrid rubric to 
measure student mastery of the global competencies for each assignment framework. The intention is to 
support a variety of educator grading styles and anticipated assessment activities. Finally, each toolkit 
contains resource folders. One, for faculty, contains the materials the toolkit teams found most helpful as 
they worked, including best practices in assignment design. The student resources folders, specific to each 
toolkit, hold a variety of materials to support each framework's global competencies. This folder may be 
customized by educators and copied to their own Blackboard courses for students to access. As “living” 
documents, the toolkits undergo regular updates, including the addition of new assignments and 
resources, managed by QORE. 
 
Quinsigamond Community College’s 2013 self-study affirmed the college’s mission and values and 
envisioned a set of processes for educational effectiveness. The ensuing years (2014 GESLOA-17) have 
seen integration of these processes and the laying of foundations for expansion of processes that 
promote student learning and student success. The college supports initiatives that grow out of 
assessment projects with internal funding, most recently the Strategies for Student Success Funding 
process (initiated Fall 2017). 

 
 
FINDINGS AND ANALYSIS: EVIDENCE FOR ACTION 
 
Student learning outcomes assessment evidence tells stories of college staff and faculty seeking and 
finding, and seeking to improve, student learning in programs, courses, and other learning experiences. 
The examples in this section fall into two categories. In the first, educators use systematic methods to 
measure student learning outcomes or student success and act upon what they learn to improve student 
learning outcomes or student success. These examples reveal that, often, student learning outcomes and 
student success advance in tandem and benefit from best practices in both areas. The second category of 
example presents efforts to infuse teaching and learning best practices and high-impact practices into 
general education (digital course templates) and program delivery (Dental Hygiene). In the case of digital 
course templates, systematic assessment for improvement is part of the project vision; in the case of the 
Dental Hygiene program, summative assessment demanded by professional accreditation dovetails with 
formative assessment at the course level. 
 
Human Services was the first program outside general education to use Blackboard Outcomes for 
program-level assessment. As the program moved toward national accreditation by the Council for 
Standards in Human Service Education, the program’s coordinator, along with full and part-time faculty, 
engaged in summer assessments in 2015 and 2016 to evaluate the efficacy of the program’s capstone 
project. The program coordinator and QORE members reviewed the program’s core competencies and 
developed a scoring rubric that measured five criteria. Evaluation of capstone papers yielded areas of 
strength (most notably a clear readiness for entry-level work in human services settings) and suggested 
areas for improvement, including knowledge of theory, application of concepts to community placements, 
and information literacy challenges (especially with the APA citation format). Program faculty were able 
to address these areas with the next capstone cohort. Some deceptively simple changes, such as creating 
binders for each capstone student to take into the field to record their progress toward the twelve 
competencies, seemed to make a real difference when the assessment was repeated in the summer of 
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2016. More dramatically, the program also moved, on the strength of the assessment evidence, from a 
capstone project of 120 hours in one semester to a 250-hour, two-semester project. The program also 
founded a chapter of the Tau Upsilon Alpha National Organization for Human Services Honor Society. 
Outside of program review and assessment, the Online Liaison Service continues to exemplify how 
assessment principles in action bolster student success in academic endeavors. Piloted in 2012, this 
“evidence-based assessment project ... conceived of and conducted independently of the work of the 
GESLOA Team or externally-mandated outcomes assessment efforts, is a clear indication that a culture of 
evidence, inference, and assessment broadly characterizes the college’s academic programs and 
processes” 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 4 p. 39-40. Based on evidence that suggested using Starfish 
would be an effective way to broaden the liaison’s impact and track usage by faculty and students more 
effectively, in fall 2014 this service was integrated with Starfish. The service was expanded further in 
spring 2015 to serve all online course sections. Through the online liaison’s report log, usage and other 
data are collected every semester. In spring 2018, the online liaison had 135 communications and/or 
interactions with students. Forty-seven percent of these interactions were based on students being 
behind with work and/or not submitting assignments. Twenty-nine percent of these interactions were 
initiated by students, and the liaison assisted 111 unique students.  
 
In an effort to meet the needs of Quinsigamond Community College (QCC) students and to align with 
various Complete College America initiatives, QCC started offering off-cycle (alternative schedule) 
accelerated classes in the fall of 2015. A review of outcomes from initial offerings yielded the following 
results: Seventy-two percent of students who enroll in off-cycle accelerated course earn a final grade of 
“C or higher” as compared to 64% of students in a lecture courses, and 54% of students who enroll in an 
online course. Eighty-two percent of students who enroll in off-cycle accelerated course earn a final 
passing grade of “D-or higher” as compared to 74% of students in a lecture course, and 62% of students 
who enroll in an online course. While these results are confined only to a small number of accelerated 
sections and their corresponding courses in the regular schedule, these results recommend continued 
attention to evidence of student success in alternative schedules.  The offering of additional courses in 
the off-cycle schedule is called for as an action item in the 2018-2022 Strategic Plan and the effectiveness 
will be monitored. 

 
High-impact Practices in Program Delivery 
High-impact practices and associated systematic student learning outcomes assessment characterize 
many degree and certificate programs. Capstones and clinicals are common, indeed, often mandated, by 
accreditors in various programs; they are the standard in Business, Engineering, Technology and Health 
Care programs. Examples of high-impact practices include peer reviews and lab experiences in Hospitality 
and Recreation Management; co-ops in Computer Information Systems; team projects and laboratory 
evaluations in Automotive Technology; and portfolio development and review in Interactive Media Design 
and Interactive Media Game Design.  
 
The Dental Hygiene program infuses its curriculum with several high-impact practices that support the 
program’s exemplary graduation and licensure pass rates. From electronic scheduling and appointment 
logging that tracks patients and students by a variety of criteria, to competency based portfolio review in 
15 areas over a two-year program, formative and summative assessment using direct and indirect 
methods infuse the Dental Hygiene program. The assessment work Dental Hygiene faculty perform meets 
accreditation requirements, but also drives the adoption of high-impact practices. One of these is the 
portfolio itself, a spiral-bound notebook, which provides a road map through this demanding program, 
follows students as they master course-level outcomes and competencies, and mirrors the curriculum 
map the program has developed with the support of a Coordinator of Instructional Design and 
Assessment. The portfolio process scaffolds the program competencies such that students become 

https://www.qcc.edu/distance-learning-and-center-academic-excellence/online-course-liaison
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increasingly independent as they progress through the program; the faculty member evaluates and 
documents how the student is able to master the task or demonstrate a skill independently. For each of 
10 program competencies specified by the ADA’s Commission on Dental Accreditation (CODA) (e.g., 
injections by type, radiology requirements), there is an assessment on specific objectives, evaluations 
about whether a student has met them or not, and arrangements to repeat training if necessary. All 
student contact with patients is documented, and students complete a care plan for each patient. The 
program culminates in three high-stakes exams, including the 6-7 hour National Board exam on which 
QCC students score above the national mean, with a pass rate approaching 100%. The Clinical Board has 
three components: each student is evaluated by a team of assessors on competencies and (patient) 
outcomes, a case-based computerized exam of 100 questions, and a jurisprudence and ethics exam that 
students must pass to be licensed in Massachusetts. 
 
Besides the portfolio, two components of the Dental Hygiene program exemplify the integration of high-
impact practices and best practices in student learning outcomes assessment: the case study and the 
open lab. The case study is scaffolded into iterative exposures: first, students perform the process on 
themselves, then on a fellow student, and finally on a patient. Students recruit their own patients 
according to criteria set by the program faculty, and the case study is built over five appointments. 
Students input case study data into an external database, which provides another layer of evaluation, and 
finally students deliver results to patients. Open Lab is not a new idea to QCC, having been instituted to 
bolster students’ skills more than 10 years ago. Unusual in this discipline, there is one lab for first-year 
students and another for second-year students, each with a 1:6 faculty-student ratio. Students sign up 
weekly, or faculty refer them for this more intensive supervised practice, which may address motor skills, 
treatment sequencing, and other techniques, including, rarely, interpersonal skills. Within the past four 
years, the program instituted a dental radiology open lab tied to dental radiology, which is a pre-clinic 
course. Such a summer lab is rare in the discipline, and students are required to participate. The open lab 
provides more clinic hours and prevents the loss of the fine motor skills required for instrument use; it can 
also be used to remediate with 1:1 work with a faculty member (the student pays the health care 
standard hourly fee). Summer clinic is spread over 60 hours during the summer months, and has resulted 
in stronger clinical skills as assessed by the portfolio. Finally, a practicum is the exit requirement for 
seniors and summer labs. Students' use of each instrument is evaluated by three faculty members, all 
calibrated for inter-rater reliability. These high stakes evaluations are mock versions of the Commission on 
Dental Competency Assessments exam and serve as the gatekeeper to clinical work. 
 
The college supports several initiatives characterized by a clear vision and high assessment potential; 
these include digital course templates. These cases represent the well-established culture of evidence and 
commitment to establishing and sustaining pathways for collaborative curriculum development to lead to 
sustainable, inclusive, assessable delivery of learning experiences. Qualitative and quantitative data have 
not yet been collected, but these projects include explicit assessment planning and change 
implementation. 
 
During the spring 2016 term, QCC developed and piloted a Digital Courseware Shared Template (DCST) 
that embeds Open Educational Resources (OER) and other digital tools for high enrollment general 
education courses. The college also instituted the use of course mapping to identify the outcome 
sequence to facilitate instructional planning for the faculty involved. Two QCC departments, Psychology 
and English, and one discipline, Sociology (which is part of the Social Sciences work area), have 
undertaken such projects. Psychology faculty worked on a DCST for Introduction to Psychology (PSY 101), 
and English faculty worked on one for Composition I (ENG 101). Some program faculty (e.g., Dental 
Hygiene) have pursued the model with the guidance of an instructional designer. Each project generates a 
course map that includes the following components: 
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•    Modules calibrated to department-established student learning outcomes 
•    Learning objectives for each module 
•    Target course, discipline, and general education outcomes by module 
•    Possible course activities and learning interactions 
•    Possible course technology (media) 
•    Possible instructional materials (readings/resources) 
•    Possible assessment and measurement 

 
Innovations in General Education and the Disciplines 
The English and Psychology projects benefited from consultation with Learning Center Managers, 
Reference Librarians, and Instructional Designers. Sociology has no dedicated tutors in the General 
Academic Areas, and therefore works with Instructional Design and the Library only. All full-time sociology 
faculty are collaborating to develop a fully-integrated digital course template for Sociology 101: 
Introductory Sociology (Principles). The process also highlights how collaborative curriculum development 
can lead to sustainable, inclusive, assessable delivery of learning experiences. 
 
Sociology was involved in the Massachusetts Transfer Pathways process in AY 2015-16. Faculty from 
across Massachusetts public higher education gathered to consider transferability of 
discipline/department courses among the Commonwealth’s community colleges, state colleges and 
universities, and the University of Massachusetts. For Sociology, four such courses were identified, 
including Sociology 101. The next phase of the process included review of syllabi and a negotiation of 
common course objectives for each of the identified courses. One result of this process is a statewide 
commitment by sociology faculty to adopt at least 60% of the course objectives established at the 
statewide convening in May 2016. The five Intro Sociology course objectives agreed upon at that meeting 
will form the basis of our campus’ Sociology 101 student learning outcomes statements. During the 
summer of 2016, the Sociology Department conducted a small-scale project to establish student learning 
outcomes for Introductory Sociology (Principles) (SOC 101) and map these outcomes onto QCC’s general 
education goals. This SOC 101 mapping project established goals for the discipline/department by aligning 
with state and national best practices, and by leveraging the expertise of QCC’s full-time sociology faculty. 
The project resulted in a draft curriculum map that included new SOC 101 student learning outcomes and 
QCC general education goals. 
 
Digital course template construction represents the college's multi-faceted approach to resolve challenges 
that students and faculty face, such as difficulties with online course navigation, the high costs of 
textbooks, faculty time involved in redesigning courses, and issues with student engagement and 
feedback.  This project will contribute to resolving those challenges by providing students with clear 
pathways to success in QCC’s highest-enrolled and most-transferable general education courses. It will 
also boost equity by making accessible and high-quality materials available to all ENG 101, PSY 101 and 
SOC 101 faculty and students, and the hope is that it may support faculty and student retention. To 
integrate efforts and catalyze sustainability, support will include professional development for faculty who 
adopt or adapt the template. This example has been iterative, and reflects well the success the college 
has in internally funding small-scale, faculty-driven projects with finite timelines and delivery dates. In this 
case, the small-scale mapping and SLO projects dovetailed with a larger-scale Academic Planning and 
Review Process (2017-18) and the development of a new Liberal Arts Sociology Option degree program 
(approved 2017). 
 
QCC adopted a general education goal of Civic Literacy in 2009 and drafted student learning outcomes in 
2013. Inclusion of “Preparing Citizens” as a Vision Project goal and the subsequent development of state-
wide learning outcomes for civic learning and engagement prompted a revision of QCC’s Civic Literacy 
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SLOs by a cross-functional team in 2017. Its work was informed by a different cross-functional team that 
researched theory and practice in civic learning, as well as considered the impact of the 2016 Presidential 
election campaign on civic life and civil discourse. These two teams (whose members overlapped 
significantly) bear a hallmark that is emerging in general education student learning outcomes assessment 
at QCC: the inclusion of faculty from a variety of disciplines, professional colleagues from Academic Affairs 
(e.g., Reference Librarians), and professionals from outside of Academic Affairs (e.g., Disability Services 
Coordinators). As the SLO revision team transitioned into an Assignment Design and Assessment Toolkit 
Development Team in spring 2018, it was able to add a student to the group, a development that signals a 
first step in a desirable direction of involving students meaningfully in the learning assessment work of the 
college. The Toolkit is projected to be available to educators in fall 2018, and will join existing Toolkits in 
Writing, Oral Presentation and Visual Presentation. Ideally, a pilot Civic Literacy assessment will follow in 
AY 2018-19. A pilot assessment of Oral Presentations as evidence of student learning in general education 
and health career fields will wrap up in summer 2018. 
 
Another new initiative, CPS 298: Pre-Cooperative Education Seminar, will be offered for the first time in 
the fall semester of 2018 and provides an opportunity to collect comparative evidence of this zero-credit 
required course’s impact on participating students. The non-credit course will serve over twenty degree 
and certificate programs in the School of Business, Engineering and Technology, and will be pre-required 
for any cooperative education experience. According to the course proposal, the course consists of “a 
series of interactive workshops, short lectured and individual coaching” . . . “designed to provide students 
with the necessary structure, resources, and support to successfully secure and engage in their 
cooperative education experiences.” This course targets students’ interpersonal skills employers demand 
along with job search and cooperative learning skills to prepare them to succeed in workplace settings for 
which they are training. 
 
Retention and Graduation Evidence 
The most recent IPEDS data for retention among associate degree seeking students reveals a retention 
rate of 54% for first time full-time associate degree seeking students enrolled in fall 2015 also being 
enrolled in fall 2016 (Standard 8 Data Form).  Data compiled by the QCC Institutional Research and 
Planning Office on retention of all students (associate degree seeking, certificate seeking, and non-degree 
seeking) after excluding graduates from fall 2016 to fall 2017 was 53%. However, if students who transfer 
(10% of all students between fall 2016 and fall 2017) are factored in then the percent of all QCC students 
either transferring or being retained from fall 2016 to fall 2017 is 63%. The data show some improvement 
over the last four years as the percentage for fall 2012 to fall 2013 was 59%. With the efforts to improve 
retention described in Item of Emphasis #1, the College projects a steady increase over the next five years 
with a goal of 68% for fall 2021 to fall 2022 retention. The expectation of achieving this goal is fortified by 
examining the retention rates in various QCC programs (Table 1) that are better than the current average 
of 63%. Notably programs with clear career goals in STEM and Healthcare are among the programs with 
the highest retention rates. Additionally these programs exhibit higher or steady enrollment as well as 
graduation rates (Tables 2 and 3). Indeed by examining some of the successful program practices and 
applying the action plans of the Strategic Plan there is every opportunity to attain the overall goal of 68%.  
The programs with lower retention rates will be encouraged to examine this more closely through an 
Academic Planning and Review (APR) process.  As noted in the Standard 8 Data Form, retention by 
ethnicity is consistent with overall retention.  Male retention is slightly lower and it is hoped that 
retention efforts described in Item of Emphasis #1 will bring this rate closer to the projected for FY 2018 
of 55%.  It is encouraging that Pell recipients show a higher rate of 59%. 
 
 
 



Quinsigamond Community College 
Fifth-Year Interim Report – August 2018   Page 39 of 50 
 

TABLE 1 
RETENTION AND TRANSFER TRENDS FOR SELECTED PROGRAMS ABOVE THE AVERAGE FOR F 16-17 
 F12-13 F13-14 F14-15 F15-16 F16-17 
All programs and certificates 59% 62% 62% 62% 63% 
Business Transfer 67% 61% 66% 66% 67% 
Interactive Media 64% 62% 63% 58% 75% 
Engineering 68% 70% 71% 70% 73% 
Electronics 75% 51% 71% 65% 73% 
Manufacturing 55% 49% 55% 59% 64% 
Computer Science 68% 72% 71% 69% 71% 
Criminal Justice 59% 60% 55% 57% 64% 
Early Childhood Education 61% 66% 66% 65% 66% 
Dental Hygiene/Assisting 84% 70% 90% 73% 83% 
Nursing 77% 75% 75% 66% 71% 
Occupational therapy 75% 87% 87% 89% 90% 
Respiratory Care 87% 90% 78% 83% 77% 
Radiologic Technology 96% 92% 83% 86% 80% 
Medical Assisting 78% 55% 64% 69% 82% 

Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 
 

The College projected in its 2013 NEASC Self-Study Standard 6: Students (p. 69) that the graduation rate 
would increase to 19% by 2019. Examination of the most current IPEDS data reported in Standard 8 Data 
Forms reveals that this goal was exceeded in 2016 where QCC achieved a graduation rate for associate 
degree students of 21% graduating within 150% of expected time to degree and that for 2017 we have 
continued to meet this goal, albeit with a slight dip in graduation to 19%. Many of the objectives of the 
2016 -2020 Enrollment Management Plan for graduation were implemented and likely to have 
contributed to this increase. Other objectives remain to be completed and are being incorporated into the 
new strategic plan that is under development and describe in this report in Institutional Plans. It will be 
important that these strategic initiatives, especially mentoring, reach out to students of color as 
graduation rates (last reported in FY2016) were lower than the overall IPEDS rate for blacks and Hispanics 
(Standard 8 Data Form).  Looking at graduation rates for students within 6 years and within 8 years since 
enrolling also shows that QCC graduation rates have been on the rise since 2015 both for first-time, full 
time students and for first time part time students, but have declined for non-first time full-time and non-
first time part-time students (See Standard 8 Data Form). 

TABLE 2 
ENROLLMENT TRENDS BY CATEGORY 

 Fall 2013 Fall 2014 Fall 2015 Fall 2016 Fall 2017 % change 
2013-2017 

All degrees and certificates 7562 7476 7213 6923 6586 -12.9% 
STEM programs 1176 1185 1258 1270 1276 +8.5% 
Business programs 955 968 966 973 975 +2.0% 
Healthcare programs 541 637 671 705 706 +30.5% 
Human Services program 1192 1066 1071 974 866 -27.3% 
General Studies 1957 1960 1738 1488 1266 -35.3% 
General Studies Healthcare 1375 1361 1281 1251 1170 -14.9% 
Liberal Arts programs 366 299 228 262 327 -10.7% 

      Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 
 
 
 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management_plan.docx
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
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TABLE 3 
GRADUATION TRENDS BY CATEGORY 2013-2017 

 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 % change 
2013-2017 

All degrees and certificates 1257 1312 1263 1420 1340  + 6.6% 
STEM programs 219 234 197 247 256  + 17.0% 
Business programs 269 236 268 305 248  -7.8% 
Healthcare programs 301 312 306 347 342 +13.6% 
Human Services programs 247 263 231 304 273 +10.5% 
General Studies 157 168 190 162 176 +12.1% 
Liberal Arts 64 99 71 55 45 -30.0% 

Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning  
 

The reality for community college students is that many are part time and take longer to complete a 
degree. In the fall 2017 semester, 63.3 % of all QCC students were part-time. Data reported in Standard 8 
Data Form for On-Time Certificate Completion Rates are based on reporting for Federal Gainful 
Employment regulations that takes entrance to the college as the start date. This is hardly the reality for 
most community college students. Some are taking courses to meet entrance requirements or to 
complete remedial work. Once they are committed to a program and/or accepted they are more likely to 
finish in a reasonable period of time.  Table 4 compares completion rate for FY 2017 as reported for 
Gainful Employment (from start date at college) to the rate from start of the program.  
 

TABLE 4 
On-time Certificate Completion Rates for FY 2017 

 From college start From program start 
Automotive Maintenance and Light Repair 80% 100% 
Accounting Finance 8% 15% 
Business Administration 7% 43% 
Dental Assisting 7% 86% 
Electronics Technology 15% 39% 
EMT Paramedic 0% 10% 
Energy Utility 30% 70% 
Human Services 0% 30% 
Law Enforcement 6% 35% 
Phlebotomy/EKG Technician 0% 11% 
Practical Nursing 4% 88% 

  Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 
 
Student Self-Assessments and Departmental Evidence 
Various findings from the Community College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE) completed at QCC in 
2015 and from an internal student experience survey conducted in the spring of 2017 suggest that QCC is 
effectively contributing to student’s education. Results from CCSSE reveal a sizeable majority of QCC 
students (85%) report that their overall experience at QCC has been either good or excellent. Even higher 
indicators of satisfaction were achieved by QCC’s internal survey of student experience where 96% of 
respondents reported being very satisfied with QCC overall and where 97% indicated that they would 
recommend QCC to family and friends. 
 
Looking at more specific student perceptions reveals that a substantial majority of QCC students believe 
QCC has emphasized their development on key educational objectives. For instance QCC’s 2017 Student 
Experience Survey found that 71% of respondents believed that their development in understanding 
human diversity was emphasized either quite a bit or very much and 72% believed that their development 
in writing was emphasized either quite a bit or very much. Information on how much students believe 
additional areas of development are emphasized at QCC can be viewed on page 15 of this survey report. 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/ccsse_2015_key_findings.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
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CCSSE data also indicates that QCC is competently contributing to student’s development. Examination of 
CCSE benchmarks (active and collaborative learning, student effort, academic challenge, student-faculty 
interaction, and support for learners) reveals that QCC performs better than the average community 
college on most benchmarks, but falls consistently short of yielding benchmark scores achieved by top-
performing colleges. A more detailed look at CCSSE benchmark scores at QCC as compared to other 
institutions can be found on page 3 of the CCSSE report. 
 
Data on student perceptions of instructors at QCC also speaks to the effectiveness of the College. 
According to CCSE data, 81% of QCC students report having a positive relationship with their instructors, 
which is particularly important given research indicating that positive student faculty relationships are a 
significant contributor to college success (Kuh et al. 40-42). A more detailed examination of student 
perceptions of instruction at QCC is provided by QCC’s internal survey of student experiences which 
reveals that over 90% of surveyed students either agreed or strongly agreed that QCC instructors 
possessed a number of positive qualities. For instance, 92% of respondents either agreed or strongly 
agreed that “teachers take their responsibility to students seriously” and 91% either agreed or strongly 
agreed that “teachers try hard to help students understand the course material. Further information on 
student perceptions of QCC instructors can be viewed on page 11 of this survey report. 
 
Developmental Education 
Examination of developmental math courses (Table 5 below) reveal that over the last five years pass rates 
(the end of the semester exam determines whether students can move up to the next level of math) have 
been variable. For MAT 090 (Basic Mathematics Skills) and MAT 099 (Intermediate Algebra) the pass rates 
decreased while MAT 095 (Beginning Algebra) rates have increased.  
 

TABLE 5  
Pass Rates in Developmental Math over Time (%) 

 AY 13-14 AY 14-15 AY 15-16 AY 16-17 AY 17-18 
MAT 090 66.2 60.2 64.2 63.1 55.0 
MAT 095 60.4 63.9 65.4 64.8 65.1 
MAT 099 60.7 59.1 57.0 56.6 55.7 

Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 
 

Additional data on developmental math available through the MA Department of Education Data Center 
http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp  indicates that these trends at QCC are in line 
with tracking at community colleges across the state with QCC reporting a 25% progress rate compared to 
the average of 24% for 2017. The percentage indicates first time degree seeking students enrolled in a 
developmental course in fall 2015 who completed a college level math course by fall 2017. 

Pass rates in developmental English courses (a course grade of C or better) are indicated in Table 6. For 
ENG 090 (Basic Reading Skills) the pass rate shows an increase in this time period with a dip in AY 17-18. 
For ENG 091 (Intermediate Reading Skills) the pass rate has decreased from a high of 78.6% in AY 13-14, 
but has remained steady in the subsequent four years. ENG 095 (Basic Writing Skills) pass rates have 
trended upward over the five year period but with a dip in AY 17-18. The pass rates in ENG 096 
(Intermediate Writing Skills) have increased slightly over the five year period, with a dip in AY 16-17. 
 

TABLE 6 
Pass Rates in Developmental English over Time (%) 
 AY 13-14 AY 14-15 AY 15-16 AY 16-17 AY 17-18 
ENG 090 74.6 71.8 82.3 80.0 77.4 
ENG 091 78.6 70.5 69.1 67.8 68.2 
ENG 095 54.1 55.3 66.5 71.3 62.4 
ENG096 62.0 60.5 61.1 52.6 63.8 

Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/student_experience_survey_results_sp17_final.pdf
http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp
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Additional data available on developmental English through the MA Department of Education Data Center 
http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp indicates a QCC progress rate of 47% versus a 
state wide community college average of 50%. The percentage indicates first time degree seeking 
students enrolled in a developmental course in fall 2015 who completed a college level English course by 
fall 2017. 

Clearly efforts need to be made to improve these pass rates and the overall success of students in 
developmental courses. Efforts on the part of the College to do so are discussed in Standard 5: Students of 
this report.  

Other Student Success Evidence  
Pass rates for national and state exams reveal a high level of success among QCC students that has been 
increasing over the past several years (Table 7). For instance the pass rate for QCC students taking the 
state exam for Radiologic Technology has been 100% for three out of the last four years for which data is 
available (2013-2016). Inspection of pass rates for other state and national exams reveals evidence of high 
performance by QCC students that has been increasing. As can be seen in the table below, which presents 
pass rates for state and national exams at QCC, between 2013 and 2016 the most recent year of 2016 
reveals that scores have increased on 4 out of 16 exams, but have decreased for only 1 of the exams. The 
remaining 11 exams show a pass rate that was the same in 2016 as in 2013 which occurred 10 times 
because the pass rate was 100% both in 2013 and again in 2016. Actual numbers for exam passage can be 
seen in the Standard 8 Data Forms.  According to MA Department of Education Data Center, QCC graduate 
pass rates for Nurse Education (2010 to 2014) are slightly higher than state and national averages for first 
time test takers in all years except 2013 (http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp).  

TABLE 7 
State and National Licensure Exam Pass Rates 

  FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 % Change from 
2013 to 2016 

State Licensure Examination Passage Rates       
Practical Nursing 90.9% 88.1% 79.2% 96.1% 5.2% 
Radiologic Technology 100.0% 100.0% 89.5% 100.0% 0.0% 
Respiratory Care CRT 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
Respiratory Care RRT 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
Occupational Therapy Assisting 100.0% 90.5% 92.9% 100.0% 0.0% 
Surgical Technologist Certificate Exam 66.7% 50.0% 83.3% 66.7% 0.0% 
Medical Assisting 50.0% 50.0% 83.3% 80.0% 30.0% 

National Licensure Passage Rates       
DANB (Dental Assisting National Board) 100.0% 90.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
NERBS (Dental) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
NERBS (Clinical Portion) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
NERBS (Case Study/Prometric Testing) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 93.8% -6.3% 
Nurse Education (NCLEX) 80.2% 84.0% 89.1% 86.4% 6.2% 
EMT Basic - Cognitive 40.0% 51.5% 54.2% 61.4% 21.4% 
EMT Basic – Psychomotor 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
EMT Paramedic - Cognitive 100.0% 77.8% 66.7% 100.0% 0.0% 
EMT Paramedic – Psychomotor 100.0% 77.8% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

Source:  QCC Office of Institutional Research and Planning 
 

http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp
http://www.mass.edu/datacenter/dashboards/cc497.asp
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With respect to other industry-recognized credentials: the QCC Office of Institutional Research and 
Planning collects students’ information regarding industry recognized credentials and forwards it to the 
Registrar’s Office. Systematic examination of the types of such credentials awarded to QCC students, and 
in what frequencies, would be valuable from both student success and workforce vantage points. 
 
For job placement rates, the College surveys recent graduates nine months after they obtain their degree. 
The results that are reported in the Standard 8 Data Form show that for those responding, 93% of 2017 
graduates are employed full time or part time or are pursuing additional education. Fifty-nine % of those 
employed full time reported that their position is moderately or highly related to their QCC program of 
study.  Ninety-two % reported that QCC exceptionally or adequately prepared them for their current job. 
More extensive job placement data would be a useful measure of student success, but at this time there 
are no further mechanism for obtaining the data other than alumni surveys. Individual programs do some 
job placement tracking, especially as required for program accreditation as indicated in the Standard 8 
Data Form. The Department of Labor GPSTEM grant (a collaboration of the 15 Massachusetts Community 
Colleges) funded the development of a research and reporting tool that will provide labor market 
information on community college graduates. The data will be available in late summer 2018 and will 
provide QCC with an essential measure of student success. 
 
The success of QCC graduates in continuing their education through transfer after completing their 
associate degree is examined in Standard 4: The Academic Program of this report. As described in 
Standard 4, 49.3% of graduates continued their education within two years of graduating in 2015, up from 
39.8% in 2012.  The College projects to increase this percentage with continuing emphasis on transfer 
pathways and increasing articulation agreements that are also described in Standard 4. 
 
 
APPRAISAL AND PROJECTIONS (to 2023) 
 
Clear vision, authentic assessment, graduation/retention improvements and equitable achievement of 
student learning outcomes: all four of these areas demonstrate progress toward the institution-wide goal 
of success for all students. The college’s culture of purposeful, evidence-aware, sustainable practices has 
been nurtured carefully and now includes efforts led by academic affairs and student services. The 
successful initiatives and processes described in this essay are the results of disciplined innovation by 
faculty and staff supported by leadership with the vision and courage to locate “educational 
effectiveness” within learning experiences throughout students’ relationships with the college. Given this 
approach, some unevenness in outcomes is to be expected, though reflection on past efforts and recent 
developments suggest movement toward greater integration and sustainability for campus best practices. 
Vigorous effort on four trajectories will contribute to progressive educational effectiveness: 

 
1. Commitment to middle-out general education student learning outcomes assessment 
2. Continuous, transparent collection of data and evidence for educational effectiveness 
3. Bottom-up, integrative mapping of general education learning outcomes in the curriculum and co-

curricular learning experiences 
4. Avoidance of the “tyranny of metrics” by developing campus best practices in both qualitative and 

quantitative methods of evidence collection and analysis.  
 
Middle-out assessment of general education goals describes intentional, responsive, reflective efforts to 
collect evidence (qualitative and quantitative) within programs, departments and other learning contexts. 
Support for collaborative evaluation of evidence permits appropriate and meaningful action on 
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assessment evidence, and lays groundwork for subsequent measurements of the impact of changes in 
student learning outcomes. 
 
Based on the evidence presented in this reflective essay, two strategies are worth investing in: 
encouraging authentic assessment of learning outcomes in new areas and deepening integrative efforts. 
The college could streamline its efforts by recognizing ongoing and ad-hoc efforts that can be scaled, be 
sustained, or promote change. QORE will continue to collaborate with departments and groups to 
develop materials and processes that support student learning outcomes assessment in departments and 
groups outside Academic Affairs. 
 
While the college collects, interprets and acts upon a great deal of data, it would benefit from continuous 
evidence gathering and transparent reporting (“real time assessment” as per Maki, 2017). This ideal will 
come within reach as QCC institutionalizes meaningful, manageable, actionable process(es) middle-out, in 
programs, disciplines and departments (rather than campus-wide or top-down). The college has had 
success creating pathways for outcomes assessment for cross-functional activities and the co-curriculum, 
and finding ways to integrate these with more traditional student learning outcomes assessment. These 
efforts have been confined to a narrow range of projects that could be broadened. 
 
If the college can make significant progress toward a comprehensive curriculum map that supports 
deliberate programmatic and curricular changes, and also supports meaningful assessment, it will do all of 
its constituencies a service. However, our efforts should avoid the “tyranny of metrics” by developing 
campus best practices in both qualitative and quantitative methods of evidence collection and analysis 
(Muller, 2018).  
 
The greatest potential for continuing progress toward educational effectiveness goals is the college’s new 
institution-wide planning phase: the 2017-18 strategic planning process was transparent, inclusive and 
explicitly student-success-oriented. The concomitant Student Success Initiative, the Student Success Task 
Force has been charged by the president to identify and analyze the barriers to student success. 
Recommendations from the task force will be incorporated into a report that will be shared with the E-
Team, with the goal of folding in the findings (strategies) and recommendations into the strategic plan. 
These efforts, in conjunction with implementing the new Strategic Plan and continuing integrative 
assessment efforts, will support student success and student learning. 
 
PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 
 

• Infuse knowledge and application of essential learning outcomes and general education goals 
throughout students’ learning experiences (curricular and co-curricular) (2.2) 

• Continue the development and implementation of general education outcomes assessment 
research for improvement (2.2) 

• Develop digital course templates for the top 20 enrolled general education courses (2.2) 
• Promote use of assignment design and assessment tool kits across classroom and non-classroom 

learning experiences (2.2) 
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STANDARD NINE INTEGRITY, TRANSPARENCY, AND PUBLIC DISCLOSURE 

The QCC website is now the primary means of communication with the college community as well as with 
future and current students, parents, and the general public as it provides the College with the ability to 
publish accurate and timely information. Print materials are still used on a regular basis; many of the 
college’s print materials are also available as PDFs on the QCC website or on the student and faculty 
portal, referred to as “The Q.” The Student Handbook provides students with a wide range of information 
including the grievance policy, grade appeals, student rights and responsibilities, and code of conduct. The 
Handbook is updated every year and is available at the QCC website. The college communicates with 
faculty and staff through various means, including email, the  intranet, newsletters, the posting Board of 
Trustees and college governance system minutes, college-wide open All College Forum meetings held 
each month, and in regularly scheduled college meetings. The College is committed to acting with 
integrity. Its core values as expressed in the QCC Vision, Mission, Mission Principles and Values statement 
guide all individual and community interactions. The dignity, worth, and unique contributions of each 
individual are recognized, as is the importance of diversity. The College has policies and procedures in 
place that require nondiscriminatory practices in recruitment, admissions, employment, evaluation, and 
advancement. The College fosters an atmosphere that respects people of diverse characteristics and 
backgrounds, supported by the newly updated governance Diversity Council, an active Disability Services 
Office and a Diversity Caucus. In its 2013 NEASC Self-Study, the College noted challenges in Standard 10: 
Public Disclosure (p. 92) and Standard 11: Integrity (p. 97) regarding the currency of the QCC website, the 
need to provide a social media presence, and the diversity of the faculty and staff. In light of these 
challenges, the College projected the following actions: 1) updating the QCC website and catalog 
publication process, 2) utilizing social media, and 3) continuing efforts to diversify faculty and staff and 
promoting an environment of inclusion. 

Updating the QCC Website and Catalog Publication Process 
A recent Faculty/Staff Survey 2017 indicates that more than half of all QCC faculty (69% of full-time faculty) 
feel that web-based resources are generally not easy to navigate and do not provide easy access to 
information. Concerns regarding the updating of website information were addressed in the 2013 NEASC 
Self-Study in Standard 10: Public Disclosure (p. 92). It was noted that information on the website was often 
outdated and it was unclear who was responsible for managing department specific web content.  In 
response to these concerns, changes have been made to improve the website and the process for updating 
information. A new web site design was developed and launched in 2018. The new design includes a 
marketing campaign entitled “College. Made Smarter” which is presented in Spanish or English. 
Additionally the College implemented new Customer Relationship Management/Marketing automation 
software which has allowed for improved contact with perspective students viewing the website. The 

https://www.chronicle.com/article/The-Tyranny-of-Metrics/242269
https://www.chronicle.com/article/The-Tyranny-of-Metrics/242269
https://doi.org/10.12930/NACADA-14-199
https://www.qcc.edu/
https://theq.qcc.edu/ics
http://www.qcc.mass.edu/qcchome/
https://www.qcc.edu/about/news-events/publications
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/board-minutes
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/board-minutes
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance
http://www.qcc.edu/office-president/all-college-forum
http://www.qcc.edu/office-president/all-college-forum
https://www.qcc.edu/about/mission-statement
https://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/affirmative-actionequal-opportunity
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/diversity-council
https://www.qcc.edu/services/disability-services
https://www.qcc.edu/services/disability-services
https://www.qcc.edu/diversity-caucus
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/neasc_fac_staff_survey_report_by_ft_fac_.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
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Director of Institutional Communications has given presentations about the update at several college wide 
meetings. Additionally, the college catalog publishing process has been modified to ensure accuracy in an 
improved timeframe.  Five years ago the Catalog Committee moved the catalog publication from June to 
the current publication in March to be more conveniently available for summer and fall registration. 
Additionally, with improvements in technology the college has the ability now to update information more 
frequently. Previously the catalog was done first with each department contributing separate Word 
documents from which the website was built. This was a frustrating process due to many errors, 
redundancies, and hours of editing. Now the catalog is built like a website and then published, with each 
department possessing the ability to update and ensure the accuracy of their information. This process has 
vastly improved the accuracy of information in the catalog, as well as publication in a manner that best 
serves students.  Because of the extreme importance of an accurate and user friendly website as the central 
source of information, it would be helpful for the College in the next year to survey faculty, staff and 
students regarding the website. 
 
Updates to the website have also greatly facilitated the implementation of revisions to the QCC 
governance system particularly as it relates to updating policies. In 2013, many policies had not been 
updated in years. They were often difficult to locate and many were not available electronically. With the 
revised governance structure, a policy template was developed along with an improved process to carry 
out a timely approval and recommendation to the Board of Trustees. Policies are clearly defined and 
made openly at the All College Forum, thereby ensuring institutional integrity. All policies are now 
available in a menu on the updated Governance page on the website. 

Utilizing Social Media 
Since the 2013 NEASC Self Study the College has been more frequently using social media with Facebook, 
Twitter, Instagram and Snapchat. Multiple college areas including Admissions, QCC Baseball, QCC Police, 
Disability Services, and Gateway to College are utilizing Facebook.  There is social media training 
information in the Social Media Policy. This information can be found on the QCC College Governance 
Policies page.  

Continuing Efforts to Diversify Faculty and Staff and Promoting an Environment of Inclusion 
Efforts for improvement in diversity of the faculty are discussed in Item of Emphasis # 2. Equally important 
is the commitment to promote an environment of inclusion and equity. To that end, there are number of 
efforts on campus, some ongoing and others to be implemented in the next year. A new Social Justice 
Community Center has been established in the Harrington Learning Center to provide a gathering and 
meeting space for activities that promote inclusion and equity. The new Diversity Council that is part of 
the governance system was designed to promote a campus culture that encourages personal 
development and growth in an inclusive environment that maximizes each individual’s contributions to 
the college. It fosters strategic thinking, common approaches, and cross- functional practices for achieving 
diversity and inclusion at the college; thereby promoting a culture of integrity. The Diversity Council is 
spearheading ongoing discussions of these issues including the development of Brave Spaces for campus 
discussion.  A separate committee, the Diversity Caucus, promotes the educational mission of the college 
and embraces social justice by advancing a campus climate that affirms the dignity and worth of each 
person.  The website for the Caucus is intended to serve as a virtual multicultural center for the campus 
community. The Caucus members have conducted research on challenges related to recruiting and 
retaining faculty of color. It offers a series of Diversity Fare Lunch panels throughout the year to promote 
inclusion and conducted an All-College Forum in October of 2017 that was dedicated to issues of diversity 
and inclusion, and much of the conversation revolved around recruiting and retaining a diverse faculty.  A 
team of members of the Caucus will attend the Cape Cod Institute this summer and will participate in a 

https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/policies-menu
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/neasc_self_study_web_f.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/social_media_6-10-15.pdf
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session entitled “Advancing Inclusion: Turning Us and Them into We”. The team will prepare learning 
modules for use throughout the College, including new staff orientation, customer service training for 
current employees, and departmental/divisional meetings.  Following their attendance at an Association 
of American Colleges and Universities Institute last summer (Integrative Learning and Signature Work) a 
team of faculty and professional staff members will follow up with a project entitled the Equity and 
Excellence Experience. The goals of this project are to not only provide high-quality learning experiences, 
but to also ensure that students of color and low-income students participate in the most empowering 
forms of college learning. Faculty and students will work collaboratively to explore new teaching and 
learning practices and develop learning experiences to be utilized in the classroom. In order to assure 
coordination of these various efforts described here that support, promote, enhance diversity the 
president’s executive assistant has been given the responsibility of oversight and her title now reflects 
that role (Executive Assistant to the President for Policy, Governance, and Diversity).  

PROJECTIONS (alignment with Strategic Plan Goal and Strategy) 

• Promote and environment of equity and inclusion throughout all campus activities (4.1) 
• Continue improving the website to make it more user friendly including a better mobile user 

experience; evaluate effectiveness of improvements (3.1, 3.3) 
• Invest in and improve wayfinding signage on campus (1.4) 
• Roll out a customer relationship management software package to the college community ( 3.1, 

3.2) 
 
 
INSTITUTIONAL PLANS 
 
The planning process for the new QCC strategic plan has been described in this report in Standard 2: 
Planning and Evaluation. Throughout this process, it became clear to the college community that the 
environment had changed significantly since the previous plan was launched. The U.S. was recovering 
from the 2008 Great Recession when unemployment was high, and QCC fall enrollment was on the rise, 
increasing 52% between 2006 and 2011, QCC’s peak enrollment year.  As the economy improved and 
unemployment rates declined (currently under 4% in Worcester), QCC enrollment has also declined, by 
19% since 2011.  Additional environmental trends identified by the college community include: 
 

• Student population is becoming more diverse demographically.  We serve increasing numbers of 
immigrant, ELL (English Language Learner), Latino, non-traditionally aged, veteran, disabled, first 
generation, and part-time students. 

• QCC's enrollment has been in a downward trend for the past six years. 
• A relatively large proportion of QCC students require a high level of academic, personal, and 

financial support, e.g. remedial education, counseling, tutoring, disability services, financial aid. 
• The local economy requires an adaptable, limber workforce that can learn new skills quickly as the 

labor market changes and previous jobs become obsolete. Broad based learning, where skills cut 
across majors, is necessary for long-term career success. 

• Students are bearing an increasing proportion of the financial burden as state funding has 
decreased and fees increase.  Infrastructure and technology costs continue to increase. 

• External scrutiny has increased relative to student retention and completion, as have external 
unfunded mandates in the way of programming, reporting, and compliance. 

• Students use technology and mobile devices more often than previous generations to 
communicate, but they are less skilled communicating verbally and face to face. 
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• Technology increasingly impacts educational delivery and college operations. 
 
Informed by the work of the core team, the internal and external environmental scans, feedback from 
focus groups and the college community, a group of approximately forty faculty and staff members with 
the guidance of the two leaders of the strategic plan conducted an analysis to identify the following 
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats to the College: 
 
Strengths 

• Wide range of student support services, e.g. veterans, disability services, financial aid, retention 
team, mentoring, tutoring, Starfish  

• Faculty and staff care and go the extra mile for students 
• Articulation agreements 
• Curriculum and a broad array of programs 
• Workforce/skills training 
• Certificate programs 
• Many faculty members practice professionally in their fields 

Weaknesses 
• Communications issues 
• Students don't always know where to get services 
• Student retention rates 
• One-size fits all access 
• Enrollment process is not fully online 
• Compassion fatigue among some front-line staff members 
• Administrative process inefficiencies 
• Large number of program options leads to confusion 
• Technology system inefficiencies 

Opportunities 
• Growing immigrant & Hispanic population 
• New staff hired to replace retirees has potential to be more diverse, innovative, and bring new 

ideas 
• Strong focus at the state level on workforce development and certificate programs 
• Increase ESL/ABE enrollment 
• As enrollment declines, we are forced to explore different markets, partnerships, and revenue 

streams 
• Create and implement new institutional/business model to better serve our constituents 

Threats 
• Other Worcester area colleges offer competitive pricing and have minimized entry requirements 
• Competition from other colleges that have more streamlined processes and use technology more 

effectively 
• High cost associated with serving students with limited academic and social capital 
• Cost of technology and remaining current 
• Insufficient and decreasing federal and state aid 
• High competition for students in alternative modalities, e.g. MOOCS, online universities 
• High schools push students toward 4 year programs 
 

As described in Standard 2: Planning and Evaluation in this report, strategic objectives and action items 
for each goal were developed by teams of faculty and staff. Recommendations from CampusWorks were 
aligned with the plan. Through this iterative process, the college community as a whole engaged in 

https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_and_strategies_draft_v5.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/campus_works_2.19.18.docx


Quinsigamond Community College 
Fifth-Year Interim Report – August 2018   Page 49 of 50 
 

thoughtful deliberations about campus priorities and delivered a comprehensive response to the 
Executive Team and the QCC Board of Trustees. This plan is characterized by its focus on student success 
and it integrative response to campus challenges.  In June 2018, the strategic plan was presented to the 
statewide Board of Higher Education. The “Projections” for each standard in this report are consistent 
with the goals of the strategic plan and the mission of the College. The QCC strategic plan is aligned with 
the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education Strategic Goals. The FY18 System- Level Strategic 
Framework identifies three statewide priorities that are embedded in the QCC plan. The three priorities 
are; 1) Make college more accessible and affordable for all Massachusetts residents, 2) Close gaps in 
student opportunity and achievement, and 3) Improve college completion rates. Alignment with the state 
plan is noted throughout the QCC strategic plan.  Noteworthy feature of the statewide plan that are 
incorporated into the QCC plan include emphasis on Early College, programs targeting achievement gaps, 
multiple placement measures and co-requisite models that transcend traditional remediation, innovative 
opportunities through prior learning assessment, expansion of online learning, and strengthening 
responsiveness to local and statewide needs for more college graduates.  
In order to properly evaluate progress of the strategic plan, appropriate metrics have been determined 
for each goal in the plan.  
 
Goals  

1. Achieve 100% student success. 
a. Proposed Metrics 

i. Increase in enrollment of Pell-eligible students  
ii. Increase in enrollment of racial/ethnically diverse students to align with regional 

population demographics  
iii. Improve fall-to- fall retention rates 
iv. Improve course completion rates 
v. Increase degrees and certificates conferred overall 

vi. Increase the number of students enrolled in early college high school/dual 
enrollment courses 

2. Become the leader in quality, innovative academic and workforce programs. 
a. Proposed Metrics 

i. Close performance gaps between racial/ethnically diverse student groups and 
White students   

ii. Close performance gaps between Pell-eligible students and non-Pell-eligible 
students  

iii. Increase degree & certificate conferred in high-demand fields (STEM and 
Healthcare)  

iv. Improve select CCSSE measures against national benchmarks 
3. Optimize communication to enhance collaboration  

a. Proposed Metrics 
i. TBD; Need to establish appropriate data as baseline for measurement of this goal 

4. Foster a diverse and engaged community to enhance faculty and staff professional growth. 
a. Proposed Metrics 

i. Increase in hiring racial/ethnically diverse faculty and staff members 
ii. Increase in retention of racial/ethnically diverse faculty and staff members 

iii. Increase in QCC faculty and staff volunteerism within our service area 
5. Maximize the college’s ability to strengthen organizational sustainability. 

a. Proposed Metrics 
i. Decrease in utilization of reserves 

ii. Increase FT to PT faculty ratios  
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iii. Improve spending ratios  
iv. Improve affordability 
v. Improve fundraising  

vi. Stabilize /grow annual enrollment
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees of  
Quinsigamond Community College  
Worcester, Massachusetts 

Report on Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Quinsigamond Community College 
(an agency  of  the  Commonwealth of Massachusetts) (the “College”), which comprise the 
statements of net position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the related statements of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
did not audit the financial statements of Quinsigamond Community College Foundation, Inc., as 
discussed in Note 1.  The financial statements of this component unit were audited by other 
auditors, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to 
the amounts included for the entity not audited by us included in the discretely presented 
component unit of the College, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of Quinsigamond Community College as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, and the respective changes in net position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3-16, the schedules of proportionate share of 
net pension liability on page 49, the schedules of contributions on page 50 and the notes to the 
required supplementary information on page 51 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
October 11, 2017, on our consideration of the College's internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the College's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Certified Public Accountants 
Braintree, Massachusetts 
 
October 11, 2017 
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Introduction 
 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and 
activities of Quinsigamond Community College for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Readers 
are to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements and 
notes that follow this section of the report. 
 
Quinsigamond Community College was established in 1963 to provide access to higher 
education for Central Massachusetts residents.  It is one of twenty-four colleges and universities 
in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts system of public higher education, and is accredited by 
the New England Association of Schools and Colleges.   
 
For fifty-four years Quinsigamond Community College’s flexible admissions policy, low cost, 
and extensive financial aid program have provided opportunities for a first-class education and 
personal growth to thousands of area men and women.  Quinsigamond Community College 
provides unique opportunities specifically created to enhance the economic and social well-being 
of the Greater Worcester/Central Massachusetts region.  The trustees, faculty and staff recognize 
the long term educational requirements of this large urban area and its diverse populations and 
strive to meet these needs.  Quinsigamond graduates can be found throughout Central 
Massachusetts in responsible positions in business and industry, health and human services, and 
engineering and technology. 
 
As a two-year degree granting public college, Quinsigamond Community College is governed by 
a local Board of Trustees in accordance with the policies established by the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts Department of Higher Education. 
   
Financial Highlights 
 
Quinsigamond Community College realized a slight increase in its overall net position of $1.16 
million.  The College has maintained its overall net position during a time of declining 
enrollments.   Enrollments were at an approximate 4.3% decrease from the prior year but were in 
line with budgeted totals.  Enrollment state wide has been an ongoing issue over the last five 
years.  Quinsigamond continues to look for initiatives for the growth of enrollment. 
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Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to Quinsigamond 
Community College’s basic financial statements which are comprised of two components: 1) the 
financial statements and 2) the notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
1.) The Financial Statements:  The financial statements (pages 18-21) are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the College’s finances in a manner similar to a private sector 
college. 

 
The Statements of Net Position (p. 18) present information on the College’s assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
College’s financial position is improving or weakening. 

 
The Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position (p. 19) 
presents information showing how the College’s net position changed during the most 
recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that will 
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. expenses are recorded upon receipt 
of an invoice, regardless of when payment is made). 

 
The Statements of Cash Flows (p. 20-21) are reported on the direct method.  The direct 
method of cash flow reporting portrays net cash flows from operations as major classes of 
operating receipts (e.g. tuition and fees) and disbursements (e.g. cash paid to employees 
for services).  The Government Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statements 34 
and 35 require this method to be used. 

 
2.) Notes to the financial statements:  The notes provide additional information essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.  The notes to the financial 
statements can be found on pages 22-49 of this report. 
 
Quinsigamond Community College reports its activity as a business-type activity using the full 
accrual measurement focus and basis of accounting.  Quinsigamond Community College is a 
component unit of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Therefore, the result of the College’s 
operations, its net position and cash flow are also summarized in the Commonwealth’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report in its government-wide financial statements. 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole 
 
Schedules of Net Position 
 
As noted earlier, net position, over time, may serve as a useful indicator of Quinsigamond 
Community College’s financial position.  For the period ended June 30, 2017, assets exceeded 
liabilities by $42.21 million. This represents a slight increase of 2.8% from the prior year. 
 
The following schedule is prepared from the College’s statements of net position (page 18). 

 
Schedules of Net Position 

as of June 30, 
(in millions) 

          

 
 

2017  
 

2016  2015  
       
Current assets  $    20.39    $    19.47    $    21.51  
Non-current assets          0.01           0.01           0.01   
Capital assets, net of depreciation        47.04         47.24         36.45  
Deferred outflow of resources          4.80            4.78            0.92  
 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows        72.24         71.50         58.89  

       
Current liabilities         10.20          11.28          13.45  
Non-current liabilities         16.94          18.03          11.87  
Deferred inflows of resources           2.89             1.13             2.65  
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows         30.03           30.44          27.97   

       
Net Position:       
Investment in capital assets        45.95         45.93         34.82   
Restricted          0.29            0.29            0.29   
Unrestricted        (4.03)         (5.16)         (4.19)   
Total Net Position  $    42.21    $    41.06    $    30.92   

       
Total Liabilities and Net Position        72.24          71.50          58.89   
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 

Schedules of Net Position - Continued 

The largest portion of the College’s net position reflect its Investment in Capital Assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt, including capital leases used to 
acquire those assets.  The Restricted portion of the net position represents scholarships that are 
subject to restrictions on how they must be used.  The Unrestricted portion of the net position 
represents that net position that is available to meet the day-to-day operations of the College. 

In total, the College’s assets and deferred outflows were maintained at the FY 2016 level with a 
slight increase of approximately $745,000 or 1.04%.   

College liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by approximately $410,000 or 1.35%.  All 
liabilities have decreases from FY 2016 with the most significant changes in accounts payable, 
student deposits and unearned revenues, capital lease obligations and net pension liability which 
have offset the significant increase in the deferred inflows of resources related to the net pension 
liability of $1.76 million. 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Schedules of Net Position - Continued 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 
The following schedule is prepared from the College’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position (page 19), which is presented on an accrual basis.  Revenues and 
expenses are recorded, when either earned or incurred, regardless of when cash is received or 
paid.  This schedule represents the results of the College’s operations. 
 

Operating Results 
Years ended June 30, 

(in millions) 
            
  2017        2016         2015   
Operating Revenue:       
Tuition and fees net of 
scholarships and fellowships  $        22.26    $        20.72    $        18.23  
Grants and contracts            20.26              21.95              27.97   
Auxiliary              2.37               4.30               4.80  
Other              1.90                1.78                1.52   
  Total 46.79  48.75  52.52  
       
Less operating expenses            75.11             77.33             81.07  
       

Net operating loss 
          

(28.32)  
          

(28.58)  
          

(28.55)  
       
Non-operating Revenue (Expense):      
State appropriations           28.06           26.60         25.44  
Capital appropriations            1.38                   12.12            9.43  
Other non-operating revenue            0.03           (0.00)            (0.02)       
       
Increase (Decrease) in Net 
Position             1.15             10.14               6.30   
       
Net Position, beginning of 
year          41.06             30.92             24.62   
       
Net Position, end of year $        42.21    $       41.06     $      30.92   
       
       
       

 
 
 

QCC - 5th Year Interim Report - Appendices Page 14 of 125



Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Schedules of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Continued 
 
The College’s operating revenue is primarily comprised of State appropriations, tuition and fees 
(less scholarships and fellowships), grants and contracts (including financial aid), and auxiliary 
enterprises which include the operations of the student bookstore and the cafeteria. The College 
will continue to aggressively seek funding to support its operation consistent with its mission, as 
well as to continue to make prudent use of its financial resources for funding its operating 
activities. 
 
Loss from Operations 
 
Due to the nature of public higher education, institutions incur a loss from operations.  The 
Commonwealth’s Department of Higher Education presets tuition.  The College sets fees and 
other charges.  State appropriations to the College attempt to make up the loss from operations 
not made up by tuition and fees.  The Department of Higher Education and the Commonwealth 
of Massachusetts have worked diligently with the community colleges over the last few years to 
increase the base funding appropriations with success and look at performance based funding as 
well.  The College approves budgets to mitigate losses after Commonwealth appropriations by 
balancing educational and operational needs with tuition and fee revenue. 
 
Revenues 
 
The following is a graphic illustration of the College’s revenues by source, which are used to 
fund the College’s activities.   
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Revenues - continued 
 
Highlights of the revenue activity for the year include: 
 

• Total revenue decrease of $11.2 million or 12.81% for FY 2017 over FY 2016; 
• Total operating revenue decreased by $1.96 million, a decrease of 4.03%, due primarily 

to the change of operation for the College’s bookstore.  Follett has assumed the bookstore 
functions beginning October 2017 with a commission return to the College; 

• Capital Appropriation decreased by $10.73 million, or 88.58%.  FY 2016 was attributed 
to the funding for equipment in the QuEST Center and the QuEST Center itself. 

 
Operating Expenses 
 
Operating expenses can be displayed in two formats, natural classification or functional 
classification.  Both formats are included.   
 
The following is a summary of the College’s expenses using the Natural Classification Format: 
 

    
 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 
Compensation and benefits $ 55.11  $ 54.31   $ 52.38  
Supplies and services 17.43 19.99 25.56 
Depreciation and amortization 1.71  1.72  1.64  
Scholarships and fellowships 0.86  1.30  1.49  
Total operating expenses $ 75.11  $ 77.32  $ 81.07  

 
Total operating expenditures decreased from $77.32 million to $75.11 million, a decrease of 
$2.21 million.  Using the natural classification format, the decrease is largely due to a decrease in 
supplies and services which decreased by $2.56 million or 12.81% due to a change in operations 
of the bookstore. 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Operating Expenses - continued 
 
The following is a graphic representation of operating expenses using the Natural Classification 
Format: 
 

              
 
Natural classifications of expenditures are useful for budgeting and analyzing the operational 
aspect of a college, whereas functional classifications are more useful when comparing 
institutions of higher education.   
 
When looking at expenditures classified according to the Functional Classification Format, it is 
useful to note that instruction-related costs account for 54% of total expenditures. The 
distribution of functional expenditures has remained relatively consistent over the past five-year 
time period. 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 

Operating Expenses - Continued 

 The following is a summary of the College’s expenses using the Functional Classification 
Format.   

Functional Expenses 

FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 
Instruction $ 35.16 $ 34.72 $ 33.61 
Scholarships and fellowships 0.86 1.30 1.49 
Academic support 5.13 5.87 8.58 
Student services 11.77 11.12 12.94 
Institutional support 13.08 13.99 14.28 
Public service 0.10   0.12 0.17 
Operation & maintenance of plant 5.09 4.46 4.12 
Depreciation 1.71 1.72 1.64 
Auxiliary enterprises 2.21 4.02 4.24 
Total operating expenses $ 75.11 $ 77.32 $ 81.07 
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Financial Analysis of the College as a Whole - Continued 
 
Operating Expenses - Continued 
 

 
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
 
As of June 30, 2017, Quinsigamond Community College had $47.04 million invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt.  This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings (including 
improvements and construction in progress), furnishings and equipment (including the cost of 
capital leases) and books.  Depreciation charges for these capital assets totaled $1.71 million, 
while additions totaled $1.51 million for the current fiscal year. 
 
The College records capital assets under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, whereby 
assets are recorded at their historical cost and depreciated over the useful life of the asset.  In the 
case of land and buildings, these historical costs may vary significantly from their current fair 
market value.  
 
Capital asset investments for the year ended June 30, 2017 included the completion of the 
following construction and renovation projects during the year: 
 

• Emergency management upgrades 
• Finish construction of a manufacturing lab in the athletic center 
• Finish construction of DCAMM Science and Technology Building 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration - Continued 
 
Capital Assets - Continued 
 

• DCAMM elevator maintenance and upgrades 
• ADA Compliance projects 

 
The following chart details the capital assets: 
 

           
 

All capital asset purchases are pre-approved by the Board of Trustees and are included in the 
College’s capital spending plan submitted to the Board of Higher Education and the 
Commonwealth’s Fiscal Affairs Division.  Additional information about Quinsigamond 
Community College’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 (p. 32) of this report. 
 
Long-Term Liabilities 
 
At June 30, 2017, the College had $16.94 million in outstanding long-term liabilities which has 
decreased from FY 2016 largely due to the decrease in the net pension liability.  The College has 
seen significant decreases in bonds payable and capital leases as well with the pay-downs of 
each; combined, bonds payable represents 5% of total long term liabilities in FY 2017 and only a 
single capital lease is left to be paid off at June 30, 2017.  The accrued employee compensation 
and benefits has remained consistent between years with a slight increase from 11% to 12% for 
FY 2017. The chart on the next page illustrates this amount by type of debt instrument: 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration - Continued 
 
Long-Term Liabilities - continued 
 

 
 
 
Economic Factors that Will Affect the Future 
 
Statewide Concerns 
 
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as well as the nation continues to struggle with economic 
challenges.   The College will continue its prudent use of financial resources and pursue other 
revenue sources, such as Federal, State and Local Grants, donations and auxiliary enterprises. 
 
Regional Concerns 
 
Enrollment at 2-year institutions nationwide has seen a decrease as have 4-year colleges.  The 
Worcester trend is no different than the national trend.   Quinsigamond Community College 
continues to position itself to adapt to changes by developing programs, services, and policies for 
the College that seek to reduce social, psychological, geographic and financial barriers to college 
attendance.   
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Economic Factors that Will Affect the Future - Continued 
 
Regional Concerns - continued 
 
Quinsigamond Community College has expanded its programs geographically.  In addition to 
offering programs at our main campus on West Boylston Street in Worcester, the College also 
provides programs at the following locations: Southbridge, Massachusetts; the Worcester Senior 
Center; Burncoat High School; Worcester Vocational-Technical High School; Assabet Valley 
High School in Marlborough; and the Healthcare and Workforce Development Center in 
Downtown Worcester.   
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview for all those with an interest in 
Quinsigamond Community College’s finances. Questions concerning the information provided 
in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to Stephen 
Marini, COO/CFO and Vice President of Administrative Services, Quinsigamond Community 
College, 670 West Boylston Street, Worcester, MA, 01606. 
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QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts) 

Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 and 2016
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2017 2016 2017 2016
College College Foundation Foundation

Current Assets:
  Cash and equivalents 14,504,555$  13,024,746$ 371,369$    351,543$    
  Deposits held by State Treasurer 2,135,491 1,918,484     -                  -                  
  Cash held by State Treasurer 363,817 793,896        -                  -                  
  Accounts and grants receivable, net 2,661,959 3,309,321     -                  -                  
  Contributions receivable, current portion -                     -                    216,194      551,268      
  Inventory and other current assets 730,672         424,903        -                  5,993          

          Total Current Assets 20,396,494    19,471,350   587,563      908,804      

Non-Current Assets:
  Capital assets, net 47,036,958 47,238,006   -                  -                  
  Contributions receivable, non-current portion -                     -                    69,776        246,441      
  Investments -                     -                    2,516          3,552,868   
  Beneficial interest in assets held by others -                     -                    3,695,187   -                  
  Other assets 10,459           11,864          36,290        36,290        

          Total Non-Current Assets 47,047,417    47,249,870   3,803,769   3,835,599   

          Total Assets 67,443,911    66,721,220   4,391,332   4,744,403   

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
  Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 717,071 729,008 -                  -                  
  Change in plan actuarial assumptions 1,552,387 2,601,650     -                  -                  
  Differences between expected and actual experience 664,911 -                    -                  -                  
  Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 939,722         296,951        -                  -                  
  Changes in proportion 923,901         1,147,775     -                  -                  

          Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,797,992      4,775,384     -                  -                  

          Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 72,241,903$  71,496,604$ 4,391,332$ 4,744,403$ 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

   Government
   Primary Component

Unit

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statements of Net Position

June 30,
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2017 2016 2017 2016
College College Foundation Foundation

Current Liabilities:
  Accounts payable 2,251,690$    2,629,628$   6,341$        23,387$      
  Accrued salaries and wages 2,067,629 2,154,529     -                  -                  
  Accrued compensated absences 2,987,755      3,007,362     -                  -                  
  Accrued workers' compensation 167,676         188,336        -                  -                  
  Current portion of bonds payable 151,203 142,615        -                  -                  
  Current portion of capital lease obligations 14,980 108,620        -                  -                  
  Student deposits and unearned revenues 2,376,148 2,926,415     -                  -                  
  Funds held for others 180,470         121,179        -                  -                  

          Total Current Liabilities 10,197,551    11,278,684   6,341          23,387        

Non-Current Liabilities:
  Accrued compensated absences 1,263,991      1,250,519     -                  -                  
  Accrued workers' compensation 758,710         704,254        -                  -                  
  Bonds payable 904,223 1,055,548     -                  -                  
  Capital lease obligations 15,953 -                    -                  -                  
  Net pension liability 13,998,922 15,022,849   -                  -                  

          Total Non-Current Liabilities 16,941,799    18,033,170   -                  -                  

          Total Liabilities 27,139,350    29,311,854   6,341          23,387        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
  Differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments -                     431,694        -                  -                  
  Changes in proportion 2,889,105      694,964        -                  -                  

          Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,889,105      1,126,658     -                  -                  

          Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 30,028,455    30,438,512   6,341          23,387        

Net Position:
  Investment in capital assets, net 45,950,599    45,931,223   -                  -                  
  Restricted:
    Expendable 292,588         290,830        2,764,753   3,338,606   
    Nonexpendable -                     -                    459,657      438,122      
  Unrestricted (4,029,739)     (5,163,961)    1,160,581   944,288      

          Total Net Position 42,213,448    41,058,092   4,384,991   4,721,016   

          Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position 72,241,903$  71,496,604$ 4,391,332$ 4,744,403$ 

Primary Component
Government Unit

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
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2017 2016 2017 2016
College College Foundation Foundation

  Operating Revenues:
  Tuition and fees 39,710,027$    39,224,023$ -$         -$      
  Less: scholarships and fellowships (17,453,367)    (18,502,241)  -      -     
  Net tuition and fees 22,256,660  20,721,782   -      -     

  Federal grants and contracts 14,389,354 16,111,297   -      -     
  State grants and contracts 5,320,478 4,738,027     -      -     
  Private grants and contracts 550,806 1,100,303     -      -     
  Auxiliary enterprises 2,366,850 4,296,560     -      -     
  Gifts and contributions 613,740 545,196         287,683     785,699    
  Other income 1,291,778    1,238,793     -      22,834     

  Total Operating Revenues 46,789,666  48,751,958   287,683    808,533   

  Operating Expenses:
  Educational and general:

 Instruction 35,162,407  34,718,263   - - 
 Scholarship and fellowships 857,859   1,302,300     - - 
 Academic support 5,126,808     5,874,944     - - 
 Student services 11,771,275  11,118,692   - - 
 Institutional support 13,084,470  13,988,983   - - 
 Public service 97,141     123,575     - - 
 Operation and maintenance of plant 5,091,710     4,457,756     - - 
 Fundraising - - 83,736  70,288      
 Depreciation 1,709,299 1,721,254     -      -     
 Gifts and contributions -   -       931,990        1,084,413    
 Auxiliary enterprises 2,206,747    4,023,323     -      -     

  Total Operating Expenses 75,107,716  77,329,090   1,015,726     1,154,701    

  Operating Loss (28,318,050)    (28,577,132)  (728,043)   (346,168)     

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
  State appropriations, net 28,012,445 26,552,615   -      -     
  Restricted state appropriations 50,000     49,987   -      -     
  Investment income 56,157 31,668   392,018     80,832      
  Interest expense (29,222)    (36,066)     -      -     

  Net Non-Operating Revenues 28,089,380  26,598,204   392,018    80,832     

 Change in Net Position before Capital Appropriations (228,670)      (1,978,928)    (336,025)    (265,336)     

Capital appropriations 1,384,026    12,116,213   -      -     

Change in Net Position 1,155,356     10,137,285   (336,025)    (265,336)     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 41,058,092  30,920,807   4,721,016     4,986,352    

Net Position, End of Year 42,213,448$    41,058,092$ 4,384,991$   4,721,016$  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Primary 
Government

Component
Unit

For the Years Ended June 30,

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
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2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
  Tuition and fees 22,545,042$    19,718,519$    
  Grants and contracts 20,748,529      23,194,648      
  Payments to employees (46,979,580)     (48,115,958)     
  Payments to suppliers and vendors (15,907,394)     (16,952,203)     
  Scholarships and fellowships (857,859)          (1,302,300)       
  Auxiliary enterprises expenses (2,206,747)       (4,023,323)       
  Auxiliary enterprises revenues 2,366,850        4,296,560        
  Other income 1,905,518        1,783,989        

            Net Cash Applied to Operating Activities (18,385,641)     (21,400,068)     

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activity:
  State appropriations 20,589,977      20,332,574      

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
  Capital appropriations 99,121             1,103,500        
  Purchases of capital assets (795,307)          (870,239)          
  Principal paid on bond payable (142,737)          (135,947)          
  Principal paid on capital leases (125,611)          (183,799)          
  Interest paid on bond and capital leases (29,222)            (36,066)            

            Net Cash Applied to Capital Financing Activities (993,756)          (122,551)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activity:
  Investment income 56,157             31,668             

            Net Cash Provided by Investing Activity 56,157             31,668             

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents 1,266,737        (1,158,377)       

Cash and Equivalents, Beginning of the Year 15,737,126      16,895,503      

Cash and Equivalents, End of the Year 17,003,863$    15,737,126$    

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 
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2017 2016
Reconciliation of Net Operating Loss to 
   Net Cash Applied to Operating Activities:
     Net operating loss (28,318,050)$   (28,577,132)$   
     Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash
       applied to operating activities:
         Depreciation and amortization 1,709,299        1,721,254        
         Net pension activity 715,909           1,006,447        
         Bad debts 503,742           503,510           
         Fringe benefits provided by the State 7,472,468        6,270,028        
         Changes in assets and liabilities:
          Accounts receivable 143,620           (286,524)          
          Inventories and other assets (304,364)          662,481           
          Accounts payable (377,938)          (1,651,208)       
          Accrued salaries and wages (86,900)            (1,137,362)       
          Accrued compensated absences (6,135)              60,291             
          Accrued workers' compensation 33,796             3,376               
          Student deposits and unearned revenues 69,621             28,611             
          Funds held for others 59,291             (3,840)              

            Net Cash Applied to Operating Activities (18,385,641)$   (21,400,068)$   

Non-Cash Transactions:
  Capital assets acquired through capital leases 47,924$           29,761$           
  Capital assets acquired through capital appropriations 665,017$         9,373,324$      
  Fringe benefits provided by the State 7,472,468$      6,270,028$      

Cash and Equivalents, End of Year:
  Cash and equivalents 14,504,555$    13,024,746$    
  Deposits held by State Treasurer 2,135,491        1,918,484        
  Cash held by State Treasurer 363,817           793,896           

        Total 17,003,863$    15,737,126$    

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statements of Cash Flows - Continued

For the Years Ended June 30, 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 
Quinsigamond Community College (the "College") is a state-supported comprehensive 
college that offers a quality education leading to associate degrees in the arts and 
sciences, as well as one-year certificate programs.  The College’s primary campus is 
located in Worcester, Massachusetts and provides instruction and training in a variety 
of liberal arts, allied health and business fields of study.  The College also offers, 
through the Division of Continuing Education, credit and non-credit courses, as well as 
community service programs. The College is accredited by the New England 
Association of Schools and Colleges. 

Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).  

The Quinsigamond Community College Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), a 
component unit of the College, was formed in 1985 to render financial assistance and to 
support the educational programs and development of the College.  The Foundation is 
legally separate from the College, and the College is not financially accountable for the 
Foundation.  The Foundation has been included within these financial statements 
because of the nature and significance of its relationship with the College.  The 
complete financial statements can be obtained from the Foundation’s administrative 
office in Worcester, Massachusetts. 

Revenues  are  recorded  when  earned,  and  expenses  are  recorded  when  a liability  
is incurred,  regardless  of the timing of  related  cash flows.  Grants and similar items 
are recognized  as  revenue,  as soon  as  all  eligibility  requirements  have  been  met.   
The accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets 
demonstrates  the  degree  to which  the   direct expenses of a given function are offset 
by program revenues.  Direct expenses  are those that  are  clearly  identifiable  within  a 
specific  function.  Program  revenues primarily include  charges  to  students  or others 
who enroll or directly benefit from services that are  provided  by  a  particular 
function.  Items  not meeting  the  definition of program revenues are instead reported 
as general revenue. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

Basis of Presentation and Accounting - continued 
The College has determined that it functions as a business-type activity, as defined by 
GASB.  The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from these financial 
statements.  The basic financial statements and required supplementary information for 
general purpose governments consist of management’s discussion and analysis, basic 
financial statements including the College’s discretely presented component unit, the 
Foundation, and required supplementary information.  The College presents statements 
of net assets, revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flows on a 
combined College-wide basis. 

The College’s policies for defining operating activities in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net assets are those that generally result from exchange 
transactions such as the payment received for services and payment made for the 
purchase of goods and services.  Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating 
activities in accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities.  These 
non-operating activities include the College’s operating and capital appropriations from 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, net investment income, and interest expense. 

Net Position 
Resources are classified for accounting purposes into the following four net position 
categories: 

Investment in capital assets, net: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, repair or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted - nonexpendable: Net position subject to externally imposed conditions 
such that the College must maintain in perpetuity.  
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

Net Position - continued 

Restricted - expendable: Net position whose use is subject to externally imposed 
conditions that can be fulfilled by the actions of the College or by the passage of 
time. 

Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. Unrestricted net assets may be 
designated by actions of the College's Board of Trustees. 

The College has adopted a policy of generally utilizing restricted - expendable funds, 
when available, prior to unrestricted funds.  

Trust Funds 
In accordance with the requirements of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the 
College's operations are accounted for in several trust funds.  All of these trust funds 
have been consolidated and are included in these financial statements. 

Cash and Equivalents 
The College considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original 
maturity date of three months or less, and cash and deposits held by state agencies on 
behalf of the College to be cash equivalents. 

Investments 
Investments in marketable securities are stated at fair value. The College has no donor 
restricted endowments at June 30, 2017 and 2016. 

Inventories 
Inventories, consisting of books and publications, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market.  Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

Capital Assets 
Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost.  Furnishings, 
equipment and collection items are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the case of 
gifts, at fair value at date of donation.  In accordance with the state's capitalization 
policy, only those items with a unit cost of more than $50,000 are capitalized.  The 
College's capital assets, with the exception of land and construction in progress, are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which range from 5 
to 25 years.  The College does not hold collections of historical treasure, works of art or 
other items not requiring capitalization or depreciation.  

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets’ lives are expensed as incurred.  Additionally, certain of the 
College's capital appropriations are used for normal maintenance and repairs and are 
expensed as incurred. 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflow of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position of the Massachusetts State Employees’ Retirement 
System plan (“SERS”) and the additions to/deductions from SERS’ fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by SERS.  For this 
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

Fringe Benefits 
The College participates in the Commonwealth's fringe benefit programs, including 
health insurance, unemployment, pension and workers' compensation benefits.  Health 
insurance, unemployment and pension costs are billed through a fringe benefit rate 
charged to the College.  Workers’ compensation costs are assessed separately based on 
the College’s actual experience. 

Compensated Absences 
Employees earn the right to be compensated during absences for vacation and sick leave. 
Accrued vacation is the amount earned by all eligible employees through June 30, 2017.  
The accrued sick leave balance represents 20% of amounts earned by those employees 
with ten or more years of state service at June 30, 2017.  Upon retirement, these 
employees are entitled to receive payment for this accrued balance. 
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Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

Student Deposits and Unearned Revenues 
Student deposits and unearned revenues consist primarily of deposits and advance 
payments received for tuition and fees related to certain summer programs, and the 
following academic year, and are recorded as revenues when earned. 

Student Fees 
Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships.  Certain other 
scholarships are paid directly to the student and are generally reflected as expenses. 

Tax Status 
The   College  is  a  component  unit  of  the  Commonwealth  of  Massachusetts  and  is 
therefore  generally  exempt  from  income  taxes  under   Section  115  of   the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and assumptions affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates the estimates and 
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors that 
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Adjustments to 
estimates and assumptions are made as facts and circumstances require. As future events 
and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results may differ from the 
estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Significant estimates 
and assumptions are required as part of estimating an allowance for doubtful accounts, 
depreciation, and determining the net pension liability. 
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Note 1 -  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

New Governmental Accounting Pronouncements 
GASB Statement 83 - Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (“AROs”) is effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2018.  An ARO is a legally enforceable liability 
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. This Statement establishes 
criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a 
corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs and requires that recognition 
occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. Management has not 
completed its review of the requirements of this standard and its applicability. 

GASB Statement 84 - Fiduciary Activities is effective for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018. The objective of this statement is to establish criteria for identifying 
fiduciary activities. Activity meeting the established criteria would then be presented in a 
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. 
Pension and other employee-benefit trust funds, investment trust funds, private-purpose 
trust funds and custodial funds would be reported, as applicable, according to this 
Statement. Information of component units of a primary government would be combined 
and shown in the aggregate with the fiduciary funds of the primary government. Under 
this Statement, a liability could to be recognized to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund 
if the government has been compelled to disburse fiduciary resources. Management has 
not yet evaluated the effects of the implementation of this Statement. 

GASB Statement 85 – Omnibus 2017 is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2017. The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been 
identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This 
Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component 
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and post-employment benefits 
(pensions and other post-employment benefits). Management has not completed its 
review of the requirements of this standard and its applicability. 
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued 

New Governmental Accounting Pronouncements - continued 
GASB Statement 86 – Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues is effective for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance 
of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets 
acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding 
debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This 
Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on 
debt that is extinguished and disclosures in the financial statements for debt that is 
defeased in substance. Management has not completed its review of the requirements of 
this standard. 

GASB Statement 87 – Leases is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 
2019.  Implementation of this standard will require lessees to recognize on their 
statement of net position the rights and obligations resulting from leases categorized as 
operating leases as assets, liabilities, or deferred inflows/outflows of resources.  It 
provides for an election on leases with terms of less than twelve months to be excluded 
from this Standard.  Management is in the process of evaluating this standard and has 
not yet determined its impact on the financial statements. 

GASB Statement 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. 
This Statement replaces Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pension Plans and Statement 57, 
OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans. The 
objective of Statement 75 is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and 
local governments for post-employment benefits other than pensions (“OPEB”). It also 
requires additional information by state and local governmental employers about 
financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. The Statement establishes 
standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of 
resources, and expense/expenditures. GASB 75 also identifies the assumptions and 
methods that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected 
benefit payments to their actuarial present value and attribute that present value to 
periods of employee service for defined benefit OPEB. As discussed in Note 14, 
management anticipates that implementation of this standard will require the 
restatement of balances as of July 1, 2017. 
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Note 2 - Cash and Equivalents  
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institutions failure, the 
College would not be able to recover its deposits in full.  The College periodically 
maintains cash balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(“FDIC”) insurable limits.  The standard FDIC insurance amount is $250,000 per 
depositor, per insured bank, for each ownership category. 

 
Management monitors the financial condition of banking institutions, along with its cash 
balances, to keep this potential risk to a minimum.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the 
carrying amount of the College's deposits, net of deposits and disbursements in transit, 
were $14,504,555 and $13,024,746, respectively.  At June 30, 2017 and 2016, uninsured 
cash balances in excess of FDIC limits were $15,279,796 and $13,883,978, respectively. 

 
The Treasurer of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts oversees the financial 
management of the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (“MMDT”), an external 
investment pool for cities, towns and other state and local agencies within the 
Commonwealth.  MMDT operates as a Rule 2a-7-like pool and is valued by MMDT’s 
management on amortized cost where the net asset value is $1 per share. At  June 30, 
2017 and 2016, the College  has  $6,002,545 and $5,948,307, respectively, invested with 
MMDT and is included within cash and equivalents. 
 

Note 3 - Cash Held By State Treasurer 
 
Accounts payable and accrued salaries to be funded from state-appropriated funds 
totaled $363,817 and $793,896 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  The College 
has recorded a comparable dollar amount of cash held by the State Treasurer for the 
benefit of the College, which was subsequently utilized to pay for such liabilities. 
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Note 4 - Investments  

Investments of the Foundation are stated at fair value and consist of the following at 
June 30,: 

Market Cost Market Cost

Money market 2,516$         2,516$         121,835$     121,835$     
Common stocks - - 1,615,937    1,400,724    
Mutual funds - - 1,119,984    1,113,310    
Preferred securities - - 7,897           6,509           
Corporate bonds - - 470,762       461,282       
U.S. Gov't bonds - - 216,453 204,307 

Total 2,516$         2,516$         3,552,868$  3,307,967$  

2017 2016

The following schedule summarizes the Foundation’s investment return and its 
classification in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the 
years ended June 30,: 

2017 2016

Interest and dividends 70,794$      120,973$  
Realized gains 309,054      4,553        
Unrealized losses 12,170        (44,694)     

392,018$    80,832$    
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Note 5 -  Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 

The Foundation transferred $3,452,702 to the Greater Worcester Community 
Foundation, Inc. as agency funds for the purpose of managing the investment of those 
assets.  Such investment assets are accounted for as liabilities equal to the fair value of 
assets in accordance with U.S. GAAP by the recipient organization.  The Foundation has 
two agency funds and variance power was not granted to the Greater Worcester 
Community Foundation Inc.  The funds may be withdrawn at the discretion of the board 
of directors of the Foundation. 

Note 6 -  Accounts and Grants Receivable 

Accounts and grants receivable are comprised of the following at June 30,: 

2017 2016

Student accounts receivable 3,630,061$  3,117,322$  
Grants receivable 488,131       961,126       
Other receivables 265,866 793,334 

4,384,058    4,871,782    
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (1,722,099)   (1,562,461)   

2,661,959$  3,309,321$  

QCC - 5th Year Interim Report - Appendices Page 38 of 125



Note 7 - Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows: 

Estimated
lives Beginning Ending

(in years) Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications Balance

Capital assets, not depreciable:
Land -         1,270,349$     -$  -$               -$  1,270,349$     
Construction-in-progress -         22,818,001     1,460,327      -                 (605,219)           23,673,109     

Total 24,088,350     1,460,327      -                 (605,219)           24,943,458     

Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings, including

improvements 25 46,113,196     - -                 605,219            46,718,415     
Furnishings and equipment

(including the cost of capital 
leases) 5 6,249,707       47,924           121,468     - 6,176,163       

Total 52,362,903     47,924           121,468     605,219            52,894,578     

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings, including

improvements 23,671,210     1,442,864      -                 - 25,114,074     
    Furnishings and equipment 5,542,037       266,435         121,468     - 5,687,004       

Total accumulated depreciation 29,213,247     1,709,299      121,468     - 30,801,078     

Depreciable assets, net 23,149,656     (1,661,375)     -                 605,219            22,093,500     

Capital Assets, Net 47,238,006$   (201,048)$      -$               -$  47,036,958$   

QCC - 5th Year Interim Report - Appendices Page 39 of 125



Note 7 -  Capital Assets - Continued 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows: 

Estimated
lives Beginning Ending

(in years) Balance Additions Retirements Reclassifications Balance

Capital assets, not depreciable:
Land -         1,270,349$     -$  -$               $ - 1,270,349$     
Construction-in-progress -         11,054,753     12,398,817    -                 (635,569)           22,818,001     

Total 12,325,102     12,398,817    -                 (635,569)           24,088,350     

Capital assets, depreciable:
Buildings, including

improvements 25 45,477,627     - -                 635,569            46,113,196     
Furnishings and equipment

(including the cost of capital 
leases) 5 6,249,748       115,344         115,385     - 6,249,707       

Total 51,727,375     115,344         115,385     635,569            52,362,903     

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings, including

improvements 22,248,385     1,422,825      -                 - 23,671,210     
    Furnishings and equipment 5,358,993       298,429         115,385     - 5,542,037       

Total accumulated depreciation 27,607,378     1,721,254      115,385     - 29,213,247     

Depreciable assets, net 24,119,997     (1,605,910)     -                 635,569            23,149,656     

Capital Assets, Net 36,445,099$   10,792,907$  -$               -$  47,238,006$   
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Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2017 consist of: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

Other long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 4,257,881$     -$ 6,135$         4,251,746$     2,987,755$    
Workers' compensation 892,590          926,386           892,590       926,386          167,676         
Net pension liability 15,022,849     4,913,357        5,937,284    13,998,922     - 

Total other long-term liabilities 20,173,320     5,839,743        6,836,009    19,177,054     3,155,431      

Leases and bonds payable:
Bonds payable 1,198,163       - 142,737       1,055,426       151,203         
Lease obligations 108,620          47,924             125,611       30,933            14,980           

Total 21,480,103$   5,887,667$      7,104,357$  20,263,413$   3,321,614$    

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2016 consist of: 

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

Other long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences 4,197,590$     60,291$           -$                 4,257,881$     3,007,362$    
Workers' compensation 889,214          892,590           889,214       892,590          188,336         
Net pension liability 8,636,663       9,182,797        2,796,611    15,022,849     - 

Total other long-term liabilities 13,723,467     10,135,678      3,685,825    20,173,320     3,195,698      

Leases and bonds payable:
Bonds payable 1,334,110       - 135,947       1,198,163       142,615         
Lease obligations 292,419          - 183,799       108,620          108,620         

Total 15,349,996$   10,135,678$    4,005,571$  21,480,103$   3,446,933$    
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Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities - Continued 

In May 2008, the College issued $2,147,618 in revenue bonds issue Series M-4 through 
the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (“HEFA”) to refinance 
Series J-5 bonds previously issued by the College.  The Series M-4 bonds are payable in 
annual installments over the next six years with principal amounts ranging between 
approximately $151,000 and $202,000. 

Interest is payable the first business day of every month at a predetermined varying rate 
(0.96% and 0.45% as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively) above a basis of 1.25%.   

Remaining principal and interest payments for the years subsequent to June 30, 2017, on 
bonds payable are as follows: 

Years Ending
June 30, Principal Interest

2018 151,203$     2,291$    
2019 160,404       1,962      
2020 170,028       1,614      
2021 180,230       1,245      
2022 191,044       854         
2023 202,517 439         

1,055,426$  8,405$    

The College leases certain computer equipment, vehicles, and machinery under various 
leases at interest ranging from 4.219% to 6.50% expiring through June 2019.  Property 
held under capital leases as of June 30, consists of: 

2017 2016

Furnishings and equipment 47,924$        1,356,732$  
Less: accumulated amortization 4,792            1,304,395 

43,132$        52,337$       
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Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities - Continued 

During the years ending June 30, 2018 and 2019, the minimum payments due under 
non-cancelable leases are $14,980 and $15,953 of principal, respectively, and $2,011 
and $1,037 of interest, respectively. 

Note 9 - Restricted Net Position 

The College is the recipient of funds that are subject to various external constraints 
upon their use, either as to purpose or time. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, all restricted 
expendable net positions are for scholarships and fellowships and amount to 
$292,588 and $290,830, respectively.   

The  Foundation’s  restricted - expendable  net  position  consists of the  following  at  
June 30,: 

2017 2016

Furnishings and fixtures 370,621$      987,004$     
Scholarships 522,234        492,807       
New building/renovations 421,523        421,523       
Federal term endowment 451,661        417,952       
Technology upgrading 356,504        356,504       
Book acquisitions 343,245        343,244       
Academic and faculty support 298,965        319,572 

Total 2,764,753$   3,338,606$  

Note 10  - Contingencies 

The College receives significant financial assistance from federal and state agencies in 
the form of grants. Expenditures of funds under these programs require compliance 
with the grant agreements and are subject to audit. Any disallowed expenditure 
resulting from such audits becomes a liability of the College. In the opinion of 
management, such adjustments, if any, are not expected to materially affect the 
financial condition of the College. 
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Note 10  - Contingencies - Continued 

The College participates in the Massachusetts College Savings Prepaid Tuition 
Program (the “Program”). This Program allows individuals to pay in advance for 
future tuition at the cost of tuition at the time of election to participate, increased by 
changes in the Consumer Price Index plus 2%. The College is obligated to accept as 
payment of tuition, the amount determined by the Program without regard to the 
standard tuition rate in effect at the time of the individual’s enrollment at the College. 
The effect of the program cannot be determined as it is contingent on future tuition 
increases and the Program participants who attend the College. 

Note 11 - Operating Expenses 

The College’s operating expenses, on a natural classification basis, are comprised of 
the following at June 30:, 

2017 2016

Compensation and benefits 55,108,722$   54,318,739$   
Supplies and services 17,431,836     19,986,797     
Depreciation and amortization 1,709,299       1,721,254       
Scholarships and fellowships 857,859          1,302,300       

75,107,716$   77,329,090$   
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Note 12 -  Operating Lease 

The College leases software maintenance programs, office equipment, buildings and 
parking space under lease agreements that expire at various times through August 
2024.  The agreements require annual lease payments as follows: 

Years Ending
June 30, Amount

2018 2,176,821$     
2019 1,724,667       
2020 1,747,529       
2021 1,712,725       
2022 1,706,280       

Thereafter 3,696,940       

12,764,962$   

Note 13 - Pensions 

Defined-Benefit Plan Description 
Certain employees of the College participate in a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined-benefit pension plan – the Massachusetts State Employees’ Retirement 
System – administered by the Massachusetts State Board of Retirement (the “Board”), 
which is a public employee retirement system (“PERS”).  Under a cost-sharing plan, 
pension obligations for employees of all employers are pooled and plan assets are 
available to pay the benefits through the plan, regardless of the status of the employers’ 
payment of its pension obligations to the plan.  The plan provides retirement and 
disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 

The Massachusetts State Employees’ Retirement System does not issue stand-alone 
financial statements. 

The College makes contributions on behalf of the employees paid by State 
appropriations through a benefit charge assessed by the Commonwealth. Such pension 
expense amounted to $2,778,057 and $2,631,225 for the years ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively.  Employees, who contribute a percentage of their regular 
compensation, fund the annuity portion of the Retirement System. Annual covered 
payroll was approximately 51% and 52% of total related payroll for the fiscal years 
end 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 

Defined Benefit Plan Description - continued 

Benefit Provisions 
SERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to members and 
their beneficiaries.  Massachusetts General Laws (“MGL”) establishes uniform 
benefit and contribution requirements for all contributory PERS.  These requirements 
provide for superannuation retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of 
a member’s highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation.  For 
employees hired after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances are calculated based on 
the last five years or any five consecutive years, whichever is greater in terms of 
compensation.  Benefit payments are based upon a member’s age, length of creditable 
service, and group creditable service, and group classification.  The authority for 
amending these provisions rests with the Legislature. 

Members become vested after ten years of creditable service.  A superannuation 
retirement allowance may be received upon the completion of twenty years of service 
or upon reaching the age of 55 with ten years of service.  Normal retirement for most 
employees occurs at age 65; for certain hazardous duty and public safety positions, 
normal retirement is at age 55.  Most employees who joined the system after April 1, 
2012 are not eligible to retire prior to age 60. 

Contributions 
The SERS’ funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL.  The 
Legislature has the authority to amend these policies.  The annuity portion of the 
SERS retirement allowance is funded by employees, who contribute a percentage of 
their regular compensation.  Costs of administering the plan are funded out of plan 
assets. 
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Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 

Contributions - continued 
Member contributions for SERS vary depending on the most recent date of 
membership: 

Hire Date Percent of Compensation
Prior to 1975 5% of regular compensation
1975 - 1983 7% of regular compensation
1984 to 6/30/1996 8% of regular compensation
7/1/1996 to present 9% of regular compensation

except for State Police which
is 12% of regular
compensation

1979 to present An additional 2% of regular
compenation in excess of
$30,000

The College is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate was 
9.95% and 9.45% of annual covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 
and 2016, respectively.  The College contributed $717,071 and $729,008 for the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, equal to 100% of the required 
contributions for the year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College reported a liability of $13,998,922 and 
$15,022,849, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net pension liability 
related to its participation in SERS.  The net pension liability as of June 30, 2017, the 
reporting date, was measured as of June 30, 2016, the measurement date, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2016. The net 
pension liability as of June 30, 2016, the reporting date, was measured as of June 30, 
2015, the measurement date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2015 rolled 
forward to June 30, 2015. 

QCC - 5th Year Interim Report - Appendices Page 47 of 125



Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources - continued 
The College’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on its share of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ collective pension amounts allocated on the basis 
of actual fringe benefit charges assessed to the College for the fiscal years 2016 and 
2015, respectively. The Commonwealth’s proportionate share was based on actual 
employer contributions to the SERS for fiscal years 2016 and 2015 relative to total 
contributions of all participating employers for the fiscal years. At June 30, 2016 and 
2015, the College’s proportion was 0.102% and 0.132%, respectively. 

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College recognized pension expense 
of $1,443,443 and $1,753,063, respectively. The College reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources at June 30,: 

Deferred Outflows of Resources
2017 2016

Contributions subsequent to the
 measurement date 717,071$     729,008$     

Change in plan actuarial assumptions 1,552,387    2,601,650    

Differences between expected and actual
experience 664,911 - 

Differences between projected and actual
 earnings on pension plan investments 939,722       296,951       

Changes in proportion 923,901 1,147,775 

            Total 4,797,992$  4,775,384$  

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Differences between projected and actual
 earnings on pension plan investments -$  431,694$     

Changes in proportion 2,889,105 694,964 

            Total 2,889,105$  1,126,658$  
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Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources - continued 
The College’s contributions of $717,071 and $729,008 made during the fiscal years 
ending 2017 and 2016, respectively, subsequent to the measurement date will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in each of the succeeding years.  
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized as increases (decreases) in pension 
expense as follows: 

Years Ending
June 30,

2018 206,322$       
2019 206,322         
2020 583,659         
2021 126,775         
2022 68,738           

1,191,816$    

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Measurement date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 

Inflation        3.00%         3.00% 
Salary increases 4.00% - 9.00% 3.50% - 9.00% 
Investment rate of return        7.50%        7.50% 
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Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 
 
Actuarial Assumptions - continued 
For measurement dates June 30, 2016 and 2015, mortality rates were based on the 
pre-retirement of RP-2000 Employees table projected generationally with Scale BB 
and base year of 2009 (gender distinct) and post-retirement of Healthy Annuitant table 
projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2009 (gender distinct). 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2016 and 2015 valuation rolled 
forward to June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and the calculation of the total 
pension liability at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were consistent with the 
results of the actuarial experience study performed as of January 1, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. 

 
Investment assets of SERS are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust (“PRIT”) 
Fund.  The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future rates of return are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage.  Best estimates of 
geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund’s target 
asset allocation as of June 30, are summarized in the following tables: 

                                                   

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-term 
expected real 
rate of return

Target 
Allocation

Long-term 
expected real 
rate of return

Global Equity 40% 6.90% 40% 6.90%
Core Fixed Income 13% 1.60% 13% 2.40%
Private Equity 10% 8.70% 10% 8.50%
Real Estate 10% 4.60% 10% 6.50%
Value Added Fixed Income 10% 4.80% 10% 5.80%
Hedge Funds 9% 4.00% 9% 5.80%
Portfolio Completion Strategies 4% 3.60% 4% 5.50%
Timber/Natural Resources 4% 5.40% 4% 6.60%

100% 100%

2016 2015
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Note 13 - Pensions - Continued 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% at June 30, 
2016 and 2015.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rates 
and the Commonwealth’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contributions rates and the member rates. Based on 
those assumptions, the net position was projected to be available to make all projected 
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following tables illustrate the sensitivity of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-
point higher than the current rate. 

June 30, 2017 
Current

1.00% Decrease Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
18,242,764$     13,998,922$      10,402,101$     

June 30, 2016 
Current

1.00% Decrease Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)
20,420,982$     15,022,849$      10,366,885$     
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Note 14 - Fringe Benefits Provided by the State 
  
Fringe Benefits 
Under Chapter 32A of the Massachusetts General Laws, the Commonwealth is 
required to provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired 
employees of the Commonwealth, housing authorities, redevelopment authorities and 
certain other governmental agencies. Substantially all of the Commonwealth’s fringe 
benefited employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement 
age while working for the Commonwealth. Eligible retirees are required to contribute 
a specified percentage of the health care benefit costs, which is comparable to 
contributions required from employees. The Commonwealth is reimbursed for the 
cost of the benefits to retirees from employees. The Commonwealth is reimbursed for 
the cost of benefits to retirees of the eligible authorities and non-state agencies.  

 
Group Insurance Commission 
The Commonwealth's Group Insurance Commission (“GIC”) was established by the 
Legislature in 1955 to provide and administer health insurance and other benefits to 
the Commonwealth's employees and retirees, and their dependents and survivors.  
The GIC also covers housing and redevelopment authorities’ personnel, certain 
authorities and other offline agencies, retired municipal teachers from certain cities 
and towns and a small amount of municipalities as an agent multiple employer 
program, accounted for as an agency fund activity of the Commonwealth, not the 
College. 

 
The GIC administers a plan included within the State Retirement Benefits Trust Fund, 
an irrevocable trust.  Any assets accumulated in excess of liabilities to pay premiums, 
benefits or administrative expenses are retained in that fund.  The GIC's 
administrative costs are financed through Commonwealth appropriations and 
employee investment returns.  The Legislature determines employees' and retirees' 
contribution rates.  

 
The GIC is a quasi-independent state agency governed by an eleven-member body 
(the "Commission") appointed by the Governor.  The GIC is administratively located 
within the Executive Office of Administration and Finance, and it is responsible for 
providing health insurance and other benefits to the Commonwealth's employees and 
retirees, and their survivors and dependents.  
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Note 14 - Fringe Benefits Provided by the State - Continued 

Group Insurance Commission - continued 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and 2017, the GIC provided health 
insurance for its members through indemnity, PPO, and HMO plans. The GIC also 
administers carve-outs for pharmacy, mental health, and substance abuse benefits for 
certain of its health plans.  In addition to health insurance, the GIC sponsors life 
insurance, long-term disability insurance (for active employees only), dental and vision 
coverage (for employees not covered by collective bargaining), retiree discount vision 
and dental plans, and a pre-tax health care spending account and dependent care 
assistance program (for active employees only). 

  New Accounting Guidance Effective for Fiscal 2018 
As discussed in Note 1, GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-
employment Benefits Other Than Pensions is effective for fiscal 2018 and is applicable 
for employees participating in a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan such as the State 
Retirement Benefits Trust Fund. The College will be required to restate beginning net 
position as of July 1, 2017 to recognize the employer’s proportionate share of the 
plan’s net other postemployment benefit (“OPEB”) obligation. OPEB expense reported 
in the College’s financial statements will reflect the change in the net OPEB liability 
for the fiscal year. 

  Insurance 
The College participates in the various programs administered by the Commonwealth 
for property, general liability, automobile liability, workers’ compensation and health 
insurance. The Commonwealth is self-insured for employees’ workers’ compensation, 
casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses. Such losses, including estimates of 
amounts incurred but not reported, are obligations of the Commonwealth. For workers’ 
compensation, the Commonwealth assumes the full risk of claims filed under a 
program managed by the Human Resources Division. For personal injury or property 
damages, Massachusetts General Laws limit the risk assumed by the Commonwealth 
to $100,000 per occurrence, in most circumstances. 
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Note 14 - Fringe Benefits Provided by the State - Continued 

  Other Employee Benefits 
The employees of the College can elect to participate in two defined-contribution plans 
offered and administered by the Massachusetts Department of Higher Education - an 
IRC 403(b) Tax-Deferred Annuity Plan and an IRC 457 Deferred Compensation 
SMART Plan. Employees can contribute by payroll deduction a portion of before-tax 
salary into these plans up to certain limits. The College has no obligation to contribute 
to these Plans and no obligation for any future pay-outs. 

Note 15 - Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting System 

Section 15C of Chapter 15A of the Massachusetts General Laws requires 
Commonwealth Colleges and Universities to report activity of campus based funds to 
the Comptroller of the Commonwealth on the Commonwealth’s Statewide Accounting 
System, Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting System (MMARS), on 
the statutory basis of accounting. The statutory basis of accounting is a modified 
accrual basis of accounting and differs from the information included in these financial 
statements. Management believes the amounts reported on MMARS meet the 
guidelines of the Comptroller’s Guide for Higher Education Audited Financial 
Statements.
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Note 15 - Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting System - Continued 
 
The College’s state appropriation is composed of the following at June 30,:  
 

2017 2016

Direct unrestricted appropriations 20,759,163$   20,581,349$   
Add:

Fringe benefits for benefited employees
on the State payroll 7,472,468       6,270,028       

Less:
Day school tuition remitted to the State
and included in tuition and fee revenue (219,186)         (298,762)         

Total unrestricted appropriations 28,012,445     26,552,615     

Capital appropriations 1,384,026       12,116,213     
Restricted appropriations 50,000            49,987            

Total appropriations 29,446,471$   38,718,815$   
  
The restricted appropriations are restricted in use for the Workforce Training 
Incentive. 

 
A reconciliation between revenue reported to MMARS and the College for the years 
ended June 30, is as follows (unaudited): 
 

2017 2016

Revenue per MMARS 46,553,391$    47,940,761$   
Revenue per College 46,553,391      47,940,761     
Difference -$                     -$                     
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Note 16 -  Pass-Through Grants 
 

The College distributed $24,438,584 and $24,116,127 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively, for student loans through the U.S. Department of Education Federal 
direct lending program. These distributions and related funding sources are not 
included as expenses and revenues or as cash disbursements and cash receipts in the 
accompanying financial statements. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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Valuation date January 1, 2016 January 1, 2015 January 1, 2014
Measurement date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.102% 0.132% 0.116%

Proportionate share of the collective net 
     pension liability 13,998,922$     15,022,849$    8,636,663$       

Covered-employee payroll 7,714,370$       7,952,387$      8,629,218$       

Proportionate share of the net 
     pension liability as a percentage of its
     covered-employee payroll 181.47% 188.91% 100.09%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
     total pension liability 63.48% 67.87% 76.32%

Notes:

The GASB pronouncement requiring the presentation of the information on this schedule became effective 
for years  beginning after  June 15, 2014  and is intended to provide data for the most recent ten years.

See accompanying notes to the required supplemental information.

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNTY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Unaudited)
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2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 717,071$       729,008$       826,253$       

Contributions in relation to the contractually required
     contribution 717,071         729,008         826,253         

Contribution excess -$                   -$                   -$                   

Covered-employee payroll 7,206,744$    7,714,370$    7,952,387$    

Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 9.95% 9.45% 10.39%

Notes:

Employers participating in the Massachusetts State Employees' Retirement System are required by MA
General Laws, Section 32, to contribute an actuarially determined contribution rate each year.

The GASB pronouncement requiring the presentation of the information on this schedule became effective 
for years  beginning after  June 15, 2014  and is intended to provide data for the most recent ten years.

See accompanying notes to the required supplemental information.

QUINSIGAMOND COMMUNTY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Schedules of Contributions (Unaudited)

For the Years Ended June 30, 
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Note 1 - Change in Assumptions 

Changes in assumptions about the discount rate from 8.00% to 7.50%, using different 
scales within mortality tables, and other inputs resulted in additional plan wide 
pension expense of $2.33 billion dollars to be charged to income over an amortization 
period of 5.5 years beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Previously, 
changes in assumptions about future economic or demographic factors and inputs 
resulted in additional plan wide pension expense of $102 million dollars to be 
charged to income over an amortization period of 5.5 years beginning with the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2015. The unamortized portion of the change is reported as a 
deferred outflow of resources in the statements of net position. The College’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability and the results of changes in 
assumptions is 0.102%, 0.132% and 0.116% in fiscal years 2017, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively, as shown on the Schedules of Proportionate Share of Net Pension 
Liability, and represent the relationship of contributions made by the College to total 
contributions by all participating State Agencies. 

The College’s portion of these amounts is as follows: 

           2017 2016 2015 

Changes in assumptions       $ 3,133,762         $ 3,133,762        $118,660 
Recognized in current year pension expense          1,581,375  532,112            21,575 
Deferred outflows of resources      $ 1,552,387          $ 2,601,650        $  97,085 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON 
COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON 
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
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APPENDIX C – Auditor’s Management Letter 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees of 
Quinsigamond Community College 
Worcester, Massachusetts 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
Quinsigamond Community College (the "College"), which comprise the statements of net 
position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes 
in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise Quinsigamond Community College's basic financial 
statements, and we have issued our report thereon dated October 11, 2017.   

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Quinsigamond 
Community College's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College's internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Quinsigamond Community College’s 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose.  

Certified Public Accountants 
Braintree, Massachusetts 

October 11, 2017 
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APPENDIX D – Data First Forms 
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Institution Name: Quinsigamond Community College

OPE ID: ? 2175

0
? 0 Certified: Qualified

Financial Results for Year Ending: ? 06/30 Yes/No Unqualified
     Most Recent Year ? 2017 yes Unqualified
     1 Year Prior 2016 yes Unqualified
     2 Years Prior 2015 yes Unqualified

Fiscal Year Ends on:  6/30 (month/day)

Budget / Plans
     Current Year $58,429,903
     Next Year $57,193,564

Contact Person: ? Dr. Nancy Schoenfeld
     Title: Vice President of Academic Affairs
     Telephone No: 508-854-4425
     E-mail address nschoenfeld@qcc.mass.edu

Annual Audit

INTERIM REPORT FORMS
GENERAL INFORMATION
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Attach a copy of the current mission statement.
Document Date Approved by the Governing Board

Institutional Mission Statement ? ? 12/02/2009

PLANNING

Year 
approved by 
governing 

board
Effective 

Dates Website location
Strategic Plans ? ? ?

Immediately prior Strategic Plan 2013 2010-2015 https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/qcc_strategicplan_32_pager.pdf

Current Strategic Plan 2013 2014-2017
https://www.qcc.edu/files/about/strategic_plan_extension_2014-
17.pdf

Next Strategic Plan 2018 2018-2023
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/copy_of_goals_metrics_a
nd_strategies_draft_v5.pdf

Year
completed

Effective 
Dates Website location

Other institution-wide plans*
Master plan 2015 2015-2020 https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/qcc_master_pl
Technology plan 2015 2015-2020 https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/tech_plan_2015.pdf 

Enrollment plan 2016 2016-2020
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/enrollment_management
_plan.docx 

Development plan 2018 2018-2019 https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/development_plan.pdf 
Plans for major units (e.g., departments, library)* 
?

EVALUATION Website location

Academic program review
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/apr_guidebook_for_prog
rams.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/apr_guidebook_for_disci
plines.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/files/NEASC/2018/apr_guidebook_for_prog
rams_with_external_accreditation.pdf

Program review system (colleges and departments). System last updated: ? Aug-16
Program review schedule  (e.g., every 5 years) Approx. 5 years
*Insert additional rows, as appropriate.

Please attach to this form:
1) A copy of the institution's organization chart(s).

Governing Board
By-laws
Board members' names and affiliations

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Website Location
w.qcc.edu/about/mission-s

Standard 1:  Mission and Purposes

Standard 3:  Organization and Governance

Standard 2:  Planning and Evaluation

(Board and Internal Governance)

If there is a "sponsoring entity," such as a church or religious congregation, a state system, or a corporation, describe and document 
the relationship with the accredited institution.

Name of the sponsoring entity
Website location of documentation of relationship

2017-2018 BOARD OF TRUSTEES
https://www.qcc.edu/files/president/by-laws_of_the_board_amended_6.10.15.pdf
https://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/board-members

Mass. Dept. of Higher Education
http://www.mass.edu/bhe/powers.asp
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President 
Gail Carberry 

Vice President for 
Strategic 

Enrollment Development 
& 

Student Engagement 
Lillian Ortiz 

Associate Vice President 
Human Resources 

William Daring 

Vice President 
Community 
Engagement 

Dale Allen 

Vice President 
Administrative 

Services 
Stephen Marini 

Vice President 
Academic Affairs 

Patricia Toney 

Administrative Secretary I 
Elizabeth Ortiz 

 

President’s Staff 6/14/2018 

Board of 
Trustees 

Executive Assistant to the 
President for Policy, 

Governance, and 
Diversity 

PRESIDENT’S STAFF 

 
Staff Assistant 

 
 

Administrative Secretary I 
 
 

President 

Vice President  
Strategic Enrollment 

Development & Student  
Engagement 

Interim Vice President  
Academic Affairs 

COO/CFO and Vice 
President  

Administrative Services 
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Dean Career  
& Academic 
Advisement 

Maria Addison 

Director Special 
Projects & Perkins 
Related Activities  

Donna Kilgore 

School of Business, 
Engineering, & 

Technology 
Kathleen Rentsch 

Project Director TRIO 
Student Support  

Services Program 
Joseph Adams 

Dean of Center for 
Workforce Development 
& Continuing Education 

Kathleen Manning 

Clerk III 
Erica Merrill 

Coordinator of Instructional 
Technology & Assessment 

Louise Hamelin  
Ruth Ronan 

 
Coordinator of Professional 

Development 
Nancy Donohue-Berthiaume 

 
Administrative Secretary I 

Sharon Wilbur 

 

Dean of School of 
Humanities & 

Education 

Staff Assistant  
Assistant Vice President 

For Workforce Readiness and Innovation 
 

            Academic Affairs 6/14/2018 

Dean 
Library & Academic 
Support Services  

Interim Vice President 
Academic Affairs 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 

Dean of School of 
Math & Science 

Dean of School of 
Public Service & Social 

Sciences 

Dean of School of 
Health Care  

Director of College & 
Career Pathways 

Program Manager, 
Gateway to College 

Marci Skillings 

Clerk III 

Dean of School of 
Business, Engineering, 

& Technology  

Dean of Academic 
Planning 

Project Director TRIO 
Student Support 

Services Program 

Dean of Digital 
Learning and the 

Center for Academic 
Excellence 

Dean of Center for 
Workforce Development 
& Continuing Education 

Director of Educational 
Partnerships 
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Assistant to the 
Vice President 

Clerk III 

Chief of 
Police

Interim 
Executive 
Director of 

Human 
Resources 

Director of
Auxiliary 
Services 

Director of 
Facilities 

Operations

COO/CFO and 
Vice President 

of 
Administrative 

Services    
(Interim CTO)

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Dean of 
Institutional
Research & 

Planning

Administrative Services 6/14/2018 

Assistant Vice 
President for 

Finance/ 
Comptroller

Assistant Vice 
President of 

Extended Campuses 
Operations & 
Community 
Engagement 

Chief 
Technology 

Officer        
(Open)
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Enrollment & Student Services 6/14/2018 

Vice President for 
Strategic 

Enrollment 
Development & 

Student 
Engagement 

 

STUDENT ENGAGEMENT AND 
COMMUNITY CONNECTION 

Dean of Enrollment 
Management 

Registrar 

 
 

Dean of Students 
 

Director of Disability 
Services 

Administrative Secretary I 

Staff Assistant 

 
Executive Director of 

Advancement 
 

Director of Institutional 
Communications Director of Financial Aid 

Director of Admissions 

ENROLLMENT MANAGEMENT, STUDENT ENGAGEMENT &  
COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS 

 

 
Dean of Compliance 

 

Clerk III 
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Campuses, Branches and Locations Currently in Operation (See definitions in comment boxes)
(Insert additional rows as appropriate.)

Date 
Initiated

2 years 
prior

1 year   
prior

Current 
year

? FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
? Main campus 2/1/1963 6,332 5,935 5,630
? Other principal campuses
? Branch campuses (US)
? Other instructional locations (US) 9/1/2010 153 157 209

9/2/2014 614 643 558
9/6/2011 37 31 31

Worcester Senior Center, MA 9/1/2006 67 45 41
Assabet VRTHS, Marlboro, MA 9/6/2011 12 20 14
Worcester THS, Worcester, MA 1/17/2018 0 0 0

? Branch campuses (overseas)
? Other instructional locations (overseas)

Educational modalities

Date First 
Initiated

2 years 
prior

1 year   
prior

Current 
year

Distance Learning Programs FY2016 FY2017 FY2018
Programs 50-99% on-line 5/10/07 497 507 715
Programs 100% on-line 9/1/08 372 416 800

? Correspondence Education
Low-Residency Programs
Competency-based Programs
Dual Enrollment Programs 409 490 557
Contractual Arrangements involving 
the award of credit

*Enter the annual unduplicated headcount for each of the years specified below.

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 3:  Organization and Governance
(Locations and Modalities)

Enrollment*

67
10

Enrollment*

Worcester, MA

Location (City, State/Country)

Number of programs

Southbridge, MA

Burncoat HS, Worcester, MA
Downtown Worcester, MA
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FALL 2017 

Degree Level/ Location & 
Modality Associate's Bachelor's Master's

Clinical 
doctorates (e.g., 
Pharm.D., DPT, 

DNP)

Professional 
doctorates (e.g., 
Ed.D., Psy.D., 

D.B.A.)

M.D., J.D., 
DDS Ph.D. Total Degree-

Seeking 

Main Campus FT 1,942 1,942
Main Campus PT 2,754 2,754
Other Principal Campus FT 0
Other Principal Campus PT 0
Branch campuses FT 0
Branch campuses PT 0
Other Locations FT 275 275
Other Locations PT 452 452
Overseas Locations FT 0
Overseas Locations FT 0
Distance education FT 87 87
Distance education PT 424 424
Correspondence FT 0
Correspondence PT 0
Low-Residency FT 0
Low-Residency PT 0
Unduplicated Headcount Total 5,934 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,934
Total FTE 3,785 3,785

Enter FTE definition:
total credits 
divided by 15

Degrees Awarded, Most Recent 
Year 982 982

Notes:

3) Please refer to form 3.2, "Locations and Modalities," for definitions of locations and instructional modalities.

* For programs not taught in the fall, report an analogous term's enrollment as of its Census Date.

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below
Enrollment numbers & FTE, may vary slightly from previously published BOT reports because BOT reports are complied at the beginning of the semester and 
therefore do not account for fall 2 courses (late starting courses, and enrollment) which is reflected in the numbers above. 

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Summary - Degree-Seeking Enrollment and Degrees)

Fall Enrollment* by location and modality, as of Census Date

1) Enrollment numbers should include all students in the named categories, including students in continuing education and students enrolled through
2) Each student should be recorded in only one category, e.g., students enrolled in low-residency programs housed on the main campus should be
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Degree Level/ Location & 
Modality

Title IV-Eligible 
Certificates:  Students 
Seeking Certificates

Non-Matriculated 
Students

Visiting 
Students

Total Non-
degree-Seeking 

Total degree-
seeking (from 
previous page)

Grand total

Main Campus FT 155 101 256 1,942 2,198

Main Campus PT 286 392 678 2,754 3,432

Other Principal Campus FT 0

Other Principal Campus PT 0

Branch campuses FT 0

Branch campuses PT 0

Other Locations FT 126 0 126 275 401

Other Locations PT 61 192 253 452 705

Overseas Locations FT 0

Overseas Locations FT 0
Distance education FT

8 6 14 87 101
Distance education PT

33 105 138 424 562

Correspondence FT 0

Correspondence PT 0

Low-Residency FT 0

Low-Residency PT 0
Unduplicated Headcount 
Total 669 796 1,465 5,934 7,399

Total FTE 435 316 751 3,785 4,536

Enter FTE definition:

Total credits divided by 15 Total credits divided 
by 15

Certificates Awarded, Most 
Recent Year 358

Notes:

* For programs not taught in the fall, report an analogous term's enrollment as of its Census Date.

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

3)  Please refer to form 3.2, "Locations and Modalities," for definitions of locations and instructional modalities.

Enrollment numbers & FTE, may vary slightly from previously published BOT reports because BOT reports are complied at the beginning of the semester and 
therefore do not account for fall 2 courses (late starting courses, and enrollment) which is reflected in the numbers above. 

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Summary - Non-degree seeking Enrollment and Awards)

 2017 Fall Enrollment* by location and modality, as of Census Date

1)  Enrollment numbers should include all students in the named categories, including students in continuing education and students enrolled 
through any contractual relationship. 
2)  Each student should be recorded in only one category, e.g., students enrolled in low-residency programs housed on the main campus should be 
recorded only in the category "low-residency programs."
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3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year Forward (goal)

For Fall Term, as of Census Date (Fall 2014     ) (Fall 2015     ) (Fall 2016    ) (Fall 2017    ) (Fall 2018     )
Certificate 670 729 740 664 644
Associate 6834 6494 6185 5923 5745
Baccalaureate 
Total Undergraduate 7,504 7,223 6,925 6,587 6,389

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year Forward (goal)

For Fall Term, as of Census Date (Fall 2     ) (Fall 2     ) (Fall 2    ) (Fall 2    ) (Fall 2     )
Master's
Doctorate
First Professional
Other
Total Graduate 0 0 0 0 0

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year Forward (goal)

(Fall 2014     ) (Fall 2015     ) (Fall 2016    ) (Fall 2017    ) (Fall 2018     )
Undergraduate 77355 73432 70209 66927 64919
Graduate
Total 77,355 73,432 70,209 66,927 64,919

(Fall 2014     ) (Fall 2015     ) (Fall 2016    ) (Fall 2017    ) (Fall 2018     )
Main campus

Sessions embedded in a class 8 9 5 10
Free-standing sessions 264 237 202 230

Branch/other locations
Sessions embedded in a class 18 39 17 25
Free-standing sessions 0 0 0 0

Online sessions
URL of Information Literacy Reports

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Headcount by UNDERGRADUATE Program Type)

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Headcount by GRADUATE Program Type)

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Credit Hours Generated at the Undergraduate and Graduate Levels)

Standard 4:  The Academic Program
(Information Literacy sessions)
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?
Credit Seeking Students Only  -  Including Continuing Education

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Goal 
Prior Prior Prior Year (specify year)

FA2014 FA2015 FA2016 Fa2017 FY 2018
Freshmen - Undergraduate ?

Completed Applications ? 3,330 3,391 3,811 4,074 4,074
Applications Accepted ? 1,907 2,138 2,358 2,307 2,307
Applicants Enrolled ? 1,712 1,644 1,576 1,496 1,496

 % Accepted of Applied 57.3% 63.0% 61.9% 56.6% 60.0%
% Enrolled of Accepted 89.8% 76.9% 66.8% 64.8% 70.0%

Percent Change Year over Year
     Completed Applications na 1.8% 12.4% 6.9% 0.0%
     Applications Accepted na 12.1% 10.3% -2.2% 0.0%
     Applicants Enrolled na -4.0% -4.1% -5.1% 0.0%
Average of statistical indicator of 
aptitude of enrollees: (define below) ?

Transfers - Undergraduate ?
Completed Applications 1,571 1,665 1,681 1,802 1,802
Applications Accepted 806 879 834 841 841
Applications Enrolled 538 479 454 420 420

 % Accepted of Applied 51.3% 52.8% 49.6% 46.7% 46.7%
 % Enrolled of Accepted 66.7% 54.5% 54.4% 49.9% 49.9%

Master's Degree ?
Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied - - - - -
% Enrolled of Accepted - - - - -

First Professional Degree ?
Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied - - - - -
% Enrolled of Accepted - - - - -

Doctoral Degree ?
Completed Applications
Applications Accepted
Applications Enrolled

 % Accepted of Applied - - - - -
% Enrolled of Accepted - - - - -

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 5:  Students
(Admissions, Fall Term)

Complete this form for each distinct student body identified by the institution (see Standard 5.1)
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?
Credit-Seeking Students Only  -  Including Continuing Education

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Goal 
Prior Prior Prior Year (specify year)

(FY 2015    ) (FY 2016    ) (FY 2017    ) (FY 2018   ) (FY 2019    )
UNDERGRADUATE ? FA14 FA15 FA16 FA17 FA18
First Year         Full-Time Headcount ? 2,109 1,892 1,809 1,611 1,563

Part-Time Headcount ? 2,585 2,500 2,261 2,158 2,093
Total Headcount 4,694 4,392 4,070 3,769 3,656
 Total FTE ? 3,011 2,803 2,627 2,424 2,351

Second Year      Full-Time Headcount 1,053 987 994 987 957
Part-Time Headcount 1,753 1,844 1,853 1,830 1,775
Total Headcount 2,806 2,831 2,847 2,817 2,732
Total FTE 1,743 1,736 1,732 1,730 1,678

Third Year        Full-Time Headcount 0 0
Part-Time Headcount 0 0
Total Headcount 0 0 0 0 0
Total FTE 0 0

Fourth Year      Full-Time Headcount 0 0
Part-Time Headcount 0 0
Total Headcount 0 0 0 0 0
Total FTE 0 0

Unclassified       Full-Time Headcount ? 175 161 135 108 105
Part-Time Headcount 777 679 647 676 656
Total Headcount 952 840 782 784 760
Total FTE 403 356 321 308 299

Total Undergraduate Students
Full-Time Headcount 3,337 3,040 2,938 2,706 2,625
Part-Time Headcount 5,115 5,023 4,761 4,664 4,524
Total Headcount 8,452 8,063 7,699 7,370 7,149
Total FTE 5,157 4,895 4,681 4,462 4,328

     % Change FTE Undergraduate na -5.1% -4.4% -4.7% -3.0%
GRADUATE ?

Full-Time Headcount ?
Part-Time Headcount ?
Total Headcount 0 0 0 0 0
Total FTE ?

     % Change FTE Graduate na - - - -
GRAND TOTAL
Grand Total Headcount 8,452 8,063 7,699 7,370 7,149
Grand Total FTE 5,157 4,895 4,681 4,462 4,328
     % Change Grand Total FTE na -5.1% -4.4% -4.7% -3.0%

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 5:  Students

  (UN)   Projecting a 3% decrease 

Complete this form for each distinct student body identified by the institution (see Standard 5.1)
(Enrollment, Fall Term)
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? Where does the institution describe the students it seeks to serve?  

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018
? Three-year Cohort Default Rate 15.40% 11.20% 12.60% 13.80%
? Three-year Loan repayment rate 

(from College Scorecard)

3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior Most 
Recently 

Completed 
Year

Current Year Goal    (specify 
year)

FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018
? Student Financial Aid

Total Federal Aid $30,764,294 $39,308,990 $39,032,198 $37,908,317 $37,961,745
Grants $16,793,543 $16,470,128 $14,716,850 $13,432,753 $14,481,497
Loans $13,809,417 $22,664,085 $24,134,076 $24,282,058 $23,360,248
Work Study $161,334 $174,777 $181,272 $193,506 $120,000

Total State Aid $3,671,134 $3,604,159 $3,492,385 $3,456,326 $3,420,078
Total Institutional Aid $1,984,033 $2,003,375 $1,970,585 $1,942,836 $1,945,292

Grants $1,984,033 $2,003,375 $1,970,585 $1,942,836 $1,945,292
Loans $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Private Aid $1,032,494 $892,895 $859,316 $1,028,593 $896,953
Grants $604,998 $525,921 $560,516 $606,690 $625,399
Loans $427,496 $366,974 $298,800 $421,903 $271,554

Student Debt 2015 2016 2017 2018
Percent of students graduating with debt (include all students who graduated in this calculation)

Undergraduates 64% 60% 65% 65%
Graduates NA NA NA NA
First professional students  NA NA NA NA

For students with debt:

Undergraduates $9,500 $12,450 $14,847 $15,750
Graduates NA NA NA NA
First professional students NA NA NA NA

Undergraduates $3,782 $2,750 $2,981 $4,117
Graduate Students NA NA NA NA
First professional students NA NA NA NA

FA10- FF FA11-FF FA12-FF FA13-FF

English as a Second/Other Language 4% 4% 5% 4%
nEnglish (reading, writing, communication skills) 28% 28% 25% 25%
Math 39% 36% 36% 28%
Other 

FA14 FA15 FA16 FA17
Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 5:  Students

Average*(used median for avg) amount of debt for students leaving the institution without a degree

Average amount of debt for students leaving the institution with a degree- going to use median to avoid extremes in the data & is the best measure of 
central tendancy

Percent of First-year students in Developmental Courses (courses for which no credit toward a degree is granted)

Loan Borrowing increased substantially from FY 14 to FY15 because the College began awarding a student's full annual loan limit in the initial award.  This 
change was made in compliance with federal guidance on awarding student loans.  As a result, we saw a substantial increase in students borrowing loans to 
assist them with educational expenses like transportation and living expenses in addition to their student charges and books.  The anticipated Federal Work 
Study student earnings in FY18 are lower than preceding years due to a transition of program oversight during the fall hiring season.  We also had fewer 
students seeking FWS jobs and the delay in students starting their positions led to reduced earnings overall.  We do not expect this in subsequent years.        
Students who left institution without a degree, were calculated by selecting first time freshman in a fall cohort, removing the graduates and then examining  
enrollment 3-4 years later. After non-enrollment in years 3 and 4 students are considered left without a degree. This is consistent with the policy that after 
2 consecutive years of non-enrollment at the college, students must reapply to QCC.  *Additionally we used median instead of mean for our average 
measure because it reflects a more accurate stable "average" that is not as effected by extreme values. 

Complete this form for each distinct student body identified by the institution (see Standard 5.1)
(Financial Aid, Debt, Developmental Courses)
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3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Year
Prior Prior Prior

(FY 2015    ) (FY 2016  ) (FY 2017    ) (FY 2018   )

? Number of Faculty by category
Full-time 136 140 141 141
Part-time
Adjunct 423 419 390 379
Clinical
Research
Visiting
Other; specify below:

     Total 559 559 531 520
Percentage of Courses taught by full-time faculty*

28.40% 28.50% 29.90% 30.29%

? Number of Faculty by rank, if applicable

Professor 89 84 85 84
Associate 20 30 25 22
Assistant 26 24 33 34
Instructor 1 2 1 1

Other; specify below:

     Total 136 140 144 141

? Number of Academic Staff by category
Librarians 4 4 3 4
Advisors 12 12 12 12
Instructional Designers 1 2 2 3
Other; specify below:

5 9 9 12
3 3 2 3

     Total 25 30 28 34

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below
 Full time and adjunct faculty may also teach clinical courses.  QCC does not track clinical faculty. Academic Staff by category are 
full time employees only. 

Standard 6: Teaching, Learning, and Scholarship
(Faculty by Category and Rank; Academic Staff by Category, Fall Term)
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2 Years 1 Year 
Prior

FT PT FT PT FT PT FT PT
? Number of Faculty Appointed

Professor 6 5
Associate 17 15 19 17
Assistant 24 35 29 30
Instructor 1 2 1 1
No rank
Other
     Total 48 0 57 0 49 0 48 0

? Number of Faculty in Tenured Positions
Professor 83 78 82 84
Associate 3 7 6 5
Assistant 2 2 4 4
Instructor
No rank
Other
     Total 88 0 87 0 92 0 93 0

? Number of Faculty Departing
Professor 3 1 1
Associate 1 1
Assistant 1 2 2
Instructor 1
No rank
Other
     Total 0 0 6 0 3 0 4 0

? Number of Faculty Retiring
Professor 7 5 6 1
Associate
Assistant
Instructor
No rank
Other
     Total 7 0 5 0 6 0 1 0

Resignation and Retirements for 2018 are as of 5/10/2018.

(Appointments, Tenure, Departures,  Retirements, Teaching Load Full Academic Year)

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Prior

Standard 6: Teaching, Learning, and Scholarship

3 Years
Prior

FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018

Current Year
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2 Years 1 Year 
Prior

FT PT Total FT PT Total FT PT Total FT PT Total
Instructional Staff 136 423 559 140 419 559 141 391 532 141 379 520
Research Staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Service Staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Librarians 4 4 4 0 4 3 0 3 4 2 6
Library Technicians 4 3 7 4 1 5 4 1 5 4 3 7
Archivists, Curators, Museum 
staff 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Student and Academic Affairs 8 183 191 8 171 179 9 174 183 10 188 198
Management Occupations 81 4 85 84 4 88 73 6 79 84 4 88
Business and Financial 
Operations 21 9 30 23 5 28 24 5 29 25 6 31
Computer, Engineering and 
Science 24 21 45 27 17 44 27 20 47 28 15 43
Community, Social Service,
Legal, Arts, Design, 
Entertainment, Sports, and 
Media 48 22 70 47 21 68 48 28 76 49 24 73
Healthcare Practitioners and 
Technical 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1 3 0 3
Service Occupations 33 67 100 34 61 95 37 60 97 35 42 77
Sales and Related 
Occupations 3 0 3 3 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0
Office and Administrative 
Support 66 42 108 65 48 113 59 42 101 60 32 92
Natural Resources, 
Construction, Maintenance 3 2 5 5 2 7 6 1 7 7 1 8
Production, Transportation, 
Material Moving 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3 2 1 3

Total 434 777 1,211 447 750 1,197 434 729 1,163 452 697 1,149

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below
All numbers are based off of IPEDS

Standard 7: Institutional Resources
(Headcount of Employees by Occupational Category)

For each of the occupational categories below, enter the data reported on the IPEDS Human Resources Survey (Parts B 
and D1) for each of the years listed.
If your institution does not submit IPEDS, visit this link for information about how to complete this form: 
https://surveys.nces.ed.gov/IPEDS/Downloads/Forms/package_1_43.pdf

Prior
(FY 2    ) (FY 2    )

Prior
(FY 2    ) (FY 2    )

Current Year
3 Years
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2 Years Prior                    
(FY 2015)

1 Year Prior                     
(FY 2016)

Most Recent 
Year              2017

ASSETS (in 000s)

? Cash and Short Term Investments $13,702,615 $13,024,746 $14,504,555 -4.9% 11.4%

? Cash held by State Treasurer $1,431,729 $793,896 $363,817 -44.5% -54.2%

? Deposits held by State Treasurer $1,753,816 $1,918,484 $2,135,491 9.4% 11.3%

? Accounts Receivable, Net $3,526,307 $3,309,321 $2,661,959 -6.2% -19.6%

? Contributions Receivable, Net - -

? Inventory and Prepaid Expenses $1,084,793 $424,903 $730,672 -60.8% 72.0%

? Long-Term Investments $7,343 -100.0% -

? Loans to Students - -

? Funds held under bond agreement - -

? Property, plants, and equipment, net $36,445,099 $47,238,006 $47,036,958 29.6% -0.4%

Deferred Outflows of Resources $923,338 $4,775,384 $4,797,992

? Other Assets $14,455 $11,864 $10,459 -17.9% -11.8%

 Total Assets  $58,889,495 $71,496,604 $72,241,903 21.4% 1.0%

LIABILITIES (in 000s)

? Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $12,659,531 $9,934,628 $9,497,451 -21.5% -4.4%

? Deferred revenue & refundable advances  $2,266,595 $2,926,415 $2,376,148 29.1% -18.8%

? Due to state - -

? Due to affiliates - -

? Annuity and life income obligations - -

? Amounts held on behalf of others $125,019 $121,179 $180,470 -3.1% 48.9%

? Long-term investments $10,263,192 $16,329,632 $15,085,281 59.1% -7.6%

? Refundable government advances - -

Deferred Inflows of Resources $2,654,351 $1,126,658 $2,889,105

? Other long-term liabilities  - -

Total Liabilities $27,968,688 $30,438,512 $30,028,455 8.8% -1.3%

NET ASSETS (in 000s)

Unrestricted net assets  

Institutional ($4,188,321) ($5,163,961) ($4,029,739) 23.3% -22.0%

?      Foundation $1,024,097 $944,288 $1,160,581 -7.8% 22.9%

  Total ($3,164,224) ($4,219,673) ($2,869,158) 33.4% -32.0%

Temporarily restricted net assets

     Institutional $35,109,128 $46,222,053 $46,243,187 31.7% 0.0%

?      Foundation $3,532,966 $338,606 $2,764,753 -90.4% 716.5%

    Total $38,642,094 $46,560,659 $49,007,940 20.5% 5.3%

Permanently restricted net assets 

     Institutional - -

?      Foundation $429,289 $438,122 $459,657 2.1% 4.9%

 Total $429,289 $438,122 $459,657 2.1% 4.9%

? Total Net Assets $35,907,159 $42,779,108 $46,598,439 19.1% 8.9%
TOTAL LIABILITIES and NET ASSETS $63,875,847 $73,217,620 $76,626,894 14.6% 4.7%

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 7:  Institutional Resources
(Statement of Financial Position/Statement of Net Assets)

Fiscal Year ends - month & day: ( 6/30 )
Percent Change

2 yrs-1 yr prior            1 yr-most  recent            
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3 Years Prior   
(FY2015) 2 Years Prior (FY2016)

Most Recently 
Completed Year   

(FY 2017)   
Current Year   

(FY 2018)

Next Year 
Forward   
(FY 2019)   

OPERATING REVENUES (in 000s)

? Tuition and fees $38,302,786 $39,224,023 $39,710,027 $39,411,312 $39,017,199

? Room and board

? Less: Financial aid -$20,068,490 -$18,502,241 -$17,453,367 -$17,046,706 -$16,876,239

Net student fees $18,234,296 $20,721,782 $22,256,660 $22,364,606 $22,140,959

?  Government grants and contracts $27,176,913 $20,849,324 $19,709,832 $19,187,691 $18,899,876

?  Private gifts, grants and contracts $785,000 $1,100,303 $550,806 $712,661 $800,000

?  Other auxiliary enterprises  $4,804,731 $4,296,560 $2,366,850 $63,050 $0

Endowment income used in operations 

? Other revenue (specify): $683,851 $1,238,793 $1,291,778 $1,304,696 $1,311,219

Other revenue (Gifts and Contributions): $545,196 $613,740 $262,598 $267,850

Net assets released from restrictions

 Total Operating Revenues $51,684,791 $48,751,958 $46,789,666 $43,895,302 $43,419,904
 OPERATING EXPENSES (in 000s)

?  Instruction $33,613,608 $34,718,263 $35,162,407 $34,682,557 $33,642,080

? Research $0 $0 $0

? Public Service $171,923 $123,575 $97,141 $148,266 $143,818

? Academic Support $8,579,202 $5,874,944 $5,126,808 $5,996,384 $5,816,493

? Student Services $12,940,703 $11,118,692 $11,771,275 $10,574,903 $10,257,656

? Institutional Support $14,278,683 $13,988,983 $13,084,470 $11,408,494 $11,066,239

Fundraising and alumni relations 

?  Operation, maintenance of plant (if not allocated) $4,117,556 $4,457,756 $5,091,710 $5,549,964 $6,049,461

?
Scholarships and fellowships (cash refunded by public 
institution) $1,492,010 $1,302,300 $857,859 $806,387 $758,004

?  Auxiliary enterprises $4,238,199 $4,023,323 $2,206,747 $137,886 $0

?  Depreciation (if not allocated) $1,640,780 $1,721,254 $1,709,299 $1,700,753 $1,692,249

? Other expenses (specify):

Other expenses (specify):

Total operating expenditures $81,072,664 $77,329,090 $75,107,716 $71,005,594 $69,426,000
Change in net assets from operations -$29,387,873 -$28,577,132 -$28,318,050 -$27,110,293 -$26,006,096

NON OPERATING REVENUES (in 000s)

? State appropriations (net) $25,439,090 $26,602,602 $28,062,445 $26,822,130 $26,959,130
? Investment return $20,884 $31,668 $56,157 $78,620 $86,482
? Interest expense (public institutions) -$47,260 -$36,066 -$29,222 -$25,715 -$22,630

Gifts, bequests and contributions not used in operations $838,028
? Other (specify): $9,681

Other (specify):
Other (specify):

Net non-operating revenues $26,260,423 $26,598,204 $28,089,380 $26,875,034 $27,022,982
Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, or 
losses -$3,127,450 -$1,978,928 -$228,670 -$235,258 $1,016,887

? Capital appropriations (public institutions) $9,425,892 $12,116,213 $1,384,026 $2,667,864 $285,000

? Other (specify):
TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET ASSETS $6,298,442 $10,137,285 $1,155,356 $2,432,606 $1,301,887

Fiscal Year ends - month& day: (06/30)

Standard 7:  Institutional Resources
(Statement of Revenues and Expenses)

QCC - 5th Year Interim Report - Appendices Page 83 of 125



3 Years Prior           
(FY2015)

2 Years Prior 
(FY2016)

Most Recently 
Completed Year                 

(FY 2017)   
Current Year           

(FY 2018)

Next Year 
Forward           
(FY 2019)   

Debt  

Beginning balance $17,861,347 $15,349,996 $21,480,103 $20,263,413 $19,129,933

Additions $1,719,656 $10,135,678 $5,887,667 $5,828,790 $25,846,688

? Reductions ($4,231,007) ($4,005,571) ($7,104,357) ($6,962,270) ($6,892,647)

Ending balance $15,349,996 $21,480,103 $20,263,413 $19,129,933 $38,083,975

Interest paid during fiscal year $47,260 $36,066 $29,222 $23,378 $18,702

Current Portion $3,480,882 $3,446,933 $3,321,614 $3,135,396 $6,241,963

Bond Rating

Line(s) of Credit:  List the institutions line(s) of credit and their uses.  

Future borrowing plans (please describe)  

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below
FY19 Additions include OPEB Schedule expected Liability to be recorded on the FS.

FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day (    /    )

Standard 7:  Institutional Resources
(Statement of Debt)

Debt Covenants:  (1) Describe interest rate, schedule, and structure of payments; and (2) indicate whether the debt covenants are 
being met.   

None at this time.  No large projects planned that would require borrowed funding.
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3 Years Prior           
(FY2015)

2 Years Prior 
(FY2016)

Most Recently 
Completed Year                 

(FY 2017)   
Current Year           

(FY 2018)

Next Year 
Forward           
(FY 2019)   

NET ASSETS

Net assets beginning of year $24,622,365 $30,920,807 $41,058,092 $42,213,448 $43,713,448

Total increase/decrease in net assets   $6,298,442 $10,137,285 $1,155,356 $1,500,000 $500,000

Net assets end of year  $30,920,807 $41,058,092 $42,213,448 $43,713,448 $44,213,448

FINANCIAL AID

Source of funds 

Unrestricted institutional  $1,967,791 $1,870,678 $1,611,112 $1,712,252 $1,695,129

Federal, state and private grants $19,590,229 $17,785,956 $16,720,301 $16,627,109 $16,460,838

Restricted funds

Total $21,558,021 $19,656,634 $18,331,413 $18,339,361 $18,155,967

% Discount of tuition and fees

? % Unrestricted discount

?

FEDERAL FINANCIAL 
RESPONSIBILITY COMPOSITE 
SCORE

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day (    /    )

Standard 7:  Institutional Resources
(Supplemental Data)

Please indicate your institution's endowment spending policy:  
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3 Years
Prior

2 Years
Prior

1 Year
Prior Current Year

Next Year 
Forward (goal)

FY 2014 FY2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018
IPEDS Retention Data

Associate degree students 56% 53% 55% 54% 55%
Bachelors degree students

? IPEDS Graduation Data (150% of time)
Associate degree students 16% 17% 21% 19% 20%
Bachelors degree students

? IPEDS Outcomes Measures Data
First-time, full time students

Awarded a degree within six years 23% 24% 24% 25%
Awarded a degree within eight years 25% 26% 27% 28%
Not awarded within eight years but still enrolled 2% 3% 1% 1%

First-time, part-time students
Awarded a degree within six years 15% 18% 18% 20%
Awarded a degree within eight years 19% 20% 22% 24%
Not awarded within eight years but still enrolled 3% 6% 3% 3%

Non-first-time, full-time students
Awarded a degree within six years 42% 35% 39% 42%
Awarded a degree within eight years 44% 36% 40% 42%
Not awarded within eight years but still enrolled 3% 1% 0%

Non-first-time, part-time students
Awarded a degree within six years 39% 35% 33% 35%
Awarded a degree within eight years 41% 39% 36% 38%
Not awarded within eight years but still enrolled 1% 3% 0%

? Other Undergraduate Retention/Persistence Rates (Add definitions/methodology in #1 below)
52% 52% 52% 53% 55%

Race/ethnicity
White 52% 52% 53% 53%

52% 53% 50% 54%
52% 52% 51% 52%

1 52% 52% 52% 53%
2 Gender
3 Female 53% 54% 52% 55%
4 49% 49% 52% 50%

Income
Pell 55% 55% 58% 59%

5 49% 49% 48% 48%
? Other Undergraduate Graduation Rates (Add definitions/methodology in # 2 below)

IPEDS 150% Graduation rates 16% 17% 21% 19% 20%
20% 16% 22% NA

2 Male 13% 18% 20% NA
3 Received Pell NA NA 17% NA
4 NA NA 27% NA

Asian 24% 17% 27% NA
Black 12% 10% 11% NA
Hispanic 11% 12% 16% NA
White 18% 20% 23% NA

1
2

Asian

Standard 8:  Educational Effectiveness
(Undergraduate Retention and Graduation Rates)

Student Success Measures/
Prior Performance and Goals

Overall - All QCC Students

Black
Hispanic

Due to small cohort sizes for all populations other than first-time full-time, percentage will vary significantly from year to year.
IPEDS 150% graduation rates used for gender, Pell/not Pell, race/ethnicity

Note: complete this form for each distinct student body identified  by the institution (See Standard 8.1)

Male

Not Pell

Female

Did not receive Pell

Definition and Methodology Explanations
All QCC students, graduates removed from the retention analysis. These % represent the proportion of students: enrolled at Fall-time 2) 
(numerator) from those that were enrolled at fall time 1 (and did not graduate before fall time 2) (denominator) For example, fall 2016 (time 
1) to fall 2017 (time 2) = 3431/6499 =53% Total of 6499 students enrolled in fall 2016 (and did not graduate by Aug 31, 2017). Of these
students 3431 were still enrolled at QCC fall 2017  
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? 6 years ago 4 years ago  6 years ago 4 years ago
? First-time, Full-time Students 1145

24% 256/1145=22%
176/1145=15%

22/1145=2%
Transferred to a different institution 168/1145=15%
Not graduated, never transferred, no longer enrolled 523/1145=46%

? First-time, Part-time Students 638
18% 98/638=15%

113/638=18%
8/638=1%

Transferred to a different institution 65/638=10%
Not graduated, never transferred, no longer enrolled 354/638=55%

? Non-first-time, Full-time Students 282
35% 108/282=38%

24/282=9%
19/282=7%

Transferred to a different institution 49/282=17%
Not graduated, never transferred, no longer enrolled 82/282=29%

? 297
35% 68/297=23%

69/297=23%
27/297=9%

Transferred to a different institution 34/297=11%
Not graduated, never transferred, no longer enrolled 99/297=33%

3 Years
Prior

2 Years
Prior

1 Year
Prior Current Year

Next Year 
Forward (goal)

(FY 2    ) (FY2     ) (FY 2    ) (FY 2    ) (FY 2     )

1 n/a

1 n/a
Definition and Methodology Explanations

1

Per the June 2017 NEASC data workshop, the expectation is that these data are provided by the National Student 
Clearinghouse; however, Clearinghouse Cohort data prior to 2012 is incomplete. For this reason, 2012 data is based 
on the Clearinghouse Cohort Match and the 2008 data is based on the IPEDS Outcomes cohort.  IPEDS Outcomes 
Measures report 8 year outcomes, not 6 years; therefore, the data reported here also reflect 8 year outcomes.  Four 
and Six year outcomes should be available from the Clearinghouse for our Self Study in 2023. Also, per 
Clearinghouse documentation, Clearinghouse and IPEDs outcome measures are not comparable due to different 
methodologies. 

Measures of Student Achievement and Success/Institutional Performance and Goals

Degree from a different institution
Not graduated, still enrolled at original institution
Degree from original institution

Other measures of student success and achievement, including success of graduates in pursuing mission-related paths (e.g., 
Peace Corps, public service, global citizenship, leadership, spiritual formation) and success of graduates in fields for which they 
were not explicitly prepared (add more rows as needed; add definitions/methodology in #2 below)

Non-first-time, Part-time Students

Degree from a different institution

Degree from original institution
Not graduated, still enrolled at original institution

Success of students pursuing higher degrees (add more rows as needed; add definitions/methodology in #1 below)

Standard 8:  Educational Effectiveness
(Student Success and Progress Rates and Other Measures of Student Success)

Degree from original institution
Not graduated, still enrolled at original institution

Bachelor Cohort Entering Associate Cohort Entering
Category of Student/Outcome Measure

Degree from a different institution

Degree from original institution
Not graduated, still enrolled at original institution
Degree from a different institution
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?

Name of exam
# who 

took exam
# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

1 42 37 53 42 51 49 63 57
2 22 22 19 17 17 17 17 17
3 9 9 10 10 10 10 7 7
4 8 8 6 6 3 3 7 4
5 Occupational Therapy Assisting 21 19 14 13 15 15
6 Surgical Technologist Certification Exam 6 3 6 5 6 4 8 8
7 Medical Assisting 12 6 6 5 5 4
?

Name of exam
# who 

took exam
# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

# who 
took exam

# who 
passed

1 10 9 11 11 14 14
2 19 19 17 17 16 16
3 19 19 17 17 16 16
4 19 19 17 17 16 15
5 Nurse Education (NCLEX) 106 89 110 98 103 89
6 EMT Basic - Cognitive 33 17 48 26 57 35 0 0
7 EMT Basic – Psychomotor 32 32 47 48 53 53 0 0
8 EMT Paramedic - Cognitive 9 7 9 6 9 9 10 10
9 9 7 8 8 9 9 10 10
?

Major/time period * # of grads
# with 

jobs # of grads
# with 

jobs # of grads
# with 

jobs # of grads # with jobs
1 Practical Nursing x 63 **11
2 Surgical Technology 8 7
3 Radiologic Technology 17 17
4 Respiratory Care 7 7
5 Paramedic 10 10

* Check this box if the program reported is subject to "gainful employment" requirements.

Web location of gainful employment report (if applicable)

3 Years
Prior

2 Years
Prior

1 Year
Prior

Current 
Year

Next Year 
Forward 
(goal***)

(FY 2014   ) (FY2015    ) (FY 2016   ) (FY 2017) (FY 2018 )
?
1 Accounting Finance Certificate 0% 8% 14% 8% 25%
2 Automotive Maintenance and Light Repair NA NA NA 80% 100%
3 Business Administration Career, Business Admin. Certificate NA NA NA 7% 50%
4 Business Administration Career, Medical Office Certificate 9% 6% 23% NA NA
5 Computer Sys Network Associate NA NA 9% NA NA
6 Dental Assisting Certificate NA 17% 29% 7% 90%
7 Electronics Technology Certificate NA NA NA 15% 45%
8 EMT Paramedic Certificate 0% NA 0% 0% 15%
9 Energy Utility Technology Certificate 63% NA 60% 30% 75%

10 Human Service Certificate 0% 13% 3% 0% 35%
11 Law Enforcement Certificate 8% NA 13% 6% 40%
12 Network Technician Certificate NA NA 0% NA
13 Nursing Assistant Certificate NA NA 0% 0%
14 Phlebotomy EKG Tech Certificate NA 0% 0% 0% 15%
15 Practical Nursing 7% 5% 4% 4% 92%
?
1 90% 89% 93% 93% 93%
2 50% 52% 60% 63% 63%
3 63% 68% 64% 59% 59%
4 98% 96% 93% 92% 92%
5

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

QCC exceptionally or adequately prepared alumnus/a for current job

https://www.qcc.edu/gainful-employment

Completion and Placement Rates for Short-Term Vocational Training Programs for which students are eligible for 
Federal Financial Aid

Completion Rates

Placement Rates - 9 months out ****
Employed Full- or part-time or pursuing additional education
Attend school full- or part-time

NERBS (Clinical Portion)
NERBS (Case Study/Prometric Testing)

EMT Paramedic – Psychomotor

Full-time position highly or moderately related to program of study

**Graduates responding to survey 11.  Graduates employed 11.

Standard 8:  Educational Effectiveness
(Licensure Passage and Job Placement Rates and

Completion and Placement Rates for Short-Term Vocational Training Programs)

3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior  1 Year Prior
 Most Recent

Year

These are the data reported for Federal Gainful Employment regulations. Only programs with ten or more graduates are reported. 
***Percentage for goals are from start of program.
****Graduates responding to electronic survey 9 months out.  Data not collected by major.

(FY 2014) (FY 2015) (FY 2016) (FY 2016)

Job Placement Rates

State Licensure Examination Passage Rates 

Practical Nursing
Radiologic Technology
Respiratory Care CRT
Respiratory Care RRT

National Licensure Passage Rates 

DANB (Dental Assisting National Board)
NERBS (Dental)
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3 Years
Prior

2 Years
Prior

1 Year
Prior Current Year

Next Year 
Forward 

(goal)
(FA2014  ) (FA2015    ) (FA2016   ) (FA2017   ) (FA2018     )

? Master's Programs (Add definitions/methodology in #1 below)
Retention rates first-to-second year
Graduation rates @ 150% time 
Average time to degree
Other measures, specify:

? Doctoral Programs (Add definitions/methodology in #2 below)
Retention rates first-to-second year 
Graduation rates @ 150% time 
Average time to degree
Other measures, specify:

? First Professional Programs (Add definitions/methodology in #3 below)
Retention rates first-to-second year 
Graduation rates @ 150% time 
Average time to degree
Other measures, specify:

Distance Education  (Add definitions/methodology in #4 below)
Course completion rates 71% 71% 70% 73% 75%
Retention rates NA NA NA NA NA
Graduation rates NA NA NA NA NA
Other measures, specify:

Southbridge
Course completion rates 84% 86% 79% 81% 82%
Retention rates NA NA NA NA NA
Graduation rates NA NA NA NA NA

Downtown
Course completion rates 94% 93% 93% 94% 95%
Retention rates NA NA NA NA NA
Graduation rates NA NA NA NA NA
Other measures, specify:

Definition and Methodology Explanations

1

2

Southbridge students enroll at multiple sites; therefore, we cannot determine a retention or graduation rate solely for Southbridge 
students. Course completion is a grade of D- or better.Please see retention rates for healthcare programs in "Retention by Academic 
Program" table on SharePoint.

Standard 8:  Educational Effectiveness
(Graduate Programs, Distance Education, Off-Campus Locations)

Student Success Measures/
Prior Performance and Goals

Distance education students take a combination of online and traditional courses; therefore, we cannot determine a retention or 
graduation rate solely for distance education students. Course completion is a grade of D- or better.
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? Policies
Last 

Updated ?
Academic honesty 09/18/2017
Academic honesty 09/15/2017
Intellectual property rights 02/21/2018
Intellectual property rights 03/04/2013
Conflict of interest 02/21/2018
Conflict of interest 11/01/2013

Privacy rights 09/24/2013
Privacy rights 01/11/2018

Fairness for students 09/15/2017

Fairness for students 09/15/2017

Fairness for faculty
Fairness for staff
Academic freedom 08/23/2017
Research 10/03/2016
Title IX 08/14/2017
Other; specify

Non-discrimination policies
Recruitment and admissions 01/26/2018
Employment 08/14/2017
Evaluation (NUP) 2016
Evaluation (MCCC)
Evalutation (AFSCME)
Disciplinary action (NUP) 2016
Disciplinary action (MCCC)
Disciplinary action (AFSCME)
Advancement (NUP) 2016
Advancement (MCCC)
Advancement (AFSCME)
Other; specify

Resolution of grievances
Students 9/19/2002
Faculty 08/23/2017
Staff 08/23/2017
Other; specify

? Other Last Updated

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below

Standard 9:  Integrity, Transparency, and Public Disclosure
(Integrity)

Website location where policy is posted Responsible Office or 
Committee

http://www.qcc.edu/english/academic-honesty- Student Life
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017- Student Life
http://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/policies- President's Office/College 
http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/copyrig President's Office/College 
http://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/policies- President's Office/College 
http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/mass_g President's Office/College 
ecords_ferpa.pdf

Ferpa--Registrar's Office
http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/about Ferpa--Registrar's Office
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-
2018/student-responsibilities 

Enrollment/Student 
Services

http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-
2018/student-code-conduct 

Enrollment/Student 
Services

https://mccc-union.org/dce-contract-forms/ Human Resources
http://www.mass.edu/forfacstaff/collbargaining/ho Human Resources
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/policy-against- Academic Affairs
http://www.qcc.edu/office-institutional-research-and- Office of Institutional 
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/affirmative- Title IX Coordinator

http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/admissions Admissions
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/affirmative- Human Resources
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges Human Resources
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/ Human Resources
https://afscme1067.org/wp- Human Resources
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges Human Resources
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/                Human Resources
https://afscme1067.org/wp- Human Resources
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges Human Resources
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/ Human Resources
https://afscme1067.org/wp- Human Resources

http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/grievan President's 
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/complaint- Human Resources
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/complaint- Human Resources

Website location or Publication Responsible Office or 
Committee
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http://www.qcc.edu/english/academic-honesty-documentation-guides
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
http://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/policies-menu
http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/copyright_and_ip_policy.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/policies-menu
http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/mass_gen_law_-_conflict_of_interest_law.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/privacy_of_student_records_ferpa.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/privacy_of_student_records_ferpa.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/privacy_of_student_records_ferpa.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/about
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-responsibilities
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-responsibilities
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
https://mccc-union.org/dce-contract-forms/
http://www.mass.edu/forfacstaff/collbargaining/home.asp
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/policy-against-prohibited-conduct
http://www.qcc.edu/office-institutional-research-and-planning
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges_NUPs_Personnel_Policies_Handboo.pdf?target=a2fc99b3-4712-4374-833c-1232f0c45ce8
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/
https://afscme1067.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/AFSCME-Contract-2014-2017.pdf
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges_NUPs_Personnel_Policies_Handboo.pdf?target=a2fc99b3-4712-4374-833c-1232f0c45ce8
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/
https://afscme1067.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/AFSCME-Contract-2014-2017.pdf
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/Community_Colleges_NUPs_Personnel_Policies_Handboo.pdf?target=a2fc99b3-4712-4374-833c-1232f0c45ce8
https://mccc-union.org/day-contract-and-forms/
https://afscme1067.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/09/AFSCME-Contract-2014-2017.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/complaint-procedure
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/complaint-procedure


Information Website location and/or Relevant Publication(s)

How can inquiries be made about the institution? Where can questions be addressed?
http://www.qcc.edu/public-records

Notice of availability of publications and of audited financial statement or fair 
summary

http://www.qcc.edu/public-records/annual-reports

Processes for admissions http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/admissions
Processes for admissions http://www.qcc.edu/admissions/enrollment-steps
Processes for employment http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/hiring-process
Processes for grading http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/academic-information
Processes for assessment http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/academic-information
Processes for student discipline http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
Processes for consideration of complaints and appeals http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/grievance_policy_corrected_student.pdf

Statement/Promise Website location and/or publication where valid documentation can be found
The Business Administration Career - Administrative Professional Option prepares http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-career

The Business Administration Career program prepares students to successfully enter http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-career-0

The Business Administration Transfer program prepares students for transfer to four-http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-

The goal of the Hospitality and Recreation Management program is to provide http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-and-recreation-

The goal of the Hospitality and Recreation Management program is to provide http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-and-

The Accounting Assistant Finance Assistant Certificate focuses on the accounting http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounting-assistant-finance-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/accounting-assistant-finance-assistant-gainful-employment

The Accounts Payable/Accounts Receivable Certificate focuses on the accounting http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounts-payableaccounts-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/accounts-payableaccounts-receivable-gainful-employment

The Business Administration Certificate focuses on general business and prepares http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/business-administration-gainful-employment

The Clerical Office Certificate focuses on developing the clerical skills, knowledge http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/clerical-office-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/clerical-office-gainful-employment

The goal of the Dietary Management Certificate is to provide a short term education http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/dietary-management-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/dietary-management-certificate-gainful-employment

The Entrepreneurship and Small Business Management Certificate focuses on the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/entrepreneurship-and-small-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/entrepreneurship-small-business-management-gainful-

The QCC Foodservice Management Certificate is a proud participant in the National http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/foodservice-management-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/food-service-management-gainful-employment

The Full Charge Bookkeeper Certificate focuses on the accounting skills, knowledge, http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/full-charge-bookkeeper-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/full-charge-bookkeeper-gainful-employment

The Hospitality Management Certificate is designed for individuals with industry http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-management-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/hospitality-management-gainful-employment

The Logistics/Supply Chain Management Certificate prepares students for entry- http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/logisticssupply-chain-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/logisticssupply-chain-management-certificate-gainful-

The Medical Office Certificate focuses on the clerical skills and specialized http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/medical-office-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/medical-office-gainful-employment

The Computer Information Systems - Applications Specialist Option provides http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-

The Computer Information Systems - Database Option provides students with a http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-database-

The Computer Information Systems - Health Information Option will prepare http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-health-

The Computer Information Systems - Transfer Option program is designed to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-transfer-

The Computer Information Systems - Web Development & Programming Option is http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-web-

The Computer Systems Engineering Technology - Computer Support Option http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-

The Computer Systems Engineering Technology - Cybersecurity Option program is http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-

The mission of the Computer Systems Engineering Technology (CSET) program is http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-

The Computer Systems Engineering Technology - Forensics Option program http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-

The Computer Science Transfer associate degree program is designed to prepare http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-science-transfer

The Interactive Media - Digital Design Option is a multi-faceted computer based http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/interactive-media-digital-design-option

Standard 9:  Integrity, Transparency, and Public Disclosure
(Transparency)

List below the statements or promises made regarding program excellence, learning  outcomes, success in placement, and achievements of graduates or faculty and indicate 
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http://www.qcc.edu/public-records
http://www.qcc.edu/public-records/annual-reports
http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/admissions
http://www.qcc.edu/admissions/enrollment-steps
http://www.qcc.edu/human-resources/hiring-process
http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/academic-information
http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/academic-information
http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/grievance_policy_corrected_student.pdf
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-career
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-career-0
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-transfer
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-and-recreation-management
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-and-recreation-management
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-and-recreation-management-0
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounting-assistant-finance-assistant
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounting-assistant-finance-assistant
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/accounting-assistant-finance-assistant-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounts-payableaccounts-receivable
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/accounts-payableaccounts-receivable
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/accounts-payableaccounts-receivable-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/business-administration-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/business-administration-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/clerical-office-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/clerical-office-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/dietary-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/dietary-management-certificate-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/entrepreneurship-and-small-business
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/entrepreneurship-and-small-business
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/entrepreneurship-small-business-management-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/entrepreneurship-small-business-management-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/foodservice-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/foodservice-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/food-service-management-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/full-charge-bookkeeper-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/full-charge-bookkeeper-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/full-charge-bookkeeper-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/hospitality-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/hospitality-management-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/logisticssupply-chain-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/logisticssupply-chain-management-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/logisticssupply-chain-management-certificate-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/logisticssupply-chain-management-certificate-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/business-financial-and-hospitality-management/medical-office-certificate
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/medical-office-gainful-employment
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-applications-specialist
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-applications-specialist
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-database-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-database-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-health-information-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-health-information-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-transfer-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-transfer-option
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-web-development
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-web-development
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-computer-0
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-computer-0
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-cybersecurity
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-cybersecurity
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-enterprise
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-enterprise
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-forensics
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-technology-forensics
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-science-transfer
http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/interactive-media-digital-design-option


The Interactive Media - Game Design Option is a multi-faceted computer based http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/interactive-media-game-design-option

The Applications Specialist Certificate is designed for students who want to use http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/applications-specialist-gainful-employment

The Database Certificate is designed to provide the student with the basic knowledge http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-database-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/database-gainful-employment

The certificate in Web Applications is designed to provide the student with the basic http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-information-systems-web-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/web-applications-gainful-employment

The Computer Forensics Certificate prepares graduates to work in the Information http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/computer-forensics-gainful-employment

The Cyber Security Certificate is designed to prepare graduates to work in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/cyber-security-gainful-employment

The Help Desk Technician Certificate prepares graduates to work in the Information http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/help-desk-technician-gainful-employment

The Network Associate Certificate prepares graduates to work in the Information http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/network-associate-gainful-employment

The Network Technician Certificate prepares graduates to work in the Information http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/network-technician-gainful-employment

The Personal Computer Specialist Certificate prepares graduates to work in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/personal-computer-specialist-gainful-employment

The Unix Systems Administrator Certificate prepares graduates to work in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/unix-systems-administrator-gainful-employment

The Windows Systems Administrator Certificate prepares graduates to work in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/computer-and-information-technology/computer-systems-engineering-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/windows-systems-administrator-gainful-employment

This program prepares students for responsible positions in the field of early care http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/early-childhood-education-birth-through-eight-years-old-option

This program prepares students for responsible positions in the field of early care http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/early-childhood-education

The Elementary Education Transfer Option meets the standards 

The Early Childhood Education Certificate program provides students with both the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/early-childhood-education-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/early-childhood-education-certificate-gainful-employment

The Early Childhood Education Birth through Eight Years Old Certificate program http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/early-childhood-education-birth-through-eight-years-old-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/birth-through-eight-years-old-certificate-gainful-

This certificate program provides students who are already working in early http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/leadership-early-education-and-care-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/leadership-early-education-care-gainful-employment

This certificate program provides students with both the theoretical knowledge and http://www.qcc.edu/academics/education/technician-applied-behavior-analysis-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/technician-applied-behavior-analysis-gainful-employment

The Biomedical Instrumentation Option in Electronics Engineering Technology http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/electronics-engineering-technology-

The goal of the Mechatronics Option in Electronics Engineering Technology is to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/electronics-engineering-technology-

The goal of the Photonics Option in Electronics Engineering Technology is to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/electronics-engineering-technology-

The Engineering - Biomedical Engineering Option is a rigorous program that http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/engineering-biomedical-engineering-

The Engineering program is a rigorous program that emphasizes mathematics and 

The goal of the Manufacturing Technology - Applied Manufacturing Option is to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-applied-

The Manufacturing Technology program is designed to prepare graduates to enter http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology

The Electronics Technology Certificate prepares students for entry-level positions in http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/electronics-engineering-technology-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/electronics-technology-gainful-employment

The primary goal of the Photonics Certificate is to provide students an educational http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/electronics-engineering-technology-

The goal of the Applied Manufacturing Certificate is to prepare highly skilled http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-applied-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/applied-manufacturing-certificate-gainful-employment

The CNC or Computer Numerical Control program is designed to prepare graduates http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-cnc-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/cnc-technologies-certificate-gainful-employment

The Computer Aided Design Certificate is intended to prepare successful graduates http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-computer-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/computer-aided-design-gainful-employment

The Manufacturing Technology Certificate is designed to introduce the principles of http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/manufacturing-technology-gainful-employment
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http://www.qcc.edu/academics/engineering-and-engineering-technology/manufacturing-technology-certificate
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This one year program is for LPNs seeking advanced placement into the Evening http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/advanced-placement-nurse-education-lpn
NCLEX Licensure Pass Rates: Expected Level of Achievement developed by QCC 
2015 National Results: 83.5% | QCC Results: 88%
2016 National Results: 84.6% | QCC Results: 86.4%
•Program Completion: Expected Level of Achievement developed by QCC AD
•Graduates Obtaining Jobs: Expected Level of Achievement developed by QCC AD http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/advanced-placement-nurse-education-lpn

This Program is for Paramedics seeking Advanced Placement into the Evening http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/advanced-placement-nurse-education-paramedic

This program prepares graduates to oversee the business operations of a dental http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/allied-dental-services-dental-office-management-option

This program prepares graduates to work as sales representatives or product http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/allied-dental-services-dental-salesmarketing-option

This program prepares its graduates with a strong science background and is a good http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/allied-dental-services-health-sciences-option

To accept students into the program who have the potential for achieving the stated http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/dental-hygiene

The General Studies - Public Health Option prepares students for a career as a http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-public-health-option

To prepare competent entry-level medical assistants in the cognitive (knowledge), http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/medical-support-specialist-medical-assisting-option

The Nurse Education program prepares students for a career as a Registered Nurse. http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/nurse-education

This program prepares students for entry-level employment as a Certified http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/occupational-therapy-assistant

To prepare competent entry-level Emergency Medical Technician-Paramedics to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/paramedic-technology

The Radiologic Technology program prepares students to serve the local community http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/radiologic-technology

The Respiratory Care program prepares students for a career as advanced level http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/respiratory-care

This program prepares the student to obtain employment as a dental assistant along http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/dental-assisting-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/dental-assisting-gainful-employment

This course prepares the student upon successful completion of the Massachusetts http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/emergency-medical-services-emergency-medical-technician-basic-

To prepare competent entry-level Emergency Medical Technician-Paramedics to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/emt-paramedic-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/emt-paramedic-gainful-employment

The Emergency Medical Technician program prepares a student for a career as an http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/emergency-medical-technician-certificate

To prepare competent entry-level medical assistants in the cognitive (knowledge), http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/medical-assisting-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/medical-assisting-gainful-employment

The Nursing Assistant Certificate program educates individuals to work in various http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/nursing-assistant-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/nursing-assistant-gainful-employment

The Perioperative Nursing Program is designed to provide nurses with an http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/perioperative-nursing-certificate

This program provides students with the knowledge needed to prepare for a career http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/pharmacy-technician-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/pharmacy-technician-gainful-employment

The Phlebotomy/EKG Technician Certificate program educates individuals to work http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/phlebotomyekg-technician-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/phlebotomyekg-technician-gainful-employment

Practical Nurse Education prepares students with skills and education that will http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/practical-nursing-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/practical-nursing-gainful-employment

This program prepares the student to obtain employment as an entry-level public http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/public-health-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/public-health-certificate-gainful-employment

Sleep Technology (Polysomnography or PSG) is an allied health specialty whose http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/sleep-technology-certificate

The Surgical Technology Certificate program is designed to prepare the beginning http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/surgical-technology-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/surgical-technology-gainful-employment

This program provides students with a strong academic foundation in biotechnology http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-biotechnology-option

The Deaf Studies Option prepares students to have the necessary communication http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-deaf-studies-option

This program offers students the opportunity to prepare for QCC’s Healthcare http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-healthcare-option

This program provides students with the first two years of a strong academic http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-pre-pharmacy-option

The General Studies - Public Health Option prepares students for a career as a http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-public-health-option

To prepare competent entry-level medical assistants in the cognitive (knowledge), http://www.qcc.edu/academics/healthcare/medical-support-specialist-medical-assisting-option

To provide a comprehensive, responsive, directed academic experience which helps http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies

Provide a well-rounded foundational education in the liberal arts disciplines, defined http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts

This program provides a curriculum with an emphasis on courses that the student http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-biology-option
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Provide a curriculum with an emphasis on courses that the student will need to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-chemistry-option

Provide foundational courses in English literature required by four-year colleges and http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-english-option

This program provides students with a strong academic foundation in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-environmental-science-option

Provide a foundational education in history, enabling transfer to a bachelor http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-history-option

Prepare students to transfer to a four-year college or university, or entry-level work http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-music-option

The Liberal Arts - Psychology Option prepares students for transfer to four-year http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-psychology-option

Theater at Quinsigamond Community College serves the Liberal Arts by providing a http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/liberal-arts-theater-option

This certificate program provides students with an overview of the science of http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/biotechnology-technician-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/biotechnology-technician-gainful-employment

This program provides students with a broad academic background in the area of http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/criminal-justice

This program prepares students for a career as a firefighter or to advance in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/fire-science

This program prepares students for a career as an entry-level human service http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/human-services

This program is designed for community support workers who work in programs http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/direct-support-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/direct-support-gainful-employment

This program prepares students for a career as a firefighter or to advance in the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/fire-science-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/fire-science-gainful-employment

This program prepares students for entry-level career positions in a wide variety of http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/human-services-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/human-services-gainful-employment

This certificate was developed in cooperation with the Massachusetts Police Chiefs http://www.qcc.edu/academics/public-and-social-services/law-enforcement-certificate
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/law-enforcement-gainful-employment

The Automotive Technology program is designed to prepare the student to become http://www.qcc.edu/academics/installation-maintenance-and-repair-technology/automotive-technology

The Aviation Maintenance Technology (AMT) program is offered through an http://www.qcc.edu/academics/installation-maintenance-and-repair-technology/aviation-maintenance-

The General Studies - Energy Utility Technology Option program is designed to http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/general-studies-energy-utility-technology-

The Ford Maintenance and Light Repair Program Certificate curriculum is designed http://www.qcc.edu/academics/installation-maintenance-and-repair-technology/automotive-technology-ford-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/ford-maintenance-light-repair-gainful-employment

The Energy Utility Technology Certificate program is designed to prepare students http://www.qcc.edu/academics/installation-maintenance-and-repair-technology/energy-utility-technology-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/energy-utility-technology-gainful-employment

The QCC HVAC/R program will provide successful graduates with the skills needed http://www.qcc.edu/academics/installation-maintenance-and-repair-technology/heating-ventilation-air-
As required by federal law, Quinsigamond Community College provides the http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/heating-ventilation-air-conditioning-gainful-employment

Date of last review of:
Print publications Yearly
Digital publications Yearly

Please enter any explanatory notes in the box below
Learning outcomes and program excellence are next to every program in the 2017-2018 Catalog and on the website links that are included above.
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http://www.qcc.edu/academics/liberal-artssciencegeneral-studies/biotechnology-technician-certificate
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http://www.qcc.edu/academics/gainful-employment/heating-ventilation-air-conditioning-gainful-employment


Information Website location
Institutional catalog http://www.qcc.edu/catalog
Obligations and responsibilities of students and the institution http://www.qcc.edu/college-policies-disclosures
Obligations and responsibilities of students and the institution http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/student-code-conduct
Information on admission and attendance http://www.qcc.edu/admissions
Institutional mission and objectives http://www.qcc.edu/about/mission-statement
Expected educational outcomes http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/student_outcomes_2016.pdf
Status as public or independent institution; status as not-for-profit 
or for-profit; religious affiliation

http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/about

Requirements, procedures and policies re: admissions http://www.qcc.edu/admissions/enrollment-steps

Requirements, procedures and policies re: transfer credit http://www.qcc.edu/admissions/transfer
A list of institutions with which the institution has an articulation 
agreement

http://www.qcc.edu/services/transfer/transfer-agreements#trnstable

Student fees, charges and refund policies http://www.qcc.edu/admissions/tuition-and-fees
Student fees, charges and refund policies http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/refund_policy.pdf
Rules and regulations for student conduct http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/student_code_of_conduct.pdf
Procedures for student appeals and complaints http://www.qcc.edu/files/president/policies/grievance_policy_corrected_student.pdf
Other information re: attending or withdrawing from the 
i tit ti

http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/college-procedures

Academic programs http://www.qcc.edu/academics
Courses currently offered https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/Course_Offerings_and_Schedule.jnz?portlet=AddDrop_Cours
Other available educational opportunities http://trainnow.qcc.edu/modules/shop/index.html?action=courseCatalogs
Other academic policies and procedures http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/college-procedures
Requirements for degrees and other forms of academic recognition http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/academic-information

List of continuing faculty, indicating department or program 
affiliation, degrees held, and institutions granting them

http://www2.qcc.mass.edu/qccDirectory/osv/fac.asp

Names and positions of administrative officers http://www.qcc.edu/about/executive-team
Names, principal affiliations of governing board members 

http://www.qcc.edu/college-governance/board-members
Locations and programs available at branch campuses, other 
instructional locations, and overseas operations at which students 
can enroll for a degree, along with a description of programs and 
services available at each location

http://www.qcc.edu/qcc-southbridge

Locations and programs available at branch campuses, other 
instructional locations, and overseas operations at which students 
can enroll for a degree, along with a description of programs and 
services available at each location http://www.qcc.edu/qcc-assabet
Programs, courses, services, and personnel not available in any 

  
https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/Course_Offerings_and_Schedule.jnz?portlet=AddDrop_Cours

Programs, courses, services, and personnel not available in any 
  

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Registration/2017-2018_catalog.pdf
Size and characteristics of the student body http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/student_enrollment_demographics_2016.pdf
Description of the campus setting http://www.qcc.edu/main-campus-worcester
Availability of academic and other support services http://www.qcc.edu/services/tutoring
Availability of academic and other support services http://www.qcc.edu/services/trio-student-support-services
Availability of academic and other support services http://www.qcc.edu/brothers-keepers
Availability of academic and other support services http://www.qcc.edu/she-support-help-encourage
Range of co-curricular and non-academic opportunities available to http://www.qcc.edu/student-life/clubs-and-organizations
Institutional learning and physical resources from which a student 
can reasonably be expected to benefit

http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/college-resources-and-services

Institutional learning and physical resources from which a student 
can reasonably be expected to benefit

http://www.qcc.edu/student-handbook-2017-2018/career-and-academic-planning-
services

Institutional goals for students' education http://www.qcc.edu/about/mission-statement
Success of students in achieving institutional goals including rates 
of retention and graduation and other measure of student success 
appropriate to institutional mission.  Passage rates for licensure 
exams, as appropriate

http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/student_outcomes_2016.pdf  

Success of students in achieving institutional goals including rates 
of retention and graduation and other measure of student success 
appropriate to institutional mission.  Passage rates for licensure 
exams, as appropriate http://www.qcc.edu/files/irap/health_care_exam_pass_rates_2001-15.pdf
Total cost of education and net price, including availability of 

      
http://www.qcc.edu/files/financial-aid/cost_calculator_and_dl_facts17-18.pdf

Total cost of education and net price, including availability of 
      

http://www.qcc.edu/financial-aid-scholarships/aid-programs
Expected amount of student debt upon graduation and loan 

 
http://www.qcc.edu/academics

Statement about accreditation http://www.qcc.edu/2017-2018-catalog/about

Standard 9:  Integrity, Transparency, and Public Disclosure
(Public Disclosure)
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http://www.qcc.edu/student-life/clubs-and-organizations
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E-SERIES FORMS: MAKING ASSESSMENT MORE EXPLICIT 

OPTION E1:  PART A.  INVENTORY OF EDUCATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS 

CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

For general education if an 

undergraduate institution:  

QCC 

The 10 general education 

goals and their associated 

student learning outcome and 

objectives are publicly 

available via the QCC 

website’s “Student Learning 

Outcomes Assessment” page: 

https://www.qcc.edu/student-

learning-outcomes-

assessment/learning-goals 

General education at QCC is 

assessed within degree programs 

using assessment methods and 

modes of interpretation and change 

implementation appropriate to the 

programs and led by program 

faculty and their staff partners and 

other stakeholders. Thus, these data 

vary from program to program. 

Please see individual program 

entries in the E-Series forms for 

each. 

Where applicable, the 

Quinsigamond Outcomes 

Research for Excellence 

(QORE) team works with 

program faculty or other 

groups of faculty and staff to 

develop data collection 

strategies, collect and evaluate 

student artifacts in Blackboard 

Outcomes or another method, 

lead interpretation of data, and 

propose change based on the 

interpretation of evidence. 

QORE prioritizes direct, 

authentic measures and 

faculty-staff-led data analysis 

and interpretation. 

Much general education 

assessment still occurs 

independently within 

programs, or as part of 

external accreditation efforts. 

Individual program entries in 

the E-Series forms detail 

programmatic changes. 

QORE has led systematic 

changes that involve cross-

functional teams of 

professional staff, faculty and 

students, and that consult with 

serve groups of faculty and 

staff. 

QORE’s major achievements 

since the 2015 Interim Report 

include the following: 

 Creation of Assignment

Design and Assessment

Toolkits for:

o Writing

o Oral Presentation

o Visual Presentation

o Civic Literacy

 Inauguration of Digital

Course Template

development in high-

enrollment areas including:

o English 101

o Psychology 101

o Sociology 101

 Deep revision of the public

format for general education

goals, outcomes and

objectives.

Use of Blackboard Outcomes 

in all QORE-led assessment 

projects. 

2009: Campus-wide 

adoption of general 

education goals 

2010-2018: campus-wide 

pilots for Communication 

Skills (written and oral), 

Quantitative Reasoning, 

and Information Literacy 

2013: completed working 

drafts of student learning 

outcomes for all ten 

general education goals 

2016: Revision of 

Information Literacy 

SLOs 

2018: Revision of Civic 

Literacy SLOs 

Criminal Justice Associate 

in Science – CJ  

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2017-

2018_catalog.pdf  

The CJ Program employs several of 

the many different measures of 

learning, which include paper and 

The CJ Program encourages 

instructors to try a number of 

different approaches to 

teaching that seek to overcome 

Feedback from recent student 

graduates via the Alumni 

Office survey showed the need 

to implement more technology 

2015 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

pencil tests, learning curves, skill 

practices, and job simulations.   

Additional Evidence includes: 

1) Samples of research papers of CJ

majors in 200-level criminal justice 

courses that require them, during 

the spring semester in question, are 

drawn.  A panel of faculty members 

read each paper and evaluate the 

extent to which it shows the 

student’s mastery of the objectives, 

with each faculty member scoring 

each paper either: 0-inadequate; 1-

adequate; or 2-superior.  An average 

score of 1.0 or better will be 

considered evidence that the 

objective was met. 

2) Curriculum/syllabus analysis;

written and oral presentation in  

CRJ courses 101, 207, and 213 and 

other courses relating to system 

structures; team projects, also 

feedback from surveys given to 

graduates, alumni, and employers. 

3) Additional examples of

effectiveness is illustrated when the 

instructors meet and discuss 

teaching techniques, either in a 

formal setting like the Division 

meetings, or the Coordinator 

meetings with the full time and 

adjunct faculty members throughout 

the semester. 

the differences in teaching 

style, engage learners, and 

present information in a 

format and approach which 

will suit students’ various 

learning styles. 

Each semester, all faculty 

members must submit a 

syllabus and a check-sheet for 

each course taught, describing 

how the course addresses the 
above outcomes.  

1) Assessments are completed

by faculty at the end of every 

other academic year.   

2) Faculty review curriculum

and coordinate syllabi; written 

and oral presentations to be 

evaluated by faculty; team 

projects evaluated; assessment 

is ongoing and continuous. 

in the classroom and in the 

curriculum.  

The Criminal Justice Program 

has used student evaluation of 

teaching for several decades. At 

present all instructors are 

required to use the QCC 

approved evaluation form. The 

results of evaluations are 

maintained in a database and 

figure in promotion, retention, 

and salary review.  

Two new courses were 

developed with the English 

Department for students 

majoring in CJ. Contextualized 

composition English courses 

ENG 101. ENG 102 were 
developed.   

The readings and essay topics 

all relate to this major, with the 

idea being that students are 

more invested in learning about 

something they are interested in 

and/or that is related to their 

future career.  The project is 

data-driven, statistics were used 

from IR.  The created 

contextualized ENG classes 

help with low pass/retention 

rates. The ENG department 

created a custom reader and 

syllabus for the course.   

Fire Science Associate in 

Science – FS  

Yes  

Through the FESHE Network 

and the National Fire 

Academy 

https://www.usfa.fema.gov/training/

prodev/model_courses.html 

Successful transfer to other 4-

year institution 

Job placement rates 

Graduation surveys 

Program Coordinator 

Faculty 

Office of Institutional Research 

Based on FESHE 

recommendations 

Based on industry changes 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

General Studies AA – GS  College Catalog 

 

Successful transfer to 4 year 

institutions.  

Job placement rates 

Who:  

Faculty 

Employers 

Representatives from 4yr 

institutions 

 

Process: 

Review, update, strengthen 

SLO through APR 

 

Meetings and discussions with 

stakeholders as needed 

between APR cycles 

Data collected as part of the 

2009 APR resulted in program 

modifications to better address 

SLOs. 

 

First Year Experience research 

gathered as precursor to APR 

in 2016-2017 is being used in 

discussions of how to modify 

PSY 115 and ORT 110 

Currently undergoing 

APR 

Human Services Associate 

in Science – HA  

College catalog 

 

APR document 

 

Syllabi 

 

Program Website: 

https://confucius.qcc.mass.edu

/ics/Programs/Human_Service

s.jnz 

see Human Services Student 

Handbook 

 

Human Services Department 

Faculty Orientation Handbook 

and Student Orientation 

Handbook 

Practicum/Fieldwork 

 

Fieldwork Capstone Paper 

 

Successful transfer to 4 yr. 

institutions 

 

 

Faculty 

Fieldwork Supervisors 

Employers 

Advisory Committee 

Department Meetings/ongoing 

HUS faculty committees 

Fieldwork Supervisor 

Evaluations 

APR  

Institutional Membership 

Council for Standards in 

Human Service Education for 

currency of standards 

Departmental Advisory 

Committee meetings and 

discussions 

Learning Outcomes 

strengthened to meet Council 

for Standards in Human 

Service Education standards 

and specifications;  

Outcomes of the APR updated 

curriculum to better address 

student learning outcomes and 

better meet national standards: 

ex., Increased Practicum hours 

from 120 hours to 250 hours, 

creating two semesters of 

fieldwork for students;  

 

APA citation used across HUS 

Curriculum 

2012 APR 

2015 Self Study for 

National Accreditation 

(CSHSE) successfully 

granted without condition 

Liberal Arts/Psychology 

Option – LAPY  

APR Document 

College Website: 

www.qcc.edu/academics/liber

al-artssciencegeneral-

studies/liberal-arts-

psychology-option 

 

College Catalog 

 

Successful transfer to 4-year 

institutions. 

Faculty;  Receiving 

Institutions 

 

Ongoing Assessment 

Statewide Transfer Pathways 

Committee 

 

Process: 

 

Monthly Department Meetings 

Annual Reflection re: 

Department curriculum, SLO 

Review of SLO’s for Program 

 

Development of Liberal Arts 

Psychology Option Program 

 

Ongoing development and 

evaluation of PSY 101, 

Introduction to Psychology 

 

Course Development: 

Psychological Statistics 

 

Research Methods 

 

Cognitive Psychology 

 

Academic Discipline 

Review 

May 2014 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Ongoing contact with 

Statewide Transfer Pathways 

Committee 

Updated and Strengthened 

course descriptions for: 

Developmental Psychology 

course(s) 

  

General Studies/ 

Elementary Education 

Transfer Option – GSEE  

 

College Catalogue  

2017-2018 

EDU 101 Syllabus 

Successful transfer to a four year 

institution 

Successful completion of  the CLST 

portion of the MTEL 

Faculty representative from 

the four year institution. 

 

Meetings and discussion 

between coordinator and 

representatives from four year 

institutions 

 

Board of Higher Education 

Program is currently being 

revised to meet the Board of 

Higher Education’s 

recommendations for Mass 

Transfer Pathways. Two new 

courses have been developed 

and a degree revision is being 

worked on. 

2008 

Liberal Arts Associate in 

Arts - LA 

 

College website 

(www.qcc.edu), and College 

catalog 

Successful transfer to 4-year 

institutions. 

 

Faculty; 

 

Process: 

Meetings and discussions 

throughout the year. 

 

Effective Fall 2016, curriculum 

was revamped (1) to be in line 

with MassTransfer 

requirements; (2) to provide a 

guided pathway of study in 

accordance with Complete 

College America guidelines; 

and (3) to serve as an umbrella 

meta-major for development of 

specific liberal arts 

concentrations. 

2015-2016  APR 

Liberal Arts/History  

Option - LAHI 

College website 

(www.qcc.edu), and College 

catalog 

Successful transfer to history 

program at 4-year institutions 

History faculty at periodic 

meetings 

Not applicable  because 

program just established in Fall 

2017 

Not applicable  because 

program just established 

in Fall 2017 

Accounting Assistant 

Finance Assistant 

Certificate - AF 

 

 

QCC Catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program. Voluntary 

participation in the VITA program; 

acceptance into the Business Career 

Program or Full Charge Bookkeeper 

Program 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input 

English requirement been made 

more rigorous; individual 

courses have been updated to 

comply with current accounting 

practices 

 

Accounts Payable/ 

Accounts Receivable 

Certificate - APAR 

 

QCC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program or the Full Charge 

Bookkeeper Program; job 

placement rates; students are 

prepared to take the QuickBooks 

certification exam 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department 

This is a relatively new 

program 

 

Automotive Technology- 

AT 

College catalog page 274 

On the web: 

Completion of NATEF task list and 

shop competency 

ASE certified professors and 

instructors. 

More hands-on time in selected 

courses. 

April 2014 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

 http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/installation-maintenance-

and-repair-

technology/automotive-

technology 

 

Learning outcomes are 

developed for the program 

and course level. 

 

Quizzes, tests and examinations. 

 

Team projects and laboratory 

evaluations. 

 

Exhibit of correct safety practices in 

the lab. 

 

Passing NC3 multi-meter 

certification exam. 

Completion of Ford or Subaru 

required training if applicable. 

 

Co-op employers. 

 

Advisory Committee. 

Adding AUT 111 as a pre-req 

to AUT 125 

AUT 212 was retired as space 

was not adequate.  

Diesel Program partnerships 

are being explored. 

Expanded classroom and lab 

space have been added to help 

give students more lab time. 

A-Tech simulators have been 

added to give students more 

exposure to electrical systems. 

Business Administration 

Career Administrative 

Professional AS – BBAP  

 

 

QCC catalog Job placement rates 

Co-op course 

Advisory board input 

faculty review of syllabi 

evaluations from co-op 

employers/Career Placement 

Office 

Program has been streamlined 

so that the Clerical Office 

Certificate and the Medical 

Office Certificate flow 

seamlessly into this program. 

Outdated courses such as 

Medical Transcription have 

been replaced with the more 

relevant Electronic Health 

Records course 

 

Business Administration 

Career AS – BB  

 

QCC catalog Job placement rates 

Capstone course 

Advisory board input 

faculty review of syllabi 

input from employers/Career 

Placement Office 

Many certificates have been 

reviewed and updated to form 

“stackable certificates” into the 

BB program 

 

Business Administration 

Certificate - BAC 

 

QCC Catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input 

The BAC is the first year of the 

BB degree program.  

 

Business Administration 

Transfer AS – BT   

 

QCC catalog Successful transfer to 4 year 

institutions.  

Job placement rates  

 

Advisory board input 

faculty review of syllabi 

input from four-year 

colleges/transfer office 

Electives in the BT program 

has been limited to ACC, F I N, 

BSL, M GT, MRK. 

 

MGT 222, International 

Business was added to the 

curriculum and a global 

perspective was added to most 

courses.  

Students who apply to the BT 

program but do not meet the 

admissions qualifications, are 

accepted to the BB program 

 January 2015 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Clerical Office Certificate 

– COBB  

 

 

 

 

QCC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Administrative Professional 

Program; job placement rates; co-op 

class 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department; co-op employer 

evaluations 

all courses have been reviewed 

to be sure they are using the 

most current technology 

 

Computer Information 

Systems – Applications 

Specialists Option 

Associate in Science – 

CIAS  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 92 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Information 

Systems – Database 

Option Associate in 

Science – CIDB  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 96 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Information 

Systems – Health 

Information Option 

Associate in Science – 

CIHI  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 98 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

 

Computer Information 

Systems – Transfer Option 

Associate in Science - 

CITR 

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 100 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Information 

Systems – Web 

Applications Certificate – 

CWA  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 103 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

Computer Information 

Systems – Web 

Development & 

Programming Option 

Associate in Science – 

CIWP  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 105 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  

Computer Information 

Systems –Applications 

Specialist Certificate – 

CAS  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 90 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  

Computer Information 

Systems –Database 

Certificate – DB  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 94 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

2016 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

Computer Science 

Transfer – CS  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/technology/computer-

science-transfer 

Capstone course – CSC212 

Students will present their projects 

at the UMASS Undergraduate 

conference 

Annually by the curriculum 

committee 

Make the final course as a 

project based course  

12/2016 

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Computer Forensics 

Certificate - CF 

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 112 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Computer Support Option 

Associate in Science – 

SECS  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 114 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

 

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Cyber Security 

Certificate – CBS  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 117 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Cybersecurity Option 

Associate in Science – 

SECY  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 120 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Enterprise Information 

Technology (IT) Option 

Associate in Science – 

SEIT  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 123 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Formal review via APR. 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Help Desk Technician 

Certificate – HDTC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 130 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Network Associate 

Certificate – NAC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 132 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Network Professional 

Certificate – NPC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 134 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Network Technician 

Certificate – NTC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 136 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Personal Computer 

Specialist 

Certificate – PCS   

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 138 

Capstone Courses 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Unix Systems 

Administrator 

Certificate – USAC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 140 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology – 

Windows Systems 

Administrator 

Certificate – WSAC  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 142 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  

  

Computer Systems 

Engineering Technology –

Forensics Option 

Associate in Science – 

SEF  

2017-2018 College Catalog, 

Page 127 

Capstone Courses 

 

Coop Experience feedback from 

supervisors. 

 

Faculty meet each semester to 

discuss learning objectives in 

courses (to assure that course 

sections are consistent and up 

Each semester minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

industry changes.  This 

includes technology, trend, and 

2014 APR completed and 

implemented.  
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Academic Advisory Committee 

annual meeting. 

to date) and how the students 

are meeting them. 

 

Formal review via APR. 

industry standard certification 

exam skillset changes.  

 

Major modification in 

curriculum content is often 

made as a result of the APR.  

Examples include Learning 

Outcomes additions, 

modifications and deletions; 

new course additions; and 

course description 

modification. 

Dietary Management 

Certificate – DMC  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/business-financial-and-

hospitality-

management/dietary-

management-certificate 

Catalog, syllabi, ANFP 

http://www.cbdmonline.org/g

et-certified/eligibility 

 

Preceptors, faculty, student self-

assessment, ANFP exam classroom 

performance 

Dietician, faculty, preceptors, 

certifying board of the ANFP 

Expanded diversity of co op 

sites; enhanced advising of 

students increased prerequisites 

for courses restricted online 

courses 

Created an exam review course 

Full approval received 

July 2017 

Electronics Engineering 

Technology – Biomedical 

Instrumentation  Option – 

EEBI  

College Catalog 

APR Report (2012) 

Capstone Course (ELM 258) – 

Students are evaluated in all aspects 

of employability. 

 

CO-OP Work Experience – 

Students demonstrate competence 

in the workplace.  Supervisors 

provide feedback on student 

performance. 

 

Capstone course instructor 

evaluates each student based 

on an employability rubric. 

 

 

CO-OP advisor evaluates 

student performance through 

visit to work site and feedback 

from supervisor. 

 

Advisory board gives input on 

relevance and quality of 

outcomes and curriculum. 

Soldering introduced in first-

semester courses. 

 

Capstone course emphasizes 

workplace skills such as 

punctuality, teamwork and 

problem-solving. 

2012 

(2018 APR is scheduled) 

Electronics Engineering 

Technology – 

Mechatronics Option – 

EEMO  

College Catalog 

APR Report (2012) 

Capstone Course (ELM 258) – 

Students are evaluated in all aspects 

of employability. 

 

CO-OP Work Experience – 

Students demonstrate competence 

in the workplace.  Supervisors 

provide feedback on student 

performance. 

 

Capstone course instructor 

evaluates each student based 

on an employability rubric. 

 

 

CO-OP advisor evaluates 

student performance through 

visit to work site and feedback 

from supervisor. 

 

Soldering introduced in first-

semester courses. 

 

Capstone course emphasizes 

workplace skills such as 

punctuality, teamwork and 

problem-solving. 

2012 

(2018 APR is scheduled) 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Advisory board gives input on 

relevance and quality of 

outcomes and curriculum. 

Electronics Engineering 

Technology – Photonics 

Option – EEPH  

College Catalog 

APR Report (2012) 

Capstone Course (ELM 258) – 

Students are evaluated in all aspects 

of employability. 

 

CO-OP Work Experience – 

Students demonstrate competence 

in the workplace.  Supervisors 

provide feedback on student 

performance. 

 

Capstone course instructor 

evaluates each student based 

on an employability rubric. 

 

 

CO-OP advisor evaluates 

student performance through 

visit to work site and feedback 

from supervisor. 

 

Advisory board gives input on 

relevance and quality of 

outcomes and curriculum. 

Soldering introduced in first-

semester courses. 

 

Capstone course emphasizes 

workplace skills such as 

punctuality, teamwork and 

problem-solving. 

2012 

(2018 APR is scheduled) 

Entrepreneurship and 

Small Business 

Management Certificate – 

ENS  

 

 

 

Q CC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program; number of students 

who open a small business 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department; input from various 

community organizations 

Courses have become more 

project-based such as 

researching and writing a 

business plan 

 

Engineering Associate in 

Science - ERG 

Page 173 

:http://www.qcc.edu/files/Reg

istration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

Acceptance to 4-year colleges 

 

Feedback from 4-year colleges 

 

Feedback from students 

 

Feedback and membership from 

industry societies 

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Review yearly by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2007 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

receiving institute and industry 

organization changes 

Last:  APR 2007 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2018 

Engineering-Biomedical 

Engineering Option - 

Associate in Science - 

ERBM 

Page 174 

:http://www.qcc.edu/files/Reg

istration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

Acceptance to 4-year colleges 

 

Feedback from 4-year colleges 

 

Feedback from students 

 

Feedback and membership from 

industry societies 

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Review yearly by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2007 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

receiving institute and industry 

organization changes 

Last:  APR 2007 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2018 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Foodservice Management 

Certificate – FM  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/business-financial-and-

hospitality-

management/foodservice-

management-certificate 

catalog, course syllabi, 

National Restaurant 

Association 

Student self-assess in reflective 

practice. Experiential component in 

classes 

Exams, research, class projects,  co 

op  

 

Faculty lab supervisors clients 

students  

employers 

Incorporated local foods  into 

the curriculum; increased 

coordination between lab and 

classroom 

Full APR 2015 

Curriculum revisions 

12/2017 

Full Charge Bookkeeper 

Certificate – FCBK  

 

 

 

 

QCC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program; job placement 

rates; co-op class 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department; co-op employer 

evaluations 

This is a relatively new 

program 

 

Hospitality and Recreation 

Management/ Foodservice 

Management – HRFO  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/business-financial-and-

hospitality-

management/hospitality-and-

recreation-management 

catalog, course syllabi, 

learning agreement 

Employers, co op sites, advisory 

committee, student self and peer 

assessment, lab performance, 

classroom performance, quizzes 

exams 

Students reflective lab reports, 

clients ,debrief meetings, 

faculty peers, lab instructor in 

the classes, advisory board 

semi annually 

Added Dietary Management 

Track;  created focus on vegan, 

local, and nutritional foods 

Full APR 2015 

Curriculum revisions 

12/2017 

Hospitality and Recreation 

Management/ Hospitality 

Management Option – 

HRHO  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/business-financial-and-

hospitality-

management/hospitality-and-

recreation-management-0 

Catalog, syllabi, learning 

agreement 

American Lodging 

Association 

Employers, co op sites, advisory 

committee, student self and peer 

assessment, lab performance, 

classroom performance, quizzes 

exams,  

Students reflective journals, 

clients debrief meetings, 

faculty peers, lab instructor in 

the classes, advisory board 

semi annually 

Implemented integrated labs 

into all HRM courses; 

Began adjunct 

meetings/seminars  

Full APR 2015 

Curriculum revisions 

12/2017 

Hospitality Management 

Certificate – HO  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/business-financial-and-

hospitality-

management/hospitality-

management-certificate 

Catalog, syllabi, learning 

agreement 

Student self-assess in reflective 

practice. Experiential component in 

classes 

Exams, research, class projects,  co 

op  

 

Faculty lab supervisors clients 

students  

employers 

Implemented integrated labs 

into all HRM courses; 

Began adjunct 

meetings/seminars 

Full APR 2015 

Curriculum revisions 

12/2017 

Interactive Media Digital 

Design - IMDD 

Print versions-college 

catalogue, on-campus 

program flyers, college web 

site, outreach documents 

Capstone course, Portfolio 

development and review 

Instructor reviews student 

work based on oral and 

finished design or gaming 

portfolio presentation and 

functionality 

Updated curriculum and course 

content, introduction of a new 

program option 

2013 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Interactive Media Game 

Design – IMGD  

 

Print versions-college 

catalogue, on-campus 

program flyers, college web 

site, outreach documents 

Capstone course, Portfolio 

development and review 

Instructor reviews student 

work based on oral and 

finished design or gaming 

portfolio presentation and 

functionality 

Updated curriculum and course 

content, introduction of a new 

program option 

new 

Logistics/Supply Chain 

Management Certificate – 

LOGC  

 

QCC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Program; job placement 

rates 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department 

This is a relatively new 

program, created with input 

from industry experts 

 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 

Manufacturing 

Technology -  Associate in 

Science - MP 

Page 177 

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2018-

2019_catalog.pdf  

7 national industry certification 

exams within this degree program. 

 

Capstone courses. 

 

Cooperative Work Experience. 

 

Student employment rates into the 

industry.  

 

Advisory Committee feedback from 

annual meetings. 

Continuous review by program 

coordinators and faculty 

 

APR 2015 

Each semester, minor 

modification in course content 

is made to accommodate 

student outcomes and industry 

expectation.  

Last:  APR 2015 

 

Next: Planned Fall 2020 

Medical Office Certificate 

– MSBB  

QCC catalog Tests, quizzes, team projects. 

Acceptance into the Business 

Career Administrative Professional 

Program; job placement rates; co-op 

class 

Faculty review of syllabi; 

advisory board input; input 

from the Career Placement 

department; co-op employer 

evaluations 

all courses have been reviewed 

to be sure they are using the 

most current technology; 

Electronic Health Records has 

been added as a course 

 

Biotechnology Technician 

Certificate – BI  

 

Printed college catalog; 

college web site: 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/liberal-artssciencegeneral-

Capstone courses BTT 211 and 

BTT 212 

 

Internship evaluations by employers 

Program coordinator evaluates 

with discussions including 

course instructors,  advisory 

board members, and the dean 

Curriculum modified to 

introduce more training on skill 

sets desired by local industry.  

 

January 2016 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

studies/biotechnology-

technician-certificate 

 

2016 Academic Planning and 

Review Report 

 

Job placement rates 

 Equipment has been purchased 

to better train on skill sets 

desired by industry. 

 

Introductory biotechnology 

course developed (BTT 101) to 

strengthen math and reading 

skills and to provide career 

exploration 

 

As this is a career re-training 

program, admission 

requirements changed to reflect 

emphasis that students need to 

be college-ready in math and 

English 

General Studies/Pre-

Pharmacy Option – GSPH  

  

In college Catalog 

and Course syllabi 

Successful transfers  

and feedback from the institutions 

accepting our students 

Faculty 

Course by Credit 

Grading 

Evaluation: 

 

Made changes in 

Organic Chemistry Lab work 

Not applicable 

General Studies—

Biotechnology Option – 

GSBT  

 

Printed college catalog; 

college web site: 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/liberal-artssciencegeneral-

studies/general-studies-

biotechnology-option 

 

2016 Academic Planning and 

Review Report 

Capstone courses BTT 211 and 

BTT 212 

 

Internship evaluations by employers 

 

Job placement rates 

Program coordinator evaluates 

with discussions including 

course instructors, advisory 

board members, and the dean. 

 

 

Curriculum modified to 

introduce more training on skill 

sets desired by local industry.  

 

Equipment has been purchased 

to better train on skill sets 

desired by industry. 

 

Introductory biotechnology 

course developed (BTT 101) to 

strengthen math and reading 

skills and to provide career 

exploration 

 

Academic pathway modified to 

include industry relevant 

curriculum that focuses on 

employment after graduation 

 

A separate academic pathway 

(Liberal Arts—Biology Option) 

for transfer to 4-year 

biology/biotech programs 

developed 

January 2016 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Liberal Arts Biology 

Option – LABI  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/liberal-artssciencegeneral-

studies/liberal-arts-biology-

option 

College catalog and on the 

Program website 

This is a new program with no 

graduates as of yet.  Transfer to a 4-

year degree program shows success 

of students.  

The program coordinator and 

the transfer coordinator will 

interpret the evidence.   

This is a new program that 

came about from the state 

Board of Higher Education 

transfer pathways meetings.   

New degree that went into 

effect in Fall of 2016.  

Liberal Arts/ 

Environmental Science 

Option – LAES  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/liberal-artssciencegeneral-

studies/liberal-arts-

environmental-science-option 

 

Transferability to four year colleges 

and universities. 

Faculty, Transfer coordinator, 

Representatives from 4-year 

institutions 

 

Meetings and discussions 

throughout the year 

 

New Program 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

Liberal Arts/Chemistry 

Option – LACH  

 

In college Catalog 

and Course syllabi 

Successful transfers  

and feedback from the institutions 

accepting our students 

Faculty 

Course by Credit 

Grading 

Evaluation: 

 

New Course 

Not applicable 

Not applicable 

Allied Dental Services 

Dental Sales/Marketing 

Option - ADDS 

Catalog 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/allied-dental-

services-dental-

salesmarketing-option 

 

Syllabi 

Job placement 

Clinical Experience 

Graduate survey 

Faculty Program Coordinator 

Clinical site evaluation 

 APR  has not been 

completed as this program 

is still in its infancy stage 

Allied Dental Services 

Health Sciences Option - 

ADHS 

 

Catalog 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/allied-dental-

services-health-sciences-

option 

 

Syllabi 

Students applying and completing 

DHY  

  APR  has not been 

completed as this program 

is still in its infancy stage 

Allied Dental Services 

Dental Office 

Management option - 

ADDO 

Catalog 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/allied-dental-

services-dental-office-

management-option 

 

Syllabi  

Job placement 

Clinical Experience 

Graduate survey 

Faculty Program Coordinator 

Clinical site evaluation 

 APR  has not been 

completed as this program 

is still in its infancy stage 

 

 

 

 

 

Dental Assisting 

Certificate DA 

Catalog 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/dental-assisting-

certificate 

Credentialing exam DANB CDA 

Clinical Experience 

Job Placement 

Graduate survey 

DANB 

Faculty Program Coordinator 

Clinical site evaluation 

Graduate survey has resulted in 

an increase to clinical hours 

 

Graduate survey has resulted in 

Accreditation occurs every 

7 years 

Next accreditation is 2020 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

 

Syllabi 

Dental Assisting Hand Book 

putting DAS 111 online for 

Spring of 2019 

 

 

APR will be done the 

same time as the 

Accreditation in 2020 

Dental Hygiene, Associate 

in Science – DH  

College Catalog: 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/dental-hygiene 

 

The Q: Dental Programs 

Group, QCC Dental Programs 

Policy and Procedure 

Handbook: 

https://theq.qcc.edu/ICS/icsfs/

2017-

2018_Policy___Procedure_Ha

ndbook.pdf?target=92b97292-

1375-465a-81aa-

391ed6c327e9 

 

Completion of clinical requirements 

which includes a portfolio 

 

Dental Hygiene Nation Boards 

 

CDCA  (regional clinical 

competency exam)  

 

State of Massachusetts Ethics and 

Jurisprudence exam 

Faculty review the completion 

of clinical requirements. 

The Dental Hygiene Program 

Coordinator tracks the pass 

rates for the   

Dental Hygiene Nation 

Boards, the 

CDCA , regional clinical 

competency exam and the  

State of Massachusetts Ethics 

and Jurisprudence exam 

An “open lab” concept was 

created whereby students can 

attend to perfect their clinical 

skills. The lab is manned by a 

faculty member and students 

must sign up for the 2 hour lab 

that is offered each week.  

Peer tutoring was instituted 

whereby senior students tutor 

freshman in dental hygiene 

specific courses.  

2013 

General Studies/ 

Healthcare Option – 

GSHC  

  

APR Document  

Catalog 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/liberal-artssciencegeneral-

studies/general-studies-

healthcare-option  

Successful transfer to a four-year 

Institution or Health Career 

program at Quinsigamond 

Community College.  

 

Faculty and Health 

Coordinators at Quinsigamond 

Community College 

Curriculum changes.  

Rearranging the alignment of 

the courses. Adding a new 

course to first semester as an 

option for students. Strongly 

recommended specific courses 

to fill elective requirements.  

2016 

Nurse Assistant Certificate 

– NA  

 

Catalog  

www.qcc.edu/academics/healt

hcare/nurse-assistant-

certificate 

Certification exam 

Job placement 

Clinical experience 

Graduate survey 

Faculty 

Program Coordinator 

Clinical site evaluation 

Scheduled APR 

 

Enhanced hours allocated to 

clinical portion of course per 

employer request 

Academic affairs approval 

date: 

2013 

Nurse Education 

Associate in Science – 

NUR, NUE, NUL, NUP 

 

The SLO for the Nurse 

Education Program are posted 

in the following locations: 

 On the QCC website under 

the “Goals” tab and 

included in the AD 

Program Nursing Student 

Handbook posted under 

the “More” tab as a PDF 

document. 

http://www.qcc.edu/acade

mics/healthcare/nurse-

education 

Clinical evaluations, course grades, 

QCCPET student surveys,   

National Council Licensure 

Examination for Registered Nurses 

(NCLEX-RN). 

Quarterly by the Nurse 

Administrator, annually by all 

nursing faculty 

The required TEAS V 

composite score for admission 

to the nursing program was 

increased to 65%. 

 

The required passing grade for 

nursing courses was changed to 

77. 

Accreditation visit by the 

Accreditation Commission 

for Education in Nursing 

(ACEN) in February 2013. 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

 AD Program Nursing

Student Handbook: printed

copies given to students

 Nurse Education

Department Faculty

Handbook

 QCCPET student surveys

Occupational Therapy 

Assistant Associate in 

Science – OT  

College Website/ Catalogue 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/occupational-

therapy-assistant 

National Board Certification Exam OTA Program Faculty Addition of Exam prep and 

Fieldwork Educator Seminars 

APR 2008 

ACOTE 2010 

Perioperative Nursing 

Certificate – PNC  

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/perioperative-

nursing-certificate 

Since the start of the program, 

100% of graduating students who 

have applied for a job within 6 

months of graduating have been 

hired. 

Surgical Technology Program 

Coordinator, Perioperative 

Nursing Faculty, and Surgical 

Technology Advisory Board 

Changes in clinical sites New Program 2015 

Pharmacy Technician 

Certificate – PT  

Catalog 

www.qc.edu/academics/health

care/pharmacy-technician-

certificate  

Clinical competencies 

Job placement 

Graduate survey 

Faculty 

Program Coordinator 

Scheduled APR 

Input from clinical partners 

used to guide curriculum 

adjustments 

Academic affairs approval 

date: 

2013 

Phlebotomy/EKG 

Technician Certificate – 

PEKG  

Catalog 

www.qcc.edu/academics/healt

hcare.phlebotomyekg-

technician-certificate 

Job placement 

Graduate survey 

Faculty 

Program Coordinator 

Scheduled APR 

Input from clinical partners 

used to guide curriculum 

adjustments 

Academic affairs approval 

date: 

2013 

Radiologic Technology 

Associate in Science – RT 
 Program Website:

http://www.qcc.edu/radiolo

gic-technology/mission-

goals-student-learning-

outcomes

 Program Handbook:

http://www.qcc.edu/files/R

adiologic_Technology/201

6_cpph_full_doc_0.pdf

 College catalog:

http://www.qcc.edu/files/Regi

stration/2017-

2018_catalog.pdf 

 Program Effectiveness Data for

Pass rates and Employment

rates:

http://www.qcc.edu/radiologic-

technology/program-effectiveness-

data 

 Clinical Competency

requirements for program

completion

Assessment committee of 

program faculty and Clinical 

staff (quarterly) and Advisory 

Board (annually) 

Program Completion rates had 

lead to biannual review of 

Admission requirements to 

include change of TEAS 

benchmark scores 

 APR – 2011

 APR 2018

Respiratory Care 

Associate in Science - RS 

Page 262 of the 2017-2018 

Catalog 

Department website 

Course syllabi 

Clinical experience 

Job placement rates 

Class & laboratory exams & 

practical proficiency /demonstration 

of skills 

Faculty 

Advisory Board 

CoARC Annual Report 

Addition of simulation to 

didactic coursework. 

Addition of 3 prestigious 

certifications to the curriculum 

to increase marketability & 

APR completed in Fall 

2016 
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CATEGORY 

(1) 

Where are the learning 

outcomes for this 

level/program published? 

(please specify) 

Include URLs where 

appropriate. 

(2) 

Other than GPA, what data/ 

evidence is used to determine that 

graduates have achieved the 

stated outcomes for the degree? 

(e.g., capstone course, portfolio 

review, licensure examination) 

(3) 

Who interprets the 

evidence? What is the 

process? 

(e.g. annually by the 

curriculum committee) 

(4) 

What changes have been 

made as a result of using the 

data/evidence? 

(5) 

Date of most recent 

program review (for 

general education and 

each degree program) 

Professional standards as 

defined by the Commission on 

Accreditation for Respiratory 

Care (CoARC) 

 

Employer & Graduate satisfaction 

surveys 

100% pass rates on the NBRC 

Certified Respiratory Therapist & 

Registered Respiratory Therapy 

(CRT/RRT) credentialing exams 

since 2008 

 

therefore job placement rates of 

graduates 

Purchase of new equipment for 

the laboratory including 2 

ventilators & pulmonary 

function equipment 

Addition of a clinical 

component to the summer lab 

Surgical Technology 

Certificate – ST  

 

http://www.qcc.edu/academic

s/healthcare/surgical-

technology-certificate  

Over the last 6 years, 100% of 

graduating students who have 

applied for a job within 6 months of 

graduating have been hired. 

Surgical Technology Program 

Coordinator, Surgical 

Technology Faculty  and 

Surgical Technology Advisory 

Board  

Changes in clinical sites 2010 

Institutions selecting E1a should also include E1b. 

 

 

Note:  Please see the Statement on Student Achievement and Success Data Forms (available on the CIHE website: https://cihe.neasc.org) for more information about 

completing these forms.  
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E-SERIES FORMS: MAKING ASSESSMENT MORE EXPLICIT 

OPTION E1:  PART B.  INVENTORY OF SPECIALIZED AND PROGRAM ACCREDITATION 
 

(1) 

Professional, specialized, 

State, or programmatic 

accreditations currently 

held by the institution (by 

agency or program name). 

(2) 

Date of most recent 

accreditation action by 

each listed agency. 

(3) 

List key issues for continuing accreditation identified 

in accreditation action letter or report. 

(4) 

Key performance indicators as 

required by agency or selected by 

program (licensure, board, or bar 

pass rates; employment rates, etc.). * 

(6) 

Date and nature of next 

scheduled review. 

  

MA Department of Higher 

Education, 

Academic Affairs and Student 

Success Unit,  

Criminal Justice & Law 

Enforcement Programs, 

Police Career Incentive 

Program 

 

2015 

 

The QCC CJ Program is in compliance with all Quality 

Standards for Criminal Justice Programs, i.e., all 

standards are substantively met. 

 

The CJ Program met and exceeded 

Quality Standards in relation to 

program effectiveness. 

 

The Accreditation is 

currently suspended due 

to the MA Legislature 

and the MA Governor 

not funding the program.  

Accreditation of Occupational 

Therapy Education (ACOTE)  

(2010-2020) 

May 2010 

 

Interim Repost 2014 

None:  Accreditation for 10 years 

 

Interim report 2014: Report accepted  with no further 

action  

 Reaccreditation: Next 

review 201/2020   

ACEN 

 

2013 granted continuing 

accreditation 

Areas needing development: 

 

Standard 1: Mission and Administrative Capacity  

 Clearly define the role of the nurse administrator to 

ensure full responsibility for the administration of 

all program options 

Standard 2: Faculty and Staff 

 Revise the job description for the laboratory 

personnel to ensure the responsibilities are 

accurately reflected, and the required credentials 

are commensurate with the responsibilities 

 Implement strategies to ensure all faculty files are 

complete and contain required materials, including 

evaluations 

Standard 3: Students 

 Implement strategies to ensure compliance with 

policies and guidelines related to management of 

student financial and educational records 

Standard 4: Curriculum 

 Ensure a clearly written policy related to the use of 

standardized testing across the curriculum is 

available in program materials 

 Continue the development of test blueprinting for 

instructor-made examinations to ensure alignment 

with course/unit objectives 

Standard 6: Outcomes 

 Licensure rates: ELA 80% of first 

time test takers 

 

 Program completion rates: ELA 

50% of students enrolled in 

NUR104 will complete the 

program within 7 semesters 

 

 Job placement: 80% of 

responding graduates seeking 

employment are employed within 

one year of graduation 

 

 

Spring 2021 
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(1) 

Professional, specialized, 

State, or programmatic 

accreditations currently 

held by the institution (by 

agency or program name). 

(2) 

Date of most recent 

accreditation action by 

each listed agency. 

(3) 

List key issues for continuing accreditation identified 

in accreditation action letter or report. 

(4) 

Key performance indicators as 

required by agency or selected by 

program (licensure, board, or bar 

pass rates; employment rates, etc.). * 

(6) 

Date and nature of next 

scheduled review. 

 Ensure the data are collected and trended by 

program option for all outcomes prior to 

aggregation for the program as a whole 

ADA CODA 2013 1. The visiting committee noted the evaluation 

instruments do not have objective criteria or criteria 

assigned to a grading scale for projects. It was 

recommended that evaluation procedures be 

provided to students at the initiation of each dental 

hygiene course (DH Standard 2-7). 

2. It was recommended that a multipurpose laboratory 

facility be provided for effective instruction and 

allow for required laboratory activities. It was 

further recommended that if the laboratory capacity 

requires that two or more sections be scheduled, 

time for all students to obtain required laboratory 

experience is provided. At the time of the site visit, 

the visiting committee from CODA noted that the 

current dental materials laboratory did not meet the 

criteria outlined in DH Standard 4-3. The 

laboratory did not have individual student lab 

stations with the necessary utilities for completion 

of lab activities or to allow for effective 

instructions of lab activities. 

3. At the time of the site visit, the visiting committee 

from CODA reported that the current classroom 

space was not sufficient to meet the goals and 

objectives of the program and for effective delivery 

of instruction. Although the program had adequate 

classroom space in the fall semester, the majority of 

spring classes were held in Hebert Auditorium. The 

size, lighting, acoustics and temperature control of 

the space did not provide for effective 

teaching/learning. 

 Pass rates for National Boards 

and CDCA (clinical competency 

exam)  

 Program pass rates 

 Program completion rates 

 Course completion rates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Construction of a Dental Material 

Laboratory meeting the stated 

requirements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evidence  of sufficient classroom 

space to meet the needs of the program  

 

2020 Routine 

accreditation site visit 

Commission on Accreditation 

for Respiratory Care 

(CoARC) 

March 21, 2016 1. Increase funds to market the Respiratory Therapy 

Program at QCC with the purpose of increasing 

enrollment to capacity with an additional “waiting 

list” to account for attrition in the first semester. 

2. Continue to explore avenues to purchase/rent newer 

ventilators currently being used in critical care. 

3. As enrollment reaches the capacity of 20, it will be 

necessary to accommodate those students in the 

laboratory by adding an additional wall mount for 

Program strengths as stated by 

COARC during the accreditation exit 

interview with school administrators: 

 

1. Administrative support for the 

program is outstanding & the 

long-term goals include 

Respiratory Therapy as vital 

members of the health care 

industry in the region. The 

March 21, 2026 
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(1) 

Professional, specialized, 

State, or programmatic 

accreditations currently 

held by the institution (by 

agency or program name). 

(2) 

Date of most recent 

accreditation action by 

each listed agency. 

(3) 

List key issues for continuing accreditation identified 

in accreditation action letter or report. 

(4) 

Key performance indicators as 

required by agency or selected by 

program (licensure, board, or bar 

pass rates; employment rates, etc.). * 

(6) 

Date and nature of next 

scheduled review. 

oxygen, air & vacuum, making the 3rd bed in the 

laboratory functional. 

4. Continue to pursue options for funding of a 

Simulation Man that can be utilized by the 

Respiratory Therapy Program. Until this purchase 

is possible, review scheduling options so that the 

Respiratory Program has available time in the 

Nursing Simulation laboratory. 

financial support for Respiratory 

Therapy is reassuring in light of 

budgetary cuts from the State of 

Massachusetts. Also, there is 

administrative support for the 

purchase of simulation 

mannequins that Respiratory 

Therapy students will utilize at 

times that are conducive to their 

schedules. 

2. The Program Director, Karen 

Kaletski Dufault & Director of 

Clinical Education, Cathryn 

MacDonald, are dedicated & both 

work tirelessly to insure program 

success. They are accessible to 

the students & committed to 

student success. 

3. The students are impressive & 

motivated to become Respiratory 

Therapy practitioners. They have 

been molded by the faculty to 

demonstrate attitude & 

professionalism. 

4. The clinical sites offer a diverse 

spectrum of exposure to the 

students. The 6 week NICU 

experience is an added, valuable 

clinical experience. The students 

obtain their NPR, ACLS, BLS, & 

PALS certifications which add to 

their value as potential 

employees. 

5. Graduates of QCC score above 

the national average on the NBRC 

credentialing exams. Their 

educational preparation has 

rendered them desirable from the 

communities of interest. 

6. The Advisory Board is dedicated 

& supportive. They regularly 

review the goals of the program & 

monitor the progress of QCC to 

achieve program goals. 

7. The Medical Director, Richard 

Rosiello, M.D., is active & 
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involved. His involvement 

includes lecturing to the students, 

teaching clinically, & involving 

students in medical rounds. 

8. The new laboratory & classroom 

is “state-of-the-art. Fourteen new 

computers are located in a 

designated area for educational 

learning, including simulations. 

The proposed designated 

Respiratory Care simulation lab is 

promising. 

9. There are numerous community 

service activities that the students 

are involved with including: 

asthma camp; Pulmonary 

Rehabilitation at St. Vincent 

Hospital; missionary trips to 

Haiti; composing educational 

materials for the public that are 

distributed to Senior Centers & 

physician offices. These 

publications have received 

National recognition in such 

journals as the AARC Times, etc. 

Dental Assisting: 

American Dental Association, 

Commission on Dental 

Accreditation 

2006 

 

 

 

 

Accreditation sit visit recommendations /suggestion for 

ongoing improvements: Dust collection and ventilation 

control equipment must be installed in the Dental lab. 

(this was installed) 

Employment 

DANB exam 

Program pass rates 

2013 October 

 

Reaccreditation onsite 

review every 7 years 

 

2020 

Dental Assisting: 

American Dental Association, 

Commission on Dental 

Accreditation 

 

2013 Accreditation sit visit recommendations 

Classroom space which is designed and equipped for 

effective instruction must be provided for and readily 

accessible to the program.  (Taken care of room 370A) 

 

It is recommended a multipurpose laboratory facility be 

provided for effective instruction and allow for required 

laboratory activities. It is further recommended that if 

the laboratory capacity requires that two or more 

sections be scheduled, time for all students to obtain 

required laboratory experience be provided( in planning 

stages) 

  

In 2015 QCC’s Human 

Services Program Is 

Accredited by the Council for 

In preparation for 

accreditation renewal, 

worked with Institutional 

Notations were made of low full-time faculty to student 

ratio. 

   

Practicum/Fieldwork – Supervisor and 

Student satisfaction via surveys sent 

2017 for inclusion in next Self-study  

Self-study revision 2018 
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Standards in Human Service 

Education; this was awarded 

with a rare status of having no 

pending conditions to be 

upgraded 

Research office to create 

surveys for Supervisors 

and Alumna  

 

Fieldwork Capstone Paper examples 

will be held for review by CSHSE 

team 

 

Successful transfer to 4 yr. institutions 

records being obtained from alumni 

and QCC offices gathering statistics 

 

Massachusetts Board of 

Registration in Nursing 

 

    

National accreditation by 

Joint Review Committee on 

Education in Radiologic 

Technology (JRCERT) 

http://www.jrcert.org/ 

10/2016 JRCERT 

accreditation award for 8 

years following on-site 

visit 3/2016 

All indicators of non-compliance were addressed and 

closed prior to final notice of accreditation award – 

10/2016 

 Five-year average credentialing 

examination (ARRT) pass rate of 

75% or better for first attempt.  

o Actual is 98% 

 Five-year average job placement 

rate of 75% or better within twelve 

months of graduation, for those 

graduates seeking employment. 

o Actual is 94% 

http://www.qcc.edu/radiologic-

technology/program-effectiveness-data 

 APR – 2018 

 Accreditation 

Interim Report - 

2020 

NC3 Multi-meter 

certification. 

 

All staff instructors are ASE 

certified Master Technicians. 

June 2017 

 

 

 

2017 

NATEF certification is in progress. Awaiting 

completion of classroom expansion. 

Equipment, Training, Task list 

completion and workplace 

competency.  

Spring 2018 

Surgical Technology: 

Commission on Accreditation 

of Allied Health Education 

Programs (CAAHEP) 

2010 Completed by 2011 - Standard II.B.  The program 

must regularly assess its goals and learning domains. 

Program personnel must identify and respond to changes 

in the needs and or expectations of its communities of 

interest. An advisory committee that is representative of 

these communities of interest must be designated and 

charged with the responsibility of meeting at least 

annually, to assist program and sponsoring institutional 

personnel in formulating and periodically revising 

appropriate goals and learning domains, monitoring 

needs and expectations, and ensuring program 

responsiveness to change. 

Completed by 2011 - Standard III.A.  Program 

resources must be sufficient to ensure the achievement 

of the program’s goals and outcomes. Resources 

include, but are not limited to: faculty, clerical/support 

staff, curriculum, finances, offices, classroom/laboratory 

facilities, ancillary student facilities, clinical affiliations, 

Program submits an annual report to 

accrediting agency with multiple data 

points. 

Future site visit 

determined by 

accrediting agency. 
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equipment/supplies, computer resources, instructional 

reference materials, and faculty/staff continuing 

education. 

Completed by 2011 - Standard III.B.3.b. Faculty must 

be individually qualified by education and experience, 

and must be effective in teaching the subjects assigned. 

Any person with instructional responsibilities in core 

surgical technology courses must have a credential in 

the field of surgical technology that is through a national 

credentialing organization accredited by the National 

Commission on Certifying Agencies (NCCA) 

Completed by 2011 - Standard III.C.  The curriculum 

must ensure the achievement of program goals and 

learning domains. Instruction must be an appropriate 

sequence of classroom, laboratory, and clinical 

activities. Instruction must be based on clearly written 

course syllabi describing learning goals, course 

objectives, and competencies required for graduation. 

Completed by 2011 - Standard V.A.1. & V.A.2.  
Announcements, catalogs, publications, and advertising 

must accurately reflect the program offered. At least the 

following must be made known to applicants and 

students: the sponsor’s institutional and programmatic 

accreditation status as well as the name, address and 

phone number of the accrediting agencies, admissions 

policies and practices, number of credits required to 

complete the program, tuition/fees and other costs 

required to complete the program, policies and processes 

for withdrawal and for refunds of tuition/fees. 

 

*Record results of key performance indicators in form 8.3 of the Data First Forms. 

 

Institutions selecting E1b should also include E1a. 
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